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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies fo which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main Board. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
affer due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
tfraded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities fraded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the "Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that fo the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the "Board”) of directors (the "Directors”)
of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the *Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, referred to as the “Group”), | would
like tfo present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
30 June 2018 (the "Year") together with the Group's strategy and
prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$90,460,000 for
the Year (2017: Loss of HK$50,990,000).

The Group’s consolidated loss attributable to the owners
of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$77.975,000 (2017: Loss of HK$50,892,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW
E-commerce

The Group engaged in the businesses of e-commerce mainly
through its B2C foreign frade e-commerce on-line sales platform,
namely DX.com. The e-commerce business of the Group
has been adversely affected by the increasingly intensifying
competition within the e-commerce industry in recent years. The
Group’s platform recorded a continuous decrease in revenue,
from HK$316,294,000 for the previous year to HK$238,519,000
for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 24.6%.
Gross profit margin dropped from approximately 34.2% to
approximately 24.4%.

To cope with the adverse business environment, the Group has
adopted fiscal austerity policies to control its cost and extended
the range of its trading products. Further, the Group will develop
its back-end system and shopping process optimization as well as
its mobile devices applications.

The e-commerce business of the Group is carried on through
its wholly-owned subsidiary EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited
("EPRO") and its subsidiaries (the "EPRO Group”). In August 2017,
the transaction in respect of the subscription agreement with
Mr. Che Xiaofei ("Mr. Che"), was completed with EPRO having to
allot and issue new Shares to Mr. Che at a total consideration of
HK$20,000,000. The Group'’s equity interest in EPRO was reduced
from 100% to 51%, accordingly. By introducing Mr. Che as a
new investor of EPRO, the Group expects to reduce its funding
commitment to the EPRO Group in the foreseeable future.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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Money-lending

The Group commenced the business of money-lending in Hong
Kong. through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary acquired in
October 2016. During the Year, the revenue of money-lending
business amounted to HK$8,985,000 (2017: HK$2,973,000).
Further, the Group offered loans to clients at an interest rate
ranging from 8% to 12%. An impairment of a loan receivable of
HK$20,000,000 has been made as at 30 June 2018. The Group
will continue to maintain a balance, and review its loan portfolio
so as fo control the risks of debt default.

Property management and property agency
services

The Group commenced the business of property management
and property agency services through another indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary acquired in December 2016. During the Year,
the revenue of property management and property agency
services was HKS$6,768,000 (2017: HK$3,887,000). As at 30 June
2018, an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$8,251,000 has been
made in view of the latest development and lower projected
revenue. The Group will continue its premium effort to monitor its
ever-lasting business development and the overall costs in order
to seek for profitable opportunities.

IP rights licensing and international IP development,
media integrated marketing and distribution
agency of sports goods business

During the Year, the Group marched into the IP rights licensing
and intfernational IP development and the media infegrated
marketing business upon the completion of the acquisition (the
"Sense Acquisition”) of Sense Media Group Limited (tfogether with
its subsidiaries, the “Sense Media Group”). Sense Media Group
positions itself as a comprehensive operation platform for IP rights,
specialising in media infegrated marketing business, including
provision of infegrated marketing, planning and design service
for brands. It capitalises on the abundant resources in Greater
China and the strong operational liquidity of the Company, and
conducts product design and commercial operation in respects
of licensed IP rights and brands. Sense Media Group is also a
pioneer of the “Intellectual Property + Augmented Reality + Food
& Beverage” business concept in China. Its IP rights “Le Petit
Chef” and ""Dinner Time Story”: Marco Polo”, were granted
and had generated new business opportunities and revenue
to the Group. A revenue of approximately HK$24,742,000 was
generated for the Group since the acquisition of Sense Media
Group.
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Further, in January 2018, the Group acquired (the "Strong
Network Acquisition”) Strong Network International Limited
(together with its subsidiaries, the "Strong Network Group”), a
service provider for distribufion agency, sales and marketing
channel of licensed IP products. Strong Network Group has been
steadily expanding its distribution channel within the PRC through
engagement with various cooperation partners which cover
different provinces of the PRC. In addition, Strong Network Group
commenced its business of disfribution agency of sporfs goods
in February 2018. Overall, Strong Network Group contributed a
revenue of approximately HK$29,225,000 to the Group since its
acquisition.

PROSPECT

The Group has been patiently exploring different business
opportunities outside the field of e-commerce to widen its
business scope.

The Board considers that the Strong Network Acquisition is a key
downstream business integration of distribution channels. While
Sense Media Group focuses on the sourcing and procurement
of IP with the capabilities to disseminate its IP portfolio within
certain major cities in the PRC, the core focus of Strong Network
Group is and will continue to be the nation-wide distributor of
commercialised IPs. The Board is of the view that the growing
distribution channel of Strong Network Group will assist the
development of the Group’s IP commercialisation business.

In addition, in March 2018, the Group reached a two-year
strategic cooperation with David Cheng Autosport Limited, of
which the founder, Mr. David Cheng, a racing driver and a
member of the 2017 24 hours of Le Mans race champion team
- Jackie Chan DC Racing, to cooperate in areas including but
not limited to IP development and operation rights of Mr. David
Cheng. The Group will look into incorporate the existing IP with
Mr. David Cheng fo create more new consumption potentials,
develop potential new retail market and explore new commercial
value of IP.

The Board believes that the outlook of licensed IP rights is
promising with huge potential for development, in particular,
by leveraging on the development of internet technology and
the upgrade of domestic consumer industries. Being a pioneer
in the IP commercialisation industry will benefit the financial
performance of the Group and the Group’s commencement
of operations in the areas of media integrated marketing and
distribution agency of sports goods will further diversify the
sources of income of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking ahead, in respect of the e-commerce business, the
Group will strive fo control its costs and expand its clientele, in an
attempt to maintain its competitiveness.

The Board is of the view that a series of new measures and
acquisitions have laid a solid foundation for the diversification
of development, and will provide new impetus to its growth and
benefit the long-term development of the Group. The Group will
continue to widen its business scope to generate fruitful returns
for its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Review

During the Year, the Group has extended its business into the
IP rights licensing and international IP development, media
integrated marketing and distribution agency of sports goods.

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$308,239,000
(2017: approximately HK$323,154,000), representing a drop of
approximately 4.6%.

The consolidated revenue for the Year was mainly contributed by
the revenue from (i) the e-commerce business of approximately
77.4% (2017: 97.9%). (ii) the money-lending business of
approximately 2.9% (2017: 0.9%); (iii) the provision of property
management and property agency services of approximately
2.2% (2017: 1.2%); and (iv) the franchise income arising
from IP rights licensing, international IP development, media
integrated marketing, and distribution agency of sports goods of
approximately 17.5% (2017: Nil).

The intense competition in the e-commerce industry has led to
a decline in the revenue of the Group, which outweighed the
income growth and contribution from new businesses of the
Group.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit dropped from approximately HK$106,785,000
for the previous year to approximately HK$100,683,000 for the
Year, representing a drop of approximately 5.7%, while the gross
profit margin recorded a slight decrease at approximately 32.7%
(2017: approximately 33.0%). The impact of the drop in gross
profit from the e-commerce business has been offset by the gross
profit contributed by the IP and the media integrated marketing
business.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The expenses are mainly aftfributable to the Group’s e-commerce
business. There has been a drop in the expenses due to (i)
the decrease in revenue of e-commerce business; and (i) the
decrease of transportation cost due to the change in sales mix
during the Year.

Review of Operations
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Review of Operations
EyVACI)

Administrative and Other Expenses

The increase in the administrative and other expenses was mainly
caused by (i) the net loss on disposal of the available-for-sales
investments of approximately HK$20,079,000 (2017: HK$384,000),
(i) provision for impairment loss of a loan receivable from the
Group’s money lending business of approximately HK$20,000,000
(2017: Nil), (iii) provision for impairment loss on goodwill of the
Group's property management and property agency services
business of approximately HK$8,251,000 (2017: Nil) and (iv)
increase of staff cost to approximately HK$32,871,000 (2017:
approximately HK$22,564,000).

Finance Costs

The finance costs during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$10,024,000 (2017: HK$349,000). The increment was
attributable to the imputed interest expense of the convertible
bonds issued during the Year.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$90,460,000 for
the Year and representing an increase of approximately 77.4% in
comparison with that of last year of approximately HK$50,990,000.
During the Year, the Group also recorded a loss attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted fo approximately
HK$77.975,000 (2017: loss of HK$50,892,000).

Even though there are profits from the new business segments of
the Group, such profits were fully outweighed by:

the loss on disposal of the available-for-sales investments;
provision of impairment on a loan receivable;

provision of impairment on goodwill of the Group’s property
management and property agency service business;

the continuing loss from e-commerce business; and

increase in finance costs.
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Financial Key Performance Indicators
The Board monitored a number of financial key performance EZ@ERZIANKHHERIRIEZ([RERIRIEZ])

indicators (*KPI”s) to measure the Group’s performance over
time. The KPIs may subject to refinement in accordance with
the needs and changes of business. Details of the Group’s

Review of Operations
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performance against each of the finance-related KPIs are set out
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KPI measures 2018 2017 Definition/Calculation Comments
BERNESTE —Z-N\F ZB-tF  EH/GE R
Basic earnings per share (2.81) Cents (2.41) Cents A basic earning per share is based  The portion of a company’s
BRERZH Al Bl onthe loss for the year atfributable  profit/(loss) allocated to each
to ordinary equity holders of the outstanding share of common
Company and the weighted stock
average number of ordinary shares  ERREERFTEHOFIE,/(EE)
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BasEARGZEEER  ARFA
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Refurn on investments (42%) (21%) It divides net loss by net assets A profitability measures that
REER FERIEFEELE evaluates the performance of a
business by dividing net profit by
net worth
BRENERAFEAE—ELR
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Gearing ratio 48% N/A  Aratio of net debt (liabilities less Degree of leverage
ERAFLLE NEA  pledged deposits and cash and TR
cash equivalents) over fotal capital
plus net debt
EEHE(REREERFRA LR S RA
SHEEE)RAREARN LELFE
Current ratio 306% 299% A rafio of current assets over current It measures a company's ability

MEILLE

Capital Structure

The Group mainly finances its operation with internal resources
and proceeds from various fund raising. The Group continues to

exert stringent control over treasury policies.

Save as disclosed in the section head “Fund Raising Activities”,
there is no material change to capital structure of the Group.

liabilities
ROAEHRBAENLE
BARRB

i) o

WEARE -

BRI =BEE | — B EES) -

fo pay short-term obligations
HR AR TEBERNEN

AEBEEZUAHERRTREEEE 2 ASHIA
REEBRE - AEBURBHEBHRERBRKRE

REEZEARREL
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Fund Raising Activities
(1) Issuance of convertible bonds under specific

mandate

On 7 August 2017, the Company issued zero coupon
redeemable convertible bonds with a nominal value
of HK$40,000,000 ("1st Tranche Lockup CB”) and
HK$30,000,000 ("2nd Tranche Lockup CB") (collectively,
the "August 2017 CB") as part of the consideration for the
Sense Acquisition (note 32 of the consolidated financial
statements). The August 2017 CB are conditionally
convertible info a maximum of 507,246,376 ordinary
shares of the Company at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.138 per conversion share (subject to adjustments).
The conversion price of HK$0.138 per conversion share
represents:

(i) a discount of approximately 12.6% to the closing
price of HK$0.158 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 5 June 2017, the date of the sale and
purchase agreement;

(i) a discount of approximately 19.8% to the average of
the closing prices of HK$0.172 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange for the last five frading days
up to and including the last trading day of 5 June
2017; and

(i) a discount of approximately 26.2% to the closing
price of HK$0.187 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 17 July 2017, the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of relevant circular.

The conversion price was determined affer a series of
arm’s length negotiation between the vendor of the Sense
Acquisition and the Company with reference fo the recent
frading price of the shares and the recent market sentiment
of the financial market in Hong Kong. As such, the Directors
consider that the conversion price is fair and reasonable
and as well as being in the interests of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole.
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As at the date of this report, the convertible bondholders
have exercised part of their rights to convert the convertible
bonds into shares of the Company. Subsequent fo the
end of the reporting period on 12 September 2018,
the Company received a conversion notice from the
convertible bondholder in respect of the exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds,
upon meeting the profit guarantee for the First Guarantee
Period, to convert the 1st Tranche Lockup CB, which is of
an aggregate nominal value of HK$40,000,000, in full at
the conversion price of HK$0.138 per conversion share
(the "Conversion”). Accordingly, 289,855,072 new shares,
representing approximately 10.44% of the issued share
capital of the Company immediately before the Conversion
and approximately 9.45% of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately after the Conversion, was allotted
and issued fo the convertible bondholder on 14 September
2018 pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
convertible bonds. Upon completion of the Conversion, the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bonds was decreased to HK$30,000,000. For details of the
August 2017 CB, please refer to note 27 of the consolidated
financial statement and the Company’s circular dated 18
July 2017 and the Company’s announcements dated 6
June 2017, 2 August 2017 and 7 August 2017, respectively.

Issuance of convertible bonds under general
mandate

On 23 November 2017, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with a subscriber, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue and the subscriber
agreed to subscribe for, the bonds in the principal amount
of HK$100,000,000, subject to the terms and the conditions
set out therein (the "December 2017 CB"). The December
2017 CB are convertible info a maximum of 552,486,187
ordinary shares of the Company at the inifial conversion
price of HK$0.181 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments). The initial conversion price of HK$0.181 per
conversion share represents:

(i) a discount of approximately 19.56% to the closing
price of HK$0.225 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 23 November 2017, the last trading day
prior to the signing of the subscription agreement;
and

(i) a discount of approximately 18.62% to the average
closing price of HK$0.2224 per share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange for the last five trading days
immediately prior fo the date of the announcement
on 23 November 2017.

2
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BRIRAR AR 190181 L (Al T AR ) Eik AR %
552,486,187 % AN A A1 E @AY - VIR EST
PARRE AL (701818 T8 ¢

() BRHR-E—tE+—A-+ZB(E
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The conversion price was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and the subscriber
with reference to the prevailing market prices of the shares
as shown above. The Directors consider that the conversion
price and the terms and conditions of the subscription
agreement are fair and reasonable based on the current
market conditions and in the interests of the Company and
shareholders as a whole.

The issuance of convertible bonds under general mandate
was completed on 1 December 2017. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$97,500,000 (after deducting the direct
transaction costs of HK$2,500,000) are being utilised for (i)
enhancing of the Group’s e-commerce and O20 sales and
consumer services business; (ii) future development and
investment opportunities; and (iii) general working capital
purpose. As at the date of this report, the bondholder has
not exercised its rights to convert the convertible bonds info
shares of the Company. For details of the December 2017
CB, please refer to note 27 of the consolidated financial
statement and the announcements of the Company dated
23 November 2017 and 1 December 2017, respectively.

The actual use of the net proceeds from the December
2017 CB as af 30 June 2018 was as follows:

(i) approximately HK$17,042,000 has been utilised
for enhancing of the Group’s e-commerce and
consumer services business;

(i) approximately HK$55,925,000 has been utilised for
funding the cash consideration and related expenses
for acquisition of Strong Network Group and other
investments; and

(i) approximately HK$24,533,000 has been utilised
for the general working capital, approximately
HK$13,689,000 of which has been utilised for the
working capital of the money-lending business. The
remaining amount has been utilized for the working
capital of the Group, including but not limited fo
salaries, rental expenses, legal and professional fee
and office expenses.
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Dilution effect of the full conversion of all
outstanding convertible bonds as at 30 June 2018

The following table sets out the dilution effect in the event of full
conversion of (i) the August 2017 CB; (ii) the December 2017 CB;
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R-B-NFAA=+HEBEGRFTEH
REBETRRES 2@ EE

TR BESER ()= —+F )\ AR ES
(i) =B—+F+= ATRIES : R(ii)Fia ke

and (iii) all outstanding convertible bonds.

BRI B ESZEETE

Immediately after
the full conversion of

Immediately after
the full conversion of

Immediately after
the full conversion of
all outstanding

Shareholder As af 30 June 2018 the August 2017 CB (Note a) the December 2017 CB (Note b) convertible bonds (Note , b)
RETHEA-S-1F SHTREA_S-tF RETHER
i3 R=B-NEAR=1A NAWRRES% (ia) TZRTRRES & (ib) fEHARETRRES & (Wa b)
No. of No. of No. of No. of
Shares % Shores % Shares % Shares %
HireE % G % Uik % k&R %
Great Capifal (HK) Limted & (5% )ARAR 198,288,000 1.4 198,288,000 6.04 198,268,000 59 198,268,000 517
Mr. Xia Boyu ERTRE 69,264,000 209 69,264,000 21 69,264,000 208 69,264,000 181
Mr, Wang He Tk 27,816,000 100 27,816,000 0.85 27,816,000 0.84 27,816,000 073
China Overseas Infernafional
Development Limited 250,336,000 9.02 250,336,000 162 250,336,000 752 250,336,000 6,53
Sense Media Group
Holdings Limited - = 507,246,376 1545 - 507,246,376 13.22
Excel Action Global Limited - - - 552,486,187 16.60 552,486,187 1440
Other public Shareholders EARBRE 2,230511,424 8035 2230511424 6793 2230511424 6700 2230511424 58.14
Tofol &t 2,776,215,424 10000 3,283,461,800 10000 3,328,701,611 10000 3,835947,987 100.00
Notes: Bt
a. Assuming conversion of August 2017 CB at the initial conversion  a. REIRY T HAR(EO0.138B B —T—+F \ A7
price of HK$0.138 BRES
b. Assuming conversion of December 2017 CB at the initial conversion  b. BRIEYSRREC I8 B LEIR —T—+F+=A
price of HK$0.181 AR ES
Dilution impact on loss per share HeERBECBERE

There will be no dilutive impact on the loss per share if the
conversion shares of 1,059,732,563 were issued as at 30 June
2018.

151,059,732, 563 RPN —F— \FRA=T
HEZT  SIe8sRBRELSTAHETE
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Financial and liquidity position of the Company

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had net current assets of
HK$191,873,000. The Company does not require repaying all the
outstanding convertible bonds at one time as the maturity dates
of the convertible bonds are different. Based on the financial and
liquidity position of the Company, to the best knowledge of the
Company, the Company expects that it will be able to meet its
redemption obligations under the outstanding convertible bonds
issued by the Company.

Bondholders to convert or redeem

The price of the shares of the Company at the future dates
at which it would be equally financially advantageous for the
bondholders to convert or redeem the August 2017 CB and the
December 2017 CB based on their implied internal rate of return,
respectively, were as follows:

ERABZMBERARBE SRR
RZB-N\FAAZ+E  FEBRADEEFER
191,873,000/87T « A AR &% 2 BB TR -
EI AR BT E R MR A MR R AT AR
&% - RARAFH - ERARFZHMBRABDES
R - AR FEHE ISR TAR AIBITZ AR
ARSI T 2 B A AE -

BEHEFEAERIERD

AR EREHFHEALREE S AEHE R R R
BT tF\ATRRESR-T—tF+ AT

B ES B RS A 2 @B RN ARE AR
DERIT

August 2017 CB —+4F/\H AR & 5
Date 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 6 August 2020*
HH —E-hFARA=tH —E-EFXA=TH —E-EFN\AKB*
(HKS per share) (HKS per share) (HKS per share)
(ERET) (BRET) (ERET)
Share price BRAD B4 0.124 0.137 0.138
December 2017 CB Bt F A HABRES
Date 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 November 2020*
A ZE-AFAA=tH —T-THFXAZ+H —B-BF+-—HA=tA*
(HKS$ per share) (HKS per share) (HKS$ per share)
(&8 T) (&R ET) (ERET)
Share price AP E1& 0.164 0.179 0.186
* maturity date * o HAE
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Placing under General Mandate in April 2017

On 6 April 2017, the Company and a placing agent entered into
a placing agreement, pursuant fo which the Company placed,
under general mandate, a total of 355,000,000 new shares at the
placing price of HK$0.122 per share to not less than six placees
whose respective ultimate beneficial owners are independent
third parties (the “April 2017 GM Placing”). The placing price of
HK$0.122 per placing share represents:

() adiscount of approximately 16.44% to the closing price of
HK$0.146 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 6
April 2017, the date of the placing agreement; and

(i) adiscount of approximately 14.08% to the average closing
price of HK$0.142 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive trading days prior to the
date of the placing agreement.

The placing price was determined affer a series of arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and the placing agent with
reference to the market prices at that fime of the shares. The
Directors considered that the placing price is fair and reasonable
based on the then market conditions as well as being and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The April 2017 GM Placing was completed on 27 April 2017, the
details of which were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 April 2017 and 27 April 2017, respectively.

The net proceeds of approximately HK$41,426,000 from the April
2017 GM Placing was fully utilized as intfended as follows:

() approximately HK$16,154,000 has been utilized for
funding the cash consideration and related expenses for
acquisition of Sense Media Group and other investment;

(i)  approximately HK$7,780,000 has been utilized for the
working capital of the money-lending business; and

(iiy approximately HK$17,492,000 has been utilized for the
working capital of the Group including but not limited
to salaries, rental expenses and deposits, legal and
professional fees and office expenses.
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Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant
Investments

0,

(i)

(i)

Acquisitions

During the Year, the Company has acquired subsidiaries
engaging in IP rights licensing and international IP
development, media infegrated marketing and distribution
agency of sports goods business. For details, please
refer fo the "Business Review” section and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statement.

Deemed Partial Disposal of Interest in
Subsidiaries

On 1 August 2017, the Group allotted and issued 245
new shares of EPRO E-commerce Group Limited ("EPRO"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to Mr. Che
Xiaofei at the cash consideration of HK$20,000,000.

Immediately after completion, the Group’s equity inferest in
EPRO was diluted from 100% fo 51% and thus considered as
a deemed partial disposal of EPRO by the Group.

Since the deemed partial disposal of EPRO did not result in
any loss of control, such fransaction was accounted for as
an equity fransaction and the difference between (i) the
proceeds from the subscription and (i) the 49% carrying
value of EPRO and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EPRO
Group”) of approximately HK$8,344,000 are recognised in
the other reserve of the Group.

Significant Investment

The Directors consider that individual investment with
a market value that accounts for more than 5% of the
Group'’s total assets as at the end of the reporting period
as significant investments. No individual investment with
a market value that accounts for more than 5% of the
Group's total assets as at 30 June 2018.

The details of the available-for-sales investments and equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 30 June
2018 and 30 June 2017 are set out below.
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Percentage Percentage
of fotal Percentage of fotal Percentage
issued share fo issued share fo
capital of the Group's capifal of the Group's
Numberof  the investee Carrying audited Numberof ~ the invesfee audited
shares held company amount  fotalassets  shares held company  Market value fotol assets
os ot as ot as af os ot os af osaf asaf 0s af
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30June 30June 30June 30June
Description of investment 218 218 2018 218 217 217 217 2017
{LE ] [bA%E
EB%ELT H-B-NE hRRERT RE-t5
RB-NE AB=tH RIE-tF ~NA=TH
H=B-N% ~AZTE REB-NE BEh RIEtE RAztE RIEAE LR
RAZTR BRkA ~A=TR BEEL A=A BEfTRA ~A=TA Ry
R&md FERA%E  BEzAEMM 2K At MERDEE  2EZEAM paii Bt
HK$'000 HKS'000
Thn T
Availableor-sales investments
THHERE
Listed investments, ot fair value
Lifkfh - BATHE
China Parenfing Network Holdings Limifed
(nofe a)
hEE TR ERERAR ) = - = = 15,000,000 1.46% 29700 9.10%
Unlisted investments, of cost
FLMRE - A
Flowerfrit Limited 25 2% 10,000 2.19% - - - -
Other unlisted investment
AT 3,000 0.66% - -
13,000 29700
Equity investments ot fair value through profit or
loss
RAVETABRZRARE
Listed investments, o fair value
Ll - BATE
Season Pacific Holdings Limited (note b)
EEXBRARLNE (D) 35,002,000 311% 21,001 4.60% - - - -
Yadea Group Holdings Limited (nofe c)
EasEERERAT 4,000,000 0.13% 11,640 2.55% - - - =
Other listed equity investments
Afp Lkt 8,354 1.83% 219 0.07%
219

40,995

Performance of the Group’s significant investments

for the Year and its future prospects

(a) China Parenting Network Holdings Limited
('CPN")

FEMREFEZERAREZRBER KRR

A=
(a) FEEZAEIERGRAG([FEE
SEAFEE )

PBEFE - ARFEHE15,000,0008H F
BRI - REKAK /30,095,000
T o

In previous years, the Company acquired 15,000,000 shares
of CPN at investment cost of approximately HK$30,095,000.
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CPN (the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8361)) is principally engaged in
(i) the provision of marketing and promotional services
through its platform, including ClI Web, mobile CI Web,
Mobile Application Software ("APPs”) and IPTV APPs; (ii)
e-commerce business in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"); and (iii) licensing of smart-hardware devices
through its large and engaged user base of Children-
Babies-Maternity customers.

During the Year, the Group disposed all of the CPN
shares on the Stock Exchange, with loss on disposal of
approximately HK$20,199,000.

Prior to disposal of the investment, as disclosed in
the third quarterly report of CPN for the nine months
ended 30 September 2017, CPN recorded a net profit
of approximately RMB29,529,000 for the nine months
ended 30 September 2017 in comparison with that of
approximately RMB30,091,000 for the corresponding period
in 2016 with a decrease of approximately 1.87%. CPN will
continue fo provide its users with diversified services and be
commiffed to upgrade and improve upon the smart family
lifestyle in the mother-child industry.

Season Pacific Holdings Limited ("Season
Pacific”)

As at 30 June 2018, the Company acquired 35,002,000
shares of Season Pacific at investment cost of
approximately HK$21,602,000.

Season Pacific (the shares of which are listed on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1709)) is
principally engaged in the sales of apparel products and
the provision of supply chain management total solutions
fo customers.

As disclosed in the annual report of Season Pacific for the
year ended 31 March 2018, Season Pacific recorded a net
profit of approximately HK$15,688,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018 as compared with that of approximately
HK$25,143,000 for the corresponding period in 2017 with a
decrease of approximately 37.60%.

Season Pacific has been strategically diversifying its
customer geographic allocation and expanding its market
share in the industry of apparel products and provision
of supply chain management total solufions. There was
a significant increase in sales from European customers
which included amongst others, sales to one of the world’s
largest fashion retailers headquartered in Spain. The
Directors consider that it will enjoy the benefit of a larger
share in the recovery of Europe economy.

Yadea Group Holdings Limited ("Yadea
Holdings ")

As at 30 June 2018, the Company acquired 4,000,000
shares of Yadea Holdings at investment cost of
approximately HK$12,450,000.

Yadea Holdings (the shares of which are listed on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1585)) is
principally engaged in the development, manufacture and
sale of electric vehicles and related accessories in the PRC.
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As disclosed in the interim results of Yadea Holdings for the
six months ended 30 June 2018, Yadea Holdings recorded
a net profit of approximately RMB195,269,000 for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 as compared with that of
approximately RMB171,591,000 for the corresponding
period in 2017 with an increase of approximately 13.80%.

The Directors consider that the electric vehicle market
would grow in mainland China and will ultimately
contribute to increasing shareholder value.

General

The Group will confinuously and closely monitor the performance
of its investments and the market trend.

The Group recognised a net loss on disposal of available-for-
sales investments of approximately HK$20,079,000 (2017: loss
of approximately HK$384,000) for the Year, which consists
of (i) the release of loss from available-for-sales investment
reserve of approximately HK$7,445,000 (2017: release of gain
from available-for-sales investment reserve of approximately
HK$5,608,000) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
upon disposal and (ii) a net fair value loss recognised upon
disposal of approximately HK$12,634,000 (2017: HKS 5,992,000).

As at 30 June 2018, the available-for-sales investment recorded
a fair value loss of approximately HK$7,050,000 (2017: loss of
approximately HK$979,000), which was included in the available-
for-sales investment reserve.

As at 30 June 2018, the equity investments af fair value through
profit or loss recorded a fair value loss of approximately
HK$4,284,000 (2017: loss of approximately HK$9,487,000) for the
Year, which consists of (i) approximately HK$1,942,000 loss due
to change in fair value and (i) approximately HK$2,342,000 fair
value loss recognised upon disposal.

Save for the above, the Company had no other significant
investments and material acquisitions or disposals during the
Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by internally
generated cash flow, proceeds from previous issue of shares and
proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds.

As at 30 June 2018, the consolidated shareholders’ equity,
current assets and net current assets of the Group were
approximately HK$213,217,000 (2017: HK$241,107,000),
HK$284,799,000 (2017: HK$254,252,000) and HK$191,873,000
(2017: HK$169,115,000), respectively.

In respect of the Group'’s total current assets, frade receivable
(net of provision for doubtful debts) accounted for approximately
8.9% (2017: 1.7%), loan receivables accounted for approximately
31.3% (2017: 29.2%) whilst pledged deposits, cash and cash
equivalents accounted for approximately 15.2% (2017: 37.3%).
As at 30 June 2018, the Group's pledged deposits amounted
fo approximately HK$310,000 (2017: HK$310,000) and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$43,046,000
(2017: HK$94,458,000).
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Review of Operations
EyVACI)

The Group’s pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Pound sterling, Euro,
Renminbi, Canadian dollars, Swiss Franc, Australian dollars,
Japanese Yen, Mexican Peso, Brazilian Real, Argentine Peso and
United States dollars.

In August 2017, the Group issued HK$70,000,000 zero coupon
redeemable convertible bonds as part of the consideration for
the Sense Acquisition (see note 27 and 32(a) to consolidated
financial statements).

In December 2017, the Group issued HK$100,000,000 convertible
bonds in order to enhance the liquidity of the Company (see
note 27 to consolidated financial statements).

As at 30 June 2018, there were no borrowings or revolving loan
facility from any bank or other financial institution (2017: Nil).

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio of
the net debft divided by the ftotal capital, plus the net debf, was
approximately 48% (2017: not applicable as the Group has no
external borrowing). The net debt includes trade payables, other
payables, deposits received and accruals, deposits received
in advance, convertible bonds and confingent considerations
payable less pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi, Euro and United States dollars.

In accordance with the Group’s conservative treasury policy, the
Group did not enter into any forward contract for hedging during
the Year. The Group will keep on monitoring the foreign currency
risk and will consider any tool for hedging if necessary.

As at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017, the Group has no
outstanding forward foreign exchange contract.

Contingent Liabilities

Except as disclosed in notes 38 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no significant contingent
liability as at 30 June 2018, details of which, is stated in the
section headed "Litigation”.

Charges on Assets

As at 30 June 2018, included in the prepayments, deposits and
other receivables were the balances of US$5,020,000 (equivalents
to approximately HK$39,156,000) (the “Frozen Accounts”) (2017:
US$5,020,000 equivalent to approximately HK$39,156,000), which
were frozen by Silicon Valley Bank and the PayPal. The Frozen
Accounts were temporarily restrained from use as the Group was
involved in a litigation. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on 12 September 2018, the district court has made an
order that the plaintiff may obtain disbursement in the sum of
US$2,681,406.45 from the Frozen Amounts, details of which, is
stated in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2018, the number of staff of the Group was
231 (2017: 138). Staff remuneration is reviewed once a year,
or as the management considers appropriate. Changes in
remuneration are based on a range of factors including the
Group’s performance, the competitiveness of remuneration with
the external market, and individual employee’s performance
during the Year. Employees were entitled to fixed remuneration,
with discretionary bonus and other benefits including medical
insurance, mandatory provident fund, share options and all
other necessary training.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and of the senior
management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. POON Man Sum, aged 58, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. Mr. Poon obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Mathematics from the University of Alberta in 1984. After his
graduation, Mr. Poon worked in various information technology
companies. From September 2010 until May 2017, Mr. Poon
worked at Oracle (China) Software Systems Co., Ltd. (*Oracle”)
and his last position in Oracle was a senior director for VAD
Channels Sales. Mr. Poon joined the Group on 18 May 2017.

Mr. Al Kuiyu, aged 35, is an executive Director. Mr. Ai obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Spanish from the Communication University
of China in 2005 and a Master of Arts Degree in journalism
from the Renmin University of China in 2014. He obtained the
qualifications of class 2 broadcaster and journalist from the
Radio, Film and Television Talents Exchange Cenfre under
the State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and
Television of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). Mr. Ai
has extensive experience in international communication and
journalism. From 2005 to 2016, he had worked as an anchor,
moderator, producer and news reporter in the PRC. Mr. Ai joined
the Group on 27 March 2017.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. On 10 August 2017,
Mr. Fong was re-designated from the chairman of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
tfo a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Fong obtained a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Associatfion of Chartered Certified Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fong has
more than 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
finance, and acted for the private and listed public companies
in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong joined the Group on 28 October 2006.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

E= kN EEEEE

Mr. HUANG Zhiying, aged 40, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Nomination Committee (on
5 September 2018, Mr. HUANG was re-designated from the
member of the Nomination Committee fo the chairman of the
Nomination committee), and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. HUANG obtained a Bachelor of Economics Degree in
Intfernational Business Management from Fudan University
in 2000 and a Master of Economics Degree in International
Trade from Fudan University in 2003. Since the completfion of
his postgraduate studies, Mr. Huang has been a lecturer of the
School of Management of Fudan University. Mr. Huang has also
taken on the position of a director of the Alumni Centre of the
School of Management of Fudan University since November
2006. Mr. Huang joined the Group on 2 November 2017.

Mr. Tong Kar Hing, aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tong obtained the higher
certificate in communication, advertising and marketing from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic in November 1991. Mr. Tong has
over 30 years of experience in advertising, marketing and brand
management. He has worked in various entities within such
industry including enterprises and listing companies in both Hong
Kong and the PRC. Mr. Tong joined the Group on 5 September
2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LO Sze Hung, aged 34, is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has over 10 years
of experience in accounting, finance and business advisory
work. Mr. Lo worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and
his last position there was senior manager. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Business Administration in Professional Accountancy
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo joined the
Group as the chief financial officer in July 2017 and has been
appointed as the company secretary with effect from 1 October
2017. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
Group was principally engaged in (i) e-commence and provision
of on-line sales platform; (i) money-lending business; and (iii)
property management and property agency services. During
the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group extended its business
into the operation of intellectual property (*IP*) rights licensing
and international IP development, media integrated marketing
and distribution agency of sports goods business through the
acquisition of certain subsidiaries.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties regarding
the future of the Group, particulars of important events that
have occurred and affected the Group since the end of the
financial year ended 30 June 2018, an indication of likely
future developments of the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are set out in the
paragraphs headed "Risks and Uncertainties”,"Chairman’s
Statement” and “Review of Operations” of this annual report and
notes 41 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements. The
review forms part of this directors’ report.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are the keys fo the sustainable development fo the Group. The
Group is committed fo build a close and caring relationship with
its employees and suppliers, and improves the quality of services
and products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated, and continues to improve, review and update its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety on a regular basis.

The Group is always proactive in its ongoing communication with
its customers and suppliers through various channels such as
telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.
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Report of the Directors
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2018 and the
Group’s financial position as af that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements from pages 66 to 207.

The Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 208.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 29 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has identified principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces with respect to economic risks, operational
risks, regulatory risks, credit risks and financial risks. The
Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be materially and adversely affected by those risks and
uncertainties. The following highlights the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group, and it is not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks and uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but turn out to
be material in the future.

Economic risks

- A severe or prolonged downturn of the global economy.

- Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, inflation
and fluctuations of inferest rates would adversely affect the

customers’ spending sentiment.

- Advent of international frade protectionism.
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Operational risks

- Failure to compete in the competitive environment which
the Group operates in.

- Unable to keep pace with the technological advances in a
fimely and cost-efficient manner.

- Unexpected network interruptions or undetected
programming errors or defects.

- Any technical interruption or inadequacy to the system
of the payment gateways may cause delay in receipt of
customers’ payment.

Regulatory risks

- Infringement of valid patents, copyrights or other
infellectual property rights held by third parties may lead to
significant penalties.

- Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain
or maintain all applicable permits and approvals.

= Any change in laws and regulations in different customers’
countries may affect its business.

Credit risks

- The borrowers cannot repay or delay in repayment of
loan which may have a significant impact to the financial
position to the Group.

Financial risks

- Details of financial risks are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company’s distributable
reserves dre set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 17% (2017: approximately 8%) of
the fotal sales for the Year and the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 7% (2017: approximately 5%).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 71% (2017: approximately 86%) of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 50% (2017:
approximately 26%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital or
had any beneficial interest in the Group'’s five largest customers
or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. POON Man Sum
Mr. Al Kuiyu
Mr. HUNG Kenneth
(resigned on 1 November 2017)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson
(resigned on 19 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai
Mr. ZHOU Jing

(resigned on 10 August 2017)
Dr. FUNG Kam Man

(resigned on 2 November 2017)
Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan

(appointed on 10 August 2017

and resigned on 5 September 2018)
Mr. HUANG Zhiying

(appointed on 2 November 2017)
Mr. TONG Kar Hing

(appointed on 5 September 2018)
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Pursuant to the provisions of the Bye-laws, two of the existing
Directors, namely, Mr. TONG Kar Hing and Mr. FONG Fuk Wai,
shall retire at the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company.
All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election af the said meeting.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 23 to 24 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2018 annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not deferminable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year. The
Company has maintained appropriate Directors” and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are recommended by
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and deftermined by
the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the result of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as the related party fransactions disclosed in note 39 fo the
consolidated financial statements, no Director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group fo which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entfered into or existed during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Issuance of convertible bonds

Details of the issuance of convertible bonds are set ouf in
"Review of Operations” of this annual report and note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 31 fo the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as the above, the Company has no other equity-linked
agreements entered during the Year.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE “SFO")

A. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 30 June 2018, the inferests of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant fo Section 352 of the SFO, or as
ofherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors
of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Inferests in shares of the Company

No such inferest was reported by the Directors.
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2. Interests in underlying shares of the

Report of the Directors
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2. RARAGEBKRG < e (BEY

Company (physically settled equity IR APTAETA)
derivatives)
Percentage
Number of of the underlying
underlying shares shares over the
in respect of the Company’s issued
Name of director Capacity options granted share capital*
EREBRESR HERGIEELT
EEHR 513 ZHEBERGDEE ERTREBDLL*
Mr. Poon Man Sum Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.9%
B X EnEAA
Mr. Ai Kuiyu Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.9%
NEFEE EnEAA

Details of the above share options as required to
be disclosed by the GEM Listing Rules have been
disclosed in note 31 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

- The percentage represents the number of underlying
shares inferested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
ofherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors
of the Company as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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B. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS B.

As at 30 June 2018, the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required fo be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

(1) Ordinary shares of the Company

i%ﬂﬁi

R=B—NFXA=+E  ATALREES
R R AR E 2 B

FEE8A 2 2 AR 19 RRARRRRR (S o 5 5% 5L
WA £ 2 S -

(1) ZRAJZER

Name of substantial Long position/ Number of ordinary Percentage of
shareholder Capacity Short position shares interested issued share capital*
TERRER L0 #R/%E EEER EBERYA HERTRAB L
Great Capital (HK.) Limited  Beneficial owner Long 198,288,000 7.14%
BE(EB)BRAR EEERA e (note (i) (Fizt())
Swift Success Enterprises Inferest of controlled Long 198,288,000 7.14%
Limited corporation e (note () (Fizt())

REtEE R
Mr. XIA Boyu Inferest of controlled Long 198,288,000 7.14%
BEFEE corporations e (note (1)) (Hizt())

REtlEE R

Beneficial owner Long 69,264,000 2.49%

EREAA HAE
Mr. WANG He Beneficial owner Long 27,816,000 1.00%
FheE BEaEAA HR
China Overseas International - Beneficial owner Long 250,336,000 9.02%

Development Limited BEREEA S5=) (nofe (in) (H1Z (i)

Mr. XU Jiancong Interest of controlled Long 250,336,000 9.02%
AL L corporation HE (nofe (i) (K1)

REtEE R

Notes: PIE -

0) These 198,288,000 shares of the Company were ® AR 7 % %5 198,288,000 % fi% 17 B
held by Great Capital ﬁH.K.) Limited, a corporation BE(BRE)ERAARKE  &F
wholly controlled by Swift Success Enterprises Limited (&%) B R 2R A ASwift Success
which was in turn wholly controlled by Mr. XIA Boyu. Enterprises Limited & & # fl &
Accordingly, Swiftf Success Enterprises Limited and 7% - Swift Success EnTer rlses

Mr. Xia were deemed to be interested in 198,288,000
shares of the Company held by Great Capital (H.K.)
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

(i)  These 250,336,000 shares of the Company were held
by China Overseas International Development Limited,
a corporation wholly confrolled by Mr. XU Jiancong.
Accordingly, Mr. Xu was deemed to be interested in
250,336,000 shares of the Company held by China
Overseas International Development Limited pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

- The percentage represents the number of ordinary
shares interested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2018.
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(2) Underlying shares of the Company - (2) ALREJHEBRG — K L4
unlisted derivatives (convertible bonds) TA(ABERES)
Name of substantial Long position/ Number of underlying Percentage of
shareholder Capacity Short position shares interested issued share capital*
TERRER L] #R/ %R ARG 2 EERHBE HERTRABAL
Sense Media Group Beneficial owner Long 507,246,376 18.27%
Holdings Limited ExEAA Ha (note (1) (Hiz# (1))
Mr. WANG He Inferest of controlled Long 507,246,376 18.27%
FifkE corporation Ha (note (1) (132 ())
R EEER
Excel Action Global Limited  Beneficial owner Long 552,486,187 19.90%
EREEA Ha (note (ii)) (Wit (i)
VSTECS Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled Long 552,486,187 19.90%
BEENMEIBRERAR corporations A (note (i) (K12 (i)
R AEER
Mr. LI Jialin Interest of controlled Long 552,486,187 19.90%
FEMEE corporations FE (note (ii)) (Wit (i)
R AEER
Ms. LIU Li Interest of controlled Long 552,486,187 19.90%
2lFx+ corporations o=y (note (ii)) (Wit (i)
R AEER
Notes: Ft%E
@)  These 507,246,376 underlying shares of the Company 0) NA Al 7% £ 507,246,376 A% A8 B A% 17
were held by Sense Media Group Holdings Limited. B Sense Media Group Holdings
Sense Media Group Holdings Limited was controlled as Limited$# 748 ° Sense Media Group
to 35% by Mr. WANG He. Accordingly, Mr. Wang was Holdings Limited i F i % £ # &
deemed to be interested in 507,246,376 underlying 35% o FEIL - RIRES KRB KRAIE
shares of the Company held by Sense Media Group XVED - AR AR Sense Media
Holdings Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Group Holdings Limited¥% & M2
F1507,246,376 I 18 B A £ 7 #E 5 1
ﬁ o
(i)  These 552,486,187 underlying shares of the Company @iy AR AZ%552,486,187 iR #HEE AR (0

were held by Excel Action Global Limited, a
corporation wholly controlled by VSTECS Holdings
Limited. Accordingly, VSTECS Holdings Limited was
deemed to be interested in 552,486,187 underlying
shares of the Company held by Excel Action Global
Limited pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of underlying
shares interested divided by the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2018.

i Excel Action Global Limited #%
B ZARHAECERNERER AR
2EES - Bt - BIBEES REAER
BIEEXVED « BAERERERARHE
1R A7 Excel Action Global Limited
58 M AN R 7]552,486,187 f% 18 3 1%
DA R

Z 8 L IE P A i a2 AR RE AR () B

BRUARR AR —FE—N\FRA=F
BZEBBTRMEE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, so far as is
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
no person had registered an interest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of interest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”, at no time
during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
year of age, or were any rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the
public as af the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the
Company has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed fo building an environmental-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. The Group strives to minimize the environmental
impact by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials.

Further details are disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the Company prepared in accordance
with Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules which will be published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, during the Year and up to
the date of this report, the Group has complied in all material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its business and operations.

LITIGATION

Details of the litigation of the Group are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events affer the end of the reporting period of
the Group are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITORS

There has been no change of auditors in the past three years.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ascenda Cachet CPA
Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2018
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

POON Man Sum
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 September 2018
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The Directors present this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance in maintaining its corporate fransparency and
accountability. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group'’s business.

The Board considers that for the period from 1 July 2017 o
the date of this annual report, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions sef out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 15 fo the GEM Listing Rules, except for the code
provision A.2.1. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the deviation
from the foregoing (if any) are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

Al. Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of creating
value fo shareholders, and on behalf of the shareholders,
overseeing the Company’s financial performance.
All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, take decisions objectively and acts in the
inferests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
fransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are led by the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management of the Company. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
foregoing officers and senior management.
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A2. Board Composition

As at 30 June 2018, the Board comprised the following
Directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. POON Man Sum

(Chairman of the Board)

Mr. Al Kuiyu

Non-executive director:
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. FONG Fuk Wai

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan

Mr. Huang Zhiying

(Chairman of the Audit Committee,
member of the
Remuneration Commiftee
and Nomination Commiftee)
(Member of the Audit Committee,
chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Commiftee)
(Member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Commiftee)

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2018 and up to
date of this annual report, the composition of the Board
has the following changes:

Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson has resigned as an non-
executive Director;

Mr. Chan Ngai Fan has resigned as an independent
non-executive Director, and has ceased to be the
chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, and a member of
the Audit Committee;

Mr. Tong Kar Hing has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, and the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and
a member each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee; and

Mr. Huang Zhiying, an existing independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

For the period from 1 July 2017 to the date of this annual
report, the Board has met the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of having at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one third of the Board) with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.
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All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism fo the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related
to one another.

The Company has received a writfen annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are carried out by
different individuals.

During the Year, Mr. POON Man Sum, the Chairman of
the Board, had provided leadership for the Board and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive, in a timely manner, adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at the Board meetings, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed in a fimely manner.

To achieve clear division of responsibilities between the
management of Board and the day-to-day management
of business and hence to ensure balance of power and
authority, there are separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (as stipulated
under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code). However,
after the resignation of Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 23 September 2016,
Mr. Poon Man Sum, the chairman of the Board, has
tfemporarily faken up the function as Chief Executive Officer
of the Company for a transitional period commencing on
18 May 2017 and this deviated from the code provision
A.2.1 since then. The Group has been looking for suitable
candidate to fill for the post of Chief Executive Officer.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

A3.

PRESSESSRHSTEARERANN
KBMEXER  LEESRLENEE - BB
BR2RERSEE  ASENERS REE
NREBFRZEBRNEEEZEGRY - A
VIFPITERHARR 2 BERIEEEH B ER

BEENREABEN AT R EERSMER
BEEIA - HEESSREBES K EHH -

ARREREZBIFATESRIECGEM L
MHRAIZREELAEREL BN 2 FEH®
RE - ARFRBAABIULIENTEERE
GEM MR A2 B 559 BBIAL -

IRREEVITE
ARRERREBITE
RALEAE

ZABNRBEAERT

RAFERN  BEFSETER/BERELE KB
BERSEESe AR ESE R 2 A EEREY
BEXEe - AERREREEXET  EETEER
REFCHNEZTSEH LI 2B REFEL
SR - B EBRAEZER X
EEHEE L - UEPAAEZEREE FEIA
KT A El e o

ARSI ESFEEEERERFEE 2N
BE VR ERESRE D MRES R - K
RABRAEFBREFRTE 2B (RIEEZE
EasTAISFRIGSTA.2.1) - A - BEJERESE
ERZE—RFEAA_T=ZBRERRRER
MITE—BR  EFSLEENRLERBALE
R-ZE—+FRAA+N\BRBZBEHRNE
FBEEARREREATE @ UiRBET AR S
A21fF - ARENRERATE —BYWES
BNGE -



Ad.

Ab5.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific ferm and is subject to retirement by rotafion once
every three years. Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan,
Mr. Huang Zhiying, Mr. Tong Kar Hing and Mr. CHANG Eric
Jackson are appointed for a term of 2 years.

According to clause 84(1) of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall
be subject fo retirement at least once every three years.
Besides, according to clause 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
new director appointed fo fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment. The Company’s circular, sent together
with this annual report, contains detailed information of the
retiring directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Training and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and directors’
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are confinually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors will be
arranged as necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company (i)
has organized briefings conducted by professional firms,
including Howse Williams Bowers and ListcoPRO Services
Limited, for its Directors namely, Mr. POON Man Sum, Mr.
Al Kuiyu, Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson. Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, Mr.
CHAN Ngai Fan and Mr. HUANG Zhiying on update on
the GEM Listing Rules amendments; and (ii) has provided
reading materials on regulatory update to all the Directors
for their reference and studying.
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A6. Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 30 June 2018
are set out below:

A6. EEZ HFETHE

REEHEARARBE_Z

—N\FRA=+

BLEERT EFZE SR NEFTEZEEEH
MERA GO FEEINERNT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HER/BHME
Annual Special

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General General
Name of Director Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
EEnR Ezg ENZER FHzZEe REZEE RRAFAE BIRRAER
Executive directors:
HITEE :
Mr. POON Man Sum 25/25 - - - 171 3/3
EXAREE
Mr. Al Kuiyu 25/25 - - - 11 3/3
NETEE
Mr. HUNG Kenneth 8/11 - - 1/1 1/1 2/2
HERTE
Non-executive director:
HHTEE -
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson 24/25 - - - 11 1/3
KRS A
Independent non-executive directors:
BUFHTEE :
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai 24/25 6/6 6/6 2/2 11 2/3
HERERE
Dr. FUNG Kam Man 10/11 2/2 5/5 2/2 11 2/2
SR EL
Mr. ZHOU Jing 3/3 /1 2/2 1/1 - 1/2
BARxE
Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan 20/22 5/5 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
BRRELE
Mr. HUANG Zhiying 14/14 4/4 11 - - 1/1
BEALE
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Mr. ZHOU Jing resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company
on 10 August 2017. A total of 3 Board meetings, 1 Audit
Committee meeting, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings,
1 Nomination Committee meeting and 2 special general
meetings were held from 1 July 2017 to the date of his
resignation.

Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan was appointed and resigned as an
independent non-executive Director and the Chairman of
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and a
member of Audit Committee of the Company on 10 August
2017 and 5 September 2018 respectively. A total of 22 Board
meetings, 5 Audit Committee meetings, 4 Remuneration
Committee meetings, 1 Nomination Committee meeting,
1 annual general meeting and 1 special general meeting
were held from the date of his appointment to 30 June 2018.

Mr. HUNG Kenneth resigned as an executive Director and a
member of Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1
November 2017. A total of 11 Board meetings, 1 Nomination
Committee meeting, 1 annual general meeting and 2
special general meetings were held from 1 July 2017 to the
date of his resignation.

Dr. FUNG Kam Man resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 2 November 2017. A total of 11 Board meetings,
2 Audit Committee meetings, 5 Remuneration Committee
meetings, 2 Nomination Committee meetings, 1 annual
general meeting and 2 special general meetings were held
from 1 July 2017 to the date of his resignation.

Mr. HUANG Zhiying was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 2 November 2017. A total of 14 Board meetings,
4 Audit Committee meetings 1 Remuneration Committee
and 1 special general meeting were held from the date of his
appointment to 30 June 2018.

Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson resigned as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 July 2018. A total of 25 Board
meetings, 1 annual general meeting and 3 special general
meetings were held from 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.
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A7. Required Standard of Dealings

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities
(the "Own Code") on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”). Specific enquiry has been made of the Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Required
Standard of Dealings and the Own Code throughout the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Required Standard of Dealings (the
"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
“www.sinovisionworldwide.com” and on the GEM website
“www.hkgem.com”. All the Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommmendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2018, the Remuneration Committee
comprised a total of three members, namely Mr. Chan
Ngai Fan (Chairman), Mr. FONG Fuk Wai, and Mr. Huang
Zhiying. All of the Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and
the remuneration packages of Directors and members of
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted). The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
fransparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
generally reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company; reviewed the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewed and recommended the remuneration package
of Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan and Mr. HUANG Zhiying upon their
appointment as independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance records of each Committee member at
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2018 are set out in section A6 above.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the senior management for the
year ended 30 June 2018 falls within the bands from
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,500,000.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee

As af 30 June 2018, the Audit Committee comprised a total
of three members, namely Mr. FONG Fuk Wai (Chairman),
Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan and Mr. HUANG Zhiying, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee also possesses the appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing
the financial information and reports of the Group and
considering any significant or unusual items raised by the
financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with
and the terms of appointment of the external auditors and
making the relevant recommendation to the Board; and
reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system and
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements, results announcements
and reports for the year ended 30 June 2017, for the three
months ended 30 September 2017, for the six months
ended 31 December 2017 and for the nine months ended
31 March 2018; the financial reporting and compliance
procedures; the report from the management on the
Company’s risk management and internal control review
and process; the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties; and considered the
re-appointment of external auditors.

The external auditors have aftended two of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 30
June 2018, without the presence of executive Directors, to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

The attendance records of each Committee member at
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended
30 June 2018 are set out in section A6 above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditors.
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Nomination Committee

As at 30 June 2018, the Nomination Committee comprised
a total of three members, being three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan
(Chairman), Mr. FONG Fuk Wai and Mr. HUANG Zhiying. All
of the Nomination Committee members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommending any
changes to the Board; identifying qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and selecting and
making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors;
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company,
the Nomination Committee may make reference to
certain criteria such as the Company’s needs, integrity,
experience, skills, professional knowledge and the amount
of time and effort that a candidate will devote to carry
his/her duties and responsibilities. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection
process when necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the
Group; recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 1 November 2017; considered
and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan and Mr. HUANG Zhiying
as independent non-executive Directors and assessment
of the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors.
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The Board has adopted the "Board Diversity Policy” setting
out the approach to diversity on the Board. It is believed
that a truly diverse board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industrial
experience, background, gender and other qualities of
members of the board. These differences will be taken into
account in defermining the optimum composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for setting
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommends them to the Board for
adoption. The "Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, fo ensure its
effectiveness.

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2018 are set out in section A6 above.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Required Standard of Dealings and the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The management
has provided sufficient explanation and information fo
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Group put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS
Goals and Objectives

The Board has the overall responsibility fo evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
to ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management
and internal control systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities are summarised below:

Board

0 To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of
the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation
of an effective risk management and internal control
systems;

0 To oversee the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems; and

. To ensure that the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and infernal

audit.
Management
0 Designs, implements and monitors the risk

management and internal control systems;

0 Identifies and assesses the risks which threaten the
achievement of the strategic objectives;

. Reviews the risk areas and risk level;

0 Advises on matters raised by employees and the
holding company;

o Coordinates and promotes risk management
by ensuring that risk and activities processes
are operated efficiently and effectively and in

compliance with GEM Listing Rules; and

0 Reports periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and
Manage Significant Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

0 Identified the risks through discussion with the
management. Risk assessment questionnaire
was used fo document the risk identified by the
responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

0 Identified the existing controls and analysing risks in
tferms of consequence and likelihood in the confext
of those confrols.

Risk Response
0 Categorised and prioritized the identified risks;

0 Determined the strategy to handle the identified risk;
and

0 Developed the risk register and internal control audit
plan and determined the frequency of review and
control festing on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

0 On-going communication of monitoring results to the
Audit Committee which enables it to assess control of
the Group and the effectiveness of risk management
during the year, including:

- Risk questionnaires completed by the
management, risk register and internal audit
plan; and

- Fact finding report with recommendations on
the review and testing of internal controls on
certain operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group's
infernal audit function is performed by the management
of the Company, including analysing and appraising
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and infernal control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to assist
the Company to:

0 Perform the risk assessment on identified area and
report the findings and recommendations to the
management; and

0 Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material
controls and perform testing of internal controls on
certain operating cycles and areas in accordance
with the Company’s Internal Control Audit Plan.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Board has
conducted a review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance
controls (e.g. continuing connected fransactions) and risk
management. Such review have been made by discussion
with the Audit Committee, management and external
internal control consultant of the Company from time to
time, but at least once a year. The Company also has
an internal audit function to assist the Audit Committee
and the management to conduct internal control review
periodically. The Board will put in place to address
the identified area that shall be enhanced. The Board
considered that the existing risk management and internal
control systems are adequate and effective.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
in this annual report.
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The fees paid/payable to Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited,
the Company’s external auditors, in respect of audit

REE-_ZT—\FAA=THILFE  ®EZ
AR7% RIEBZRISE AT, B IS T AR A RISNERZ

services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June YRR EG T MEBAERARNER D
2018 are analyzed below: MR :
Type of services provided by the external auditors Fees paid/payable
MNEZBE TR 2 REEE 2 ENEA
(HK$'000)
(F#&7x)
Audit services - audit fee for the year ended BERE-EBE_T—\&~A=1H
30 June 2018 I FEZB%SE 1,000
Non-audit services - tax service fee, fee relating to 3E%$?HEF—%%IEHEW§ S|ER
the special audit, working capital forecast -3 STERLEMER
review fee and profit forecast review fee )SU'L IbEs TE ﬁwﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ 5
TOTAL: HeT 1,005
COMPANY SECRETARY F. QEI#HE
During the year ended 30 June 2018, Mr. LO Sze Hung, HE—T - \FARA=THLEFE  2ARE
3 2222 NV = % E
the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours E'%\/I%%i?TﬁX CNSIEUNEELE RS
of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and 5l ME*EE&H%E*DE& cRHEREZRE
knowledge. Biographical details of Mr. LO are set out in BERNAFRIESREREEERE | -
the section headed "Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies” in this annual report.
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS G. ERRRIREHFE

AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relafions
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes
the importance of fransparent and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company mainftfains a website at
www.sinovisionworldwide.com as a communication
platform with shareholders and investors, where the
Group'’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders
and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit 2, 28/F, Vertical Square, No. 28 Heung Yip Road, Wong
Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

RRBRE - BRF 2 BREBERIHIRE
ERRERINGRITE B G AR E R MR
B2 TR R o 78S [B IR A% PR i S
BRREAREMZEENE - ATERER
REEEHRERERE -

ZNA A% HEH: (www.sinovisionworidwide.com)
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Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the shareholder’s meetings.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders” meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.
The Company’s shareholders may convene a special
general meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene a special general meeting pursuant
to clause 58 of the Bye-laws by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the written requisition.

(2) Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the
requisition or not less than 100 shareholders may
put forward a proposal at a shareholders” meeting,
pursuant to the laws of Bermuda by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The proposal should be stated in the
written requisition and such written requisition should
be submitted as early as practicable to enable the
Company to make necessary arrangement (in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and in case of
any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).
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(3) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
clause 85 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
affend and vote at the general meeting shall send a
written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/
her infention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person fo be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day affer the dispatch of the nofice of such general
meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by laws. Shareholders may refer to the Bye-laws for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

During the Year, the Company has not made any
significant changes to the Bye-laws. An up-to-date version
of the Bye-laws is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
Bye-laws for further details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings of
listed issuers shall be voted by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The poll voting results shall be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each shareholders” meeting.
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I. INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and infernal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is fully aware of its obligations under the new
Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 effective from 1 January 2013 and the GEM Listing
Rules. In September 2013, a policy has been adopted by
the Board which sets out guidelines fo the Directors, officers
and all relevant employees of the Group to ensure inside
information of the Company is to be disseminated to the
public in equal and timely manner.

On behalf of the Board

POON Man Sum
Chairman

Hong Kong
21 September 2018

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Wg lLl\
FERENRENANRREZEFRAFEEET
M NRFFED THREREBENFES71EE
7 M EEGIFTXIVARR (B = T*-i*ﬂ*
HeER) RGEM EMRAI T Z B
—=FhA AEEERB—EHIE %W$
SEES  SRABRMBEEMES 21556
BUR - DERAT - REHIA A REARAE]
ZRFHEE -

RRESFE

FE

B

)

—N\FhA=+—H



Independent Auditor’'s Report

Ascenda CACFEU

R R[5

To the members of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
(formerly known as "DX.com Holdings Limited”)
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands and re-domiciled and
continued on 21 August 2015 in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (formerly known as "DX.
com Holdings Limited”) (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 66 to 207, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statfement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and nofes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
frue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and ifs consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
ofher ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that confext.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond fo our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed fo address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

FARET SR

RIEELZ 2 HXRHE - BRETTE/EZTELNA
HREZGAPBERRTREREZER - BSFEERR
SMBHRR LA ERERREBUMERR - M g
PULFFREFRREL - 5L IXEFHEMNE - A
EEECRRELSSENRLEERRNLEER

EEERTARERBA R BFA 7S M B HRANE
BRItz B BERZSHEREAFE
HEZ B - HHEH - BEE 2B LIEFRRRITARE
HeHb A M RREAE R ER M & 2 FaT
B - BEENTEMEFZER  BREY TSR
T 2 12F - REESMBRREREAERRERE
B o



Independent Auditor’'s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B AR S

FARESSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

0]

Recoverability assessment of the loan and interest receivables

FEW B 5 R F B AR 49 AT BT T A

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and note 18 to the consolidated financial statfements for
further information.

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan and interest
receivables was approximately HK$89,090,000 as at 30
June 2018.

E—SER B2 MBRRMTE24AR3ERESTRERES
TR - FUET R Af A RAR & B TS #RaR M TE18

EEER—Z-N\FRA=THNEKRERET SRR REE
#9/389,090,000/% 7T °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the recoverability of the loan
and interest receivables included:

- Obtaining an understanding of
how management estimated the
recoverability of the loan and interest
receivables and evaluating the
historical accuracy of the impairment
estimation by management (including
the loan agreements and assessment
of the collectability of the borrowers);

- Reviewing management’s assessment
of whether indicators of impairment
exist and evaluating this assessment,
including a challenge of the validity
and completeness of the indicators
identified with reference to our
knowledge of the business obtained
elsewhere in our audit (e.g. the
current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of the borrowers);

EERER B ERER RS RRRZ A @R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARESSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

0}

Recoverability assessment of the loan and interest receivables (Continued)

FEWRE 5 R F 2R 1 7 Bl 1 5T (AF)

The recoverability of loan and interest receivables is
estimated by the management through the application
of judgment and estimation. The Group’s policy
for recognition of impairment on loan and interest
receivables is based on the evaluation of recoverability,
ageing analysis and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the recoverability of the loan and interest
receivables including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of the borrowers.

YR SR M) B AR SRz AT W 0 14 e TR 3 3 P il X it
Al o BB AR E SRR B ARRADRE 2 BER TR IR
AR 2 Al - BREDOITRERERHIETmEE - R hZE
JEW R K ) SRR SR P U B B - B VR KB A (R FE SR
AR E B RGRARER)

Assessing the basis of management’s
assessment of recoverability of the loan
and interest receivables with reference
to the management’s evaluation of
borrowers’ creditworthiness, borrowers’
credit history including default or delay
in payments, borrowers’ settlement
records, subsequent settlements from
borrowers and ageing analysis of each
individual borrowers; and

Recalculating the amount of the
impairment on the loan and interest
receivables, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 30
June 2018.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B AZ BN RE

FARESSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

(i)

Provision for litigation and legal fee
FAREEE R

Reference is made fo notes 2.4 and 3 fo the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and notfes 25 and 40 fo the consolidated financial
statements for further information.

The Group is a defendant of a litigation in the U.S. in
respect of its e-commerce business through on-line sales
platforms since August 2012.

The carrying amount of the Group’s other payables and
accruals included provision for litigation and legal fee of
approximately HK$40,000,000, as at 30 June 2018.

The provision for litigation and legal fee is estimated by
the management through the application of judgment
and estimation. The Group’s policy for recognition of
the provision for litigation and legal fee is based on the
prior experience, legal advise and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the possible outcome of the
litigation.

E—TERB2HGREMERRME24R3EMESR 2 W ERH
BETBER - HET R ARG A B SRR MEE25 540 ©

BEEER T —F/\ARRXE-BEMEREMELEETR
ETEFRBEBIHFRZREA °

SER T N\FRA=TANEMENRIBLREAER 2R
Eﬁ@?ﬁuﬁu Kok & F###940,000,0004 7T
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B fé%‘i&réﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?i REHEFFAR REHIR 2 4
REf - BIEHKEHE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the provision for litigation and
legal fee included:

= Discussing with management and
the Company’s legal advisors to
understand the updated status of the
litigation and the possible outcome of
the litigation;

- Reviewing the related correspondences
between the Group and its legal
advisors as well as correspondence
with the court;

- Understanding and observing in
practice the actions that management
has taken in response to the litigation;
and

= Challenging and recalculating the
amount of the provision for litigation
and legal fee, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the provision for litigation
and legal fee as at 30 June 2018.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARESSEE»

Key Audit Matter
BRENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
REFTHEERRETSEHZEE

(i)

Impairment assessment of goodwill
BB E T

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and note 14 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The Group recognised goodwill with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$140,075,000 as
at 30 June 2018 arising from business combinations
regarding the acquisition of (i) property management
and property agency services; (ii) money-lending
business; and (iii) the operation of intellectual properties
("IP") rights licensing and international IP development,
media integrated marketing and distribution agency of
sports goods, respectively.

The impairment review of the goodwill is estimated by
the management through the application of judgement
and estimation. The Group’s policy for recognition of
impairment on goodwill is based on the evaluation
of the future result of the related cash generating
unit ("CGU"). The management has prepared future
cash flow forecasts (the “Forecasts”) to determine the
recoverable amount of each CGU. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU including the discount
rate, growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
tfurnover. During the year, an impairment of goodwill of
HK$8,251,000 on property management and property
agency services business was provided.

E—TENB2MGRE MBI T2 43 EHES 2 WERH
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

= Discussing with management and the
independent valuer to understand
the basis of valuation approach and
methodology, which is prepared based
on the Forecasts;

= Corroborating the management’s
assumptions with applicable
external benchmarks used within an
acceptable range;

- Assessing the historical accuracy of
the Forecasts, and sought appropriate
evidence for the major assumptions,
including the discount rate, growth
rate, terminal growth rate, gross
margin and turnover, used by the
management in assessing the
recoverable amount of the CGU; and

- Recalculating the amount of the
impairment on the goodwill, if any,
and assessing the sufficiency of the
impairment as at 30 June 2018.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B AR S

FARESSEE»

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

FRETTER REFHREBRENSHE L E
(iv) Impairment assessment of other infangible assefs
Hitt B\ & ERER

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for the directors’ disclosures of the
related accounting policies, judgements and estimates
and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The carrying amount of the Group’s ofher intangible
assets amounted to HK$8,887,000, in which, (i) as to
HK$3,900,000 was arising from an on-line sales platform
relevant to business of e-commerce segment; and (ii)
the remaining balance of HK$4,987,000 was arising from
certain concession rights on intellectual properties. The
Group has other intangible assets arising from two online
sales platforms in the amount of HK$20,975,000, which
had been fully impaired in prior years. During the year, no
impairment was provided for the other intangible assets.

The impairment review of the other intangible assets is
estimated by the management through the application
of judgement and estimation. The Group’s policy for
recognition of impairment on other intangible assets
is based on the evaluation of the recoverable amount
of the infangible assets. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the recoverable
amount of the other intangible assets including the
discount rate, growth rate, royalty rate and turnover.

E—TSENB2MGREMBRRME2.4N3EHES 2 HERH
SRR - AT REFHA RS SRS -
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f o EEMREREMETAEREL BE RSB EEY
AUE S B2 AT « XTSRS A2 T E S8
B - BEEARAN (BEMRE  HER  HHFEERMA) o

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of included:

- Discussing with management and the
independent valuer to understand
the basis of valuations approach and
methodology;

- Corroborating the management’s
assumptions with applicable
external benchmarks used within an
acceptable range;

- Assessing the historical accuracy of
the budgeted turnover of on-line sales
platform and the concession rights
on intellectual properties, and sought
appropriate evidence for the major
assumptions, including the discount
rate, growth rate and royalty rate used
by the management in assessing
the recoverable amount of the other
intangible assets; and

- Recalculating the amount of the
impairment on the ofther intangible
assets, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 30
June 2018.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
AR A EE S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is fo read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such infernal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability fo continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend fo liquidate the Company or fo
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but fo do so.

The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and fo issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability fo any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order fo design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's infernal confrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
AR A EE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability fo continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the dafe of our auditor’s
report. However, fufure events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
represent the underlying tfransactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
ofther matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and fo communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
exfremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Chi Yuen.

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chi Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02671

Hong Kong
21 September 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—t5F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$’000
Wi ar TR FHT
REVENUE ON 4,5 308,239 323,154
Cost of sales and services 5 on B S AR R RIS A 6 (207,556) (216,369)
Gross profit FEH 100,683 106,785
Other income and gains E A A R e 5 11,582 4,448
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ko SRR (54.498) (80,135)
Administrative expenses and other 1T E A R EMWEA
expense (138,781) (81,557)
Fair value loss on contingent JER AR B2 DT EEE
consideration payable 33 (886) -
Fair value gain on previously held B FTFEE R ERE 2
equity interest in associate N EWE 32(b) 2,070 -
Share of profit of an associate FEAGES & A B A 16 176 -
Finance costs B 7 (10,024) (349)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FREIAIE R 6 (89.678) (50,808)
Income tax expense FriSti & A 10 (782) (182)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEFEEIE (90.460) (50,990)
Loss attributable to: A& EGES
Owners of the Company PAUNSIEZ 2SN (77.975) (50,892)
Non-controlling interests FEPRRRAERS (12.485) (98)
(90.460) (50,990)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO KAREBRERSE ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ZEBREER
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted BEARREE
(Hong Kong cents) (B (2.81) (2.41)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
L E W

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

AN
N

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Loss for the year REEHIE (90.460) (50,990)
Other comprehensive income to be E bR e Uias 1S TE LA BB
reclassified o profit or loss BEFHfERER
in subsequent periods:
- Exchange differences arising on —BIRIRINETEREE 2
franslation of foreign operations N =R (1.410) (305)
- Decrease in fair value of available-for- —AHEEREATEZRD
sales investments (7.050) 979)
- Release of investment revaluation —REEHIEERENRER
reserve upon disposal of (EXE A= 1EE
available-for-sales investments 7,445 (56.695)
- Reclassification adjustment fo — AT ERERERIESE N
profit or loss on impairment loss DrERAEEER
on available-for-sales investments = 88
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE A F 2 E KM
YEAR (91.475) (57.881)
Total comprehensive income attributable FEIE 2 E R85
fo:
Owners of the Company NAREB A (78.993) (57.783)
Non-controlling interests JE AR RS (12,482) (98)
(91.475) (57.881)
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Consolido’red Statement of Financial Position

Re AR R

30 June 2018 —E—N\F/A=1+H

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 13 6,179 983
Goodwill Sk 14 140,075 17,409
Other intangible assets Hihmp & E 15 8,887 3,900
Interests in associates ik NCI R F 16 1,085 -
Available-for-sales investments AHEERE 17 13,000 29,700
Loan and interest receivables M E 3R 2 B B AR 18 - 20,000
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE E 28 3,011 -
Total non-current assets IERBNEEEARTE 172,237 71,992
CURRENT ASSETS /ﬁiﬁﬁg
Inventories FE 19 1,656 2,807
Trade receivables FELRE 5 8E 2K 20 25,236 4,197
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRFIE - mE Rk
receivables H b fE R IE 21 84,466 78,100
Loan and interest receivables U E R M) B BR K 18 89,090 74,161
Equity investments at fair value RN TES A RS RS E
through profit or loss 22 40,995 219
Pledged deposits EIERTER 23 310 310
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 23 43,046 94,458
Total current assets MENVE EETE 284,799 254,252
CURRENT LIABILITIES REE
Trade payables FERTE SRR 24 22,084 19,658
Other payables, deposits received — HAbfEFFIA « BUULE
and accruals N EE B A 25 52,629 63,231
Deposits received in advance iz 26 2,258 1,487
Tax payable e ® 2,799 761
Contingent consideration payable  FEff sk AH(E 33 13,156 -
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 92,926 85,137
NET CURRENT ASSETS & ERE 191,873 169,115
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 27 138,179 -
Contingent consideration payable — FEff sk AH(E 33 12,714 -
Total non-current liabilities SEREBERE 150,893 -
Net assets BERE 213,217 241,107
EQUITY ®
Equity affributable to owners of the  ZAA RIS ATE(GHER
Company
Share capital [N 29 27,762 27,762
Reserves e 30 169.613 213,365
197,375 241,127
Non-controlling interests FEPE Rk RS 15,842 (20)
Total equity fERAE 213,217 241,107
POON MAN SUM Al KUIYU
B XEF
Director Director
EF EF

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited

| ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 30 June 2018

GAREZDE

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=-F— \FAA=1TAILLFE

BE-Z-N\FXA=Z+THLFE

ATy 2017

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:
forthe year:
Bxchange diference arising on

onslofion of foreign operations

Decrease infair value of
availoble-forsoles investments

Release of invesiment revoluation
Tesenve upon disposal of avalloble-
forsoles investments

Totol comprehensive income:
forthe year

Equifyseffled share opfion
anongements (nofe 31)

Deemed porfial isposal of inferest in
subsicories (nofe 34)

Issue of convertile bonds (note 27)

Direct fronsacfion costs affrbufable fo
the equfly component (nofe 27)

30 June 2018

RoB-tftA-A
RERER
RERANRENE:

HRERIRREL
Eizg
IREERADTEZRY

REETRLERRN
RASHERDR

TERENELR

IEERERRERA(HEY)

filinit e
(hs34)

HATRRER ()

BEBAREERRGIA
(Hi0)

RoB-NEARZ1R

Attributable fo owners of the Company
FDAREARG
Treasury
share Available-
Convertible ~ Confributed Teserve/ forsales
bonds surplus/ Capital Share investment  Exchange Accumu- Non-
Share equty Capital ~ redemption opfion  revaluation fluctuation Other loted confroling Total
premium fesene fesenve resenve Tesene fesenve reserve Tesene losses Total interests equity
ERRS iEE

TRREE  KEBM/  BR/EX BER  RREN  EiRE
BfiER  REGR KRR REER i & BE  AbEE  ZiER S FERRE  REEE
HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK§ 000
iR it TR iR it i TR it T T Ti7 it
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Consolida’red Statement of Changes in Equity
AR B

Year ended 30 June 2018 &#E—=%

n\/T\

—N\FERA=ZTHLEFE

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE_ZT—t+FEA=THIFE
Atibutable to owners of the Company
ARTEEARR
Treosury
share Avaioble-
Confributed resenve/ forsoles
surplus/ Captol Share  invesment  Exchange  Accumu- Non-
Share Share Capital  redemption opfion  revaluafion  fluctuction loted controling Total
copfal ~ premium fesene Tesene Tesene Tesene Tesene losses Tofol inferesfs equily
Bl Bt
BARH/  BE/EK B 1R&Ef Eigy
BE BhER  AABE  EEER i ik B ZnER o fehER  EReR
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Tin Tén Tén Tin Tin TEn T Tin Tin Tin Tin
Ay 2016 -7 1398 108915 706 352 3763 8191 %) o3 13 B 13009
Lossforfhe year TEGER - - (08%) (3089 %) (5090
Other comprehensive income KEREfRENR
forthe year:
Exchange diference arising on BRENSHREL ENEE
anslation of foreign operafions - (305) - (305) - (305)
Decreose n fair volue of THEERELTEZRY
avalableforsales invesiments - (979) - - (979) - (979)
Release of investment revaluafion REETRLERENRESRER
reserve pon dlisposal of avalclle- B
forsoles investments - (5.6%) - - (5.6%) - (5.6%)
Reclassficafion acjustment fo HTRERANRERESNAE
proft or loss on impaimentloss ]
on available-orsales investments - 8 - - 8 - %
Totol comprehensive income KER2ENESE
forthe year - (8,586) (305) (50892) (57,783) (%) (57,881)
Issue of shores, nefof shores ssued B4R 1R
e1penses Eii
- July 2016 GM Plocing -ENECR-RERES
(note 9(0)()) E(REN0)() 295 8257 - - 3215 - 31,215
- Qctober 2016 M Placing - NETREERELES
(note 29(a) i) AR 4688 50761 - - 57,455 - 57,455
- Apill 2017 GM Placing -IE-CERR-HiRERES
(note 29(ci) BN o)) 3550 3878 - - 442 - 442
Equityseffled share opfion IR RERE ()
arngements (note 31) - 7o - - 70 - 7o
Erercise of share opfions G
(notes 29(0) and note 31) (HE(0)RAEY) 2580 36,05 (4473) - - 3,163 - 36163
At30June 2017 RF-tERA=1E 21,762 2381 77,008 352" - (3%5)" @nr (%028 A7 () 21,07

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$169,613,000 (2017: HK$213,365,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 30 June 2018 & E—=%

FERTRER

—N\FERA=ZTHLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiEE TR FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBCHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BBt E 18 (89.678) (50,808)
Adjustments for: PR
Finance costs BE AR 7 10,024 349
Bank interest income ERITALSA 5 (21) (157)
Dividend income from equity BATEABRZ
investments at fair value through IRAIGEFTISAR S
profit or loss WA 5 2 a2
Fair value loss on equity investments BATESABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss A E A FEEE 6 4,284 9,487
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB kSR
equipment e 6,13 2,058 1,127
Gain on disposal of a domain name e A 2 W 5,6 - (2,028)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEVE - BE RS
and equipment Z s 6,13 - (83)
Loss on disposal of an available-for- HEHEEREZ
sales investments EE 6,17 20,079 384
Impairment loss on loan receivables TH&Z% K2 EETE 18 20,000 -
Impairment loss on an available-for- SR EREEE
sales investments 6,17 - 88
Impairment loss on other infangible HthmpaERERE
assets 6,15 = 1,715
Equity-settled share option expenses A&7 45 55 R AR e ) <2 6 5,691 710
Impairment loss on goodwill EE R EEE 8,251 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets — Efth &2 & FE & 85 6 604 -
Share of result of an associate i3 N e 16 (176) -
Fair value gain on previously held i@&ﬁﬁ%—rﬂ?ﬁ%@ﬁ%%
equity interest in associate N EWRES 36(b) (2.070) -
Written off of property, plant and %% BB REEZ
equipment 1 5H 6,13 346 -
Fair value loss on contingent J'EHjWMHaZ AR
consideration payable 886 -
Impairment loss on trade receivable fH&%ﬂ%%mﬁk@Eﬂﬁ 6 99 -
Reversal of provision of litigation and BEIFFA N AR E R
legal fee B 5,6 (9.452) -
Reversal of provision of long service BoRARG B E
payment 5,6 (192) (494)
Reversal of provision of labor claim B4 TREEE 5,6 (307) -
(29.586) (39,722)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories FERD, (35 ) 1,249 (2,807)
Increase in trade receivables e E 5 BRFRIE AN (17.787) (2,.979)
Increase in loans and inferest receivable EEH&%?&&%‘J%&E%@BD (14,929) (45,693)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and  FB U ~ &4 L HAFE
other receivables Hﬁﬂlﬁfﬁié\ 702 37,515
Increase in equity investments at fair BRATEF AB & 2R
value through profit or loss AL (45.060) (4,234)
Increase/(decrease) in tfrade payables  FEE Z8EFE M,
(R) 1,304 (14,638)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, HAbEMNZIE - Bz e
deposits received and accruall MEFTERACRD),
1@ (8.211) 8,954
Decrease in deposits received in TEWIR SR
advance (10,754) (2.259)
Cash used in operations K %ﬁ%ﬁﬁFﬁ fﬁi (123,072) (65,863)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EH% BHE (448) (200)
Overseas taxes paid Eﬁiﬁ\\ﬁlﬁﬁ (1.266) (€1))
Net cash flows used in operating KEXBIARERE
activities peit (124,786) (66,094)
2018 F§ | HERRERER AR
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Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

Ny =il —
,NT\ Eﬁi/}lb%%
Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F TE—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FERT FA&IT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BRI TR 21 157
Purchases of items of property, plant BEYE  BELEEZ
and equipment 1BH 13 (5.874) (658)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEEMEREE 15 (2.555) -
Purchase of available-for-sales EErHHEREA
investments (13,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMREZ
plant and equipment P15 308 1,860 85
Net proceeds from deemed partiall ZE{’EEdEWE AlE S
disposal of interest in subsidiaries s Zﬁﬁﬁmlﬁﬁrﬁﬁ 34 20,000 -
Dividend received B4R E 12 12
Acquisition of an associate Y *ﬁ N (15.000) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A 32 (16,797) (66,015)
Proceeds from disposal of a domain tljﬁﬂz%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
name 5,6 - 2,028
Proceeds from disposal of available- tle—H HERERE
for-sales investments I 9.896 19,393
Decrease in pledged deposits BT R - 19,908
Net cash flows used in investing activities #&/EBFTARERE
5 (21,437) (25,090)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETEHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EAFE 27 (1.451) (349)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN PTG RUE 29 - 166,259
Proceeds from issue of convertible 1T A AR (B S 20E
bonds 27 97,500 -
Repayment of bank loan BERIRITER - (10,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities  BEEBMERESRE
HER 96,049 155,910
NET (DECREASE) /INCREASE IN CASH iﬁ.ﬁ&iﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁﬁ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W), R (50.174) 64,726
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning i%ﬂﬁi&iﬁ EEER
of year 94,458 30,017
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ER&8) 2 4% - 57
net (1.238) (285)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRBEELEEER
END OF YEAR 43,046 94,458
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND H&RBESZEIBH &K
CASH EQUIVALENTS D
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTHER 23 43,046 94,458
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (formerly known as
"DX.com Holdings Limited”) (the "“Company”) was a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 March 2000 under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 6 August 2015, the domicile of the Company has been
changed from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of
de-registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as
an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The re-
domicile was completed on 21 August 2015.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 28 December
2017, the English name of the Company has been
changed from "DX.com Holdings Limited” to "Sino Vision
Worldwide Holdings Limited” and the Chinese name "1 4l
BAEREBRAF)" has been adopted as the secondary name
to replace the existing Chinese name of the Company
"DX.comiZIRBRAF]".

The change of domicile has no impact on the continuity
and the listing status of the Company.

The registered office of the Company was located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 2, 28/F, Vertical Square, No. 28 Heung Yip Road,
Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) e-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform; (ii) money-lending
business; and (iii) provision of property management
and property agency services in Hong Kong. During the
year, the Group extended ifs business info the operation
of intellectual properties ('IP”) rights licensing and
internatfional IP development, media infegrated marketing,
and distribution agency of sports goods business through
the acquisitions of certain subsidiaries.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

DEIREEEH

i B R A BR 2 7 (BT #8[ DX.comiZ i E
RARD(TRRAR DR -_ZEZZE=+HH
REFESHERRZERSHEEMKLA
BEREMERE - RARBROHR -_ZTZZTEN
A-BEBRBHERSMERAR ([HEFT])
GEM_ET ©

BENR-ZE—RF N\ARNBAERERRNIR
FRIRE BB —IBFRESR - ARRR
RBAEBBERASEE 2 - #AAF
2t mRSHEERARRERRER
FEEPINER R R A AFEFE - BN
“E-—RFNAAZT—HREK

REAANRE—ZE—+F+ A= +/\BRR
TERFRERIANE BB RIIRESR - AR
RIE X ZFEE A DX.com Holdings Limited ]
¥ 22 A& [ Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings
Limited | - rERAN A1 32 T[4 B R 1A S
BRABERE =B UBRARFIREF
X AT DX.comZR AR AR ] -

A NG S S b VA 3 DR

2

2R N B 9% = B A2 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

ARREREE M ERBRMNELB285
5 HE28IE2E o

AEBFERE()EFEFEREHA LHET
& (NEEES  R>IDNESREDESE
RYERBRE - REA - AEEEBUES
THIE A AR RS A A EERE ([ AN
EREDFERBBRASEREALE  HEnee
HRDHRIPEBAMEFER

2018 4 | FHFERERAERAT

73



74

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

1. 2EIREERER

YRR BE R

AABEZMBARZFEHIINAT

follows:
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and  registered share aftributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
ERAL/ EMR BRALER/

£ TEs EMRA ARAREREA DL TREHR

Direct Indirect

EE 3
EPRO E-commerce Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$500 51 - Investment holding
(note c)(Hititc) AERUES 500%7  (2017:100) RAZR

(2017:US$100)  (ZB—+5:
(Z2—t%: 100)
100%7)

EPRO E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 51 E-commerce and provision
HEETHBERAR Bl 10077 (2017:100) of on-line sales platform
(Z2—+%: EFEER
100) REBLHEETS
Geekdigg Limifed Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 51 Investment holding
EATAHERERAT Bl 10,000% 7 (2017:100) RAZR

(Z2—tF:

100)
SELR)EERNERAR The People’s Republic US$100,000 - 5] E-commerce and provision
(notes a & c)(fiiztake) of China (the "PRC") 100,000 7T (2017:100) of online soles platform
PEARKAE([HE]) (Z2—t%: EFRER
100) REMLHETS
MTHEEFAEERAT PRC RMB500,000 - 5] E-commerce and provision
(notes a & c)(fiiztakc) EF AR500,00070 (2017:100) of on-line sales platform
(Z2—rF: EFEER
100) REMLHEETS
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Year ended 30 June 2018 & E—=%

=
RB

B H5 Rk B ot

—N\FERA=ZTHLFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2 BRIREBEER
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (#)
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and  registered share aftributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
HRRL/ R BRTEER/
1 TEE R EA ARAREREE DL TREHR
Direct Indirect
EE 3
Dragon Champ E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 51 E-commerce and provision
(note b) N 1T (2017:100) of online soles platform
ERETEBERAAMID) (Z2—t%: EFRER
100) REMLHETS
Lujolujo Asia Limited (note c)(Fiztc) Hong Kong HK$60,000 96.17 - Dormant
& 60,0007 HEXH
Success Beauty Limifed (note ¢) British Virgin Islands Uss2 100 - Investment holding
REBRARHEC) RERTES VeSS RERR
Ever Great Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Money-lending business
BERBERAT & 181 REEH
Central Pearl Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 - Investment holding
(note ) AERAKS 1007t RAZR
ERRERRAT ()
Full Profit Property Services Company Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Provision of property
Limited (nofe c) N 1T management and
EENERBERAR (M) property agency services
REDEKEER
WERERS
Rainbow Easy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of management
BEBRAR BA 10,000% ¢ and administration services
RHERE RITHR
2018 3 | FHERFZERARAR



No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2 8R&EBEENR =)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER (#)
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and  registered share aftributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
HRRL/ R BRTEER/
1 TEs HREAR ARAREREA DL TREHR
Direct Indirect
ER 3

Sense Media Group Limited British Virgin Islands Usst 100 - Investment holding
(notes ¢ & d) RERNHE 10 (2017:Nil€) RERR

=BERERAR (fEckd)
Sense Media Group Limited (note d) Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
=BERERAR(HEd) & 17 (2017: Nil ) RERR
PERERE UL ERERAT PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 IP rights licensing and
(nofes ¢ & d)(fitzFcld) $E  AK#5,000,0007 (2017: Nil &) infernational development,
media integrated marketing
business

NRERKERERRE

REGARERHE
Strong Network Infernational Limited British Virgin Islands US$200 100 - Investment holding
(notes ¢ &e)(Mizkcke) RERNHE 200%7  (2017:Nil &) RERR
FERMXICEERRAA PRC  RMB20,000,000 - 100 Distribution agency, sales and
(notes ¢ & e)(Mizkcke) BB AR%20,000,000 (2017:Nil ) morkefing channel of licensed
T IP products and sports goods

B AERES R ENEANA
BhiE . HEREREE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Group has a
structured entity during the year ended 30 June 2018 and

its information is as follows:

PEIREEEN 2

B RER (@)

% EMMBARSN  RBE=F—\FXA
=+RIEFER  REBRE RS EER
YRR AEWENMT :

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and  registered share attributable to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
Eal A3 1) BRITLER
£ R R AAREEEEADL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HiZ f
Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information PRC RMB8,700,000 - 51 Dormant
Technology Limited (notes ¢ &) H AR8,700,0007T (2017:100) BmER
AIEREEEERITERAR (ZF—tF:
(HaEckf) 100)
Notes: BaE -

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign owned
enterprises under the PRC law.

(b) The name of subsidiary was changed to Dragon Champ
E-commerce Limited on 12 August 2016.

(¢) Noft audited by Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited.

(d) As detailed in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, these subsidiaries were newly acquired on 7
August 2017.

(e) As detailed in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, these subsidiaries were newly acquired on 25
January 2018.

(0) Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information Technology Limited
("Shenzhen Huakai Fugui”) is a structured entity controlled by
the Group. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
of the opinion that the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of Shenzhen HuaKai Fugui
and is required to consolidate its result into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

(@ WEMBABRDRESBEEAEEM A EE
A

)y HEZFE-—RFENAT+ZHZHEARRMER
REEETHBARAR e

© LFORREFUHDEHFHERADLE
Fit -

(@) B ARBEANIEI2() ML - HEH
BARR =T L% /\ AL AN -

(e) HWEREFBIMKMITEI2(0) sttt - Z5HT
BRARR-ZE—\F— A=t hR#HEWRE

RIERABTERFESERMAERIB(DRINER
BE )R MRS EE 2 FIRERKL
AR ARRER(EF])RRASEARE
BERIEREENTBREERRETE
EHEEEEAEE L GAMTERERA

BEERA - ERAFINARAIMBRREER
BRFEEENBRAEREEFENEES
7o BERR  NHEMHBRARNFE/S
RIRBRILR

2018 £ | FEFEBZERARAA
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No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

n\/T\

& PR

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™), and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of the Stock
Exchange and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, available-
for-sales investments and contingent consideration
payable, which have been measured at fair value. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded fo the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and a
structured entity (collectively referred to as the "Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
confrolled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee). When the
Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 HRIZEE )

Basis of consolidation (Confinued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries and a
structured entity are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries and a structured entity
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue fo be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and fo the non-controlling interests, even if it results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balances. All
infra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to fransactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Any confingent consideration payable to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only fo the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. The
subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration payable that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on
how the contingent consideration payable is classified.
Contingent consideration payable that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contfingent consideration payable that is classified
as an asset or a liability is remeasured fo its fair value af
subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
tfo one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary
and a structured entity, without a loss of confrol, is
accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary or a structured
entity, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary or a structured entity, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
ofther comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

GEREEES)

BB A T R A TR A AR ST A RN A B 2 AT
W BEPEER - WEA B e HEHE
RE o MBA T RIS HRAEBA T AR 2 25
AEEEEEEIES B RIERAAE  BEES
BIEIER FE B AL

B R H A 2 RS XEAKIR B T 5B
REBRRAREE AR - BB
SEHOFEI R KR EAL AR o EAKEK
BRRIRETNR ZEBEHMASEAN R R
BEEAE  #xm WA RAXERSREE
NERE IR B RBRE -

A BT S T R 2 (AT R S N B TR UL
Bz A HERR - RREREZHE - ER
SEIR BN A EHIE (R AUE B HEE12
8 7)) AATERIS A BN WS B i 2 X FEZ H
AR - TREERR - NS ERTEB AR
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Z PR EIRE - BIAR ERER() LM B A Bl s IR A
BRI AR ZEE(RERR)RARE - (i)
(A EFR AR #E 25 2 BRTE 1B Kk (i) R E RS N RC 8% 2
SRS =T REROERREZAFE -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first fime for the current year’'s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs  HKFRSs (Amendments)

2014-2016 Cycle

The nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(a) The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to
make disclosures that aim to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities. Reconciliations of
various types of the Group’s financing liabilities are
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements. Other than such additional disclosures,
the application of the amendments has not had
any material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) The amendments to HKAS 12 clarify when unrealised
losses on a debt instrument measured at fair value
would give rise to a deductible temporary difference
and how to evaluate whether sufficient future taxable
profits are available to utilise a deductible temporary
difference. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group.

(¢) Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
include an amendment to HKFRS 12 that clarifies
that, when an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest
in a joint venture or an associate) is classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets held for Sale and Discontinued operations,
it is not required to disclose summarised financial
information for that subsidiary, joint venture or
associate, as required by HKFRS 12 Disclosure of
Inferests in Other Entities. The amendments have had
no impact on the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments fo HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments fo HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments fo HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(FRIC)nt 22
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications fo HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28!

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
fo be applicable to the Group is as follows:

(a) HKFRS 2 - Share-Based Payment

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment fransaction
with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order fo meet the employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment fransaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
seffled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used fo account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments infroduce an exception so that
a share-based payment transaction with net share
seftlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-seftled share-based
payment transaction, the fransaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. On adoption, entities are required
to apply the amendments without restating prior
periods, but retrospective application is permitted
if they elect to adopt for all three amendments and
other criteria are met. The Group will adopt the
amendments from 1 July 2018. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

2.3 EEMERERZEEBHHER
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The standard intfroduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS
Q9 from 1 July 2018. The Group will not restate
comparative information and will recognise any
fransition adjustments against the opening balance
of equity at 1 July 2018. During the year, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment of the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts
relate to the classification and measurement and the
impairment requirements and are summarised as
follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at
fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held as
available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the
investments are infended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option to present fair value changes
in other comprehensive income. Gains and
losses recorded in other comprehensive
income for the equity investments cannot be
recycled to profit or loss when the investments
are derecognised.
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2.3 I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based
on an expected credit loss model either on
a twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The
Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are
estfimated based on the present values of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of
its frade receivables. Furthermore, the Group
will apply the general approach and record
twelve-month expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the possible default events
on its other receivables within the next twelve
months (add any other debft instruments as
applicable).

(c) HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) - Sales or

contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
fransaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventfures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 Bff{ERERZEBHER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HZER )
STANDARDS (Continued)
(d) HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with (d) BEEUHBRELAEIGHE -F

Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for tfransferring goods or services to a customer.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. Either a full
retrospective application or a modified retrospective
adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. The Group will adopt HKFRS 15 on from 1
July 2018 and plans to adopt the full retrospective
approach. During the year, the Group has performed
a detailed assessment on the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 15.
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2.3 I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
(d) HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Continued)

The Group's principal activities consisted of in (i)
e-commerce and provision of online sales platform;
(i) money-lending business; (iii) provision of property
management and property agency services; (iv)
the operation of IP rights licensing and international
IP development, media integrated marketing and
distribution agency of sports goods. The Group
does not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 will
have a significant impact on the Group's financial
performance and financial position. However, the
presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS
15 are more detailed than those under the current
HKAS 18. The presentation requirements represent
a significant change from current practice and
will significantly increase the volume of disclosures
required in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Many of the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed
that the impact of some of these disclosure
requirements will be significant. In particular, the
Group expects that the notes to the consolidated
financial statements will be expanded because of
the disclosure of significant judgements made on
how the transaction prices have been allocated to
the performance obligations, and the assumptions
made to estimate the stand-alone selling price
of each performance obligation. In addition, as
required by HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate
revenue recognised from confracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are
affected by economic factors.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.3 EEMIEREN 2 EBEEER
H2E8 )

H ==

(d) BFEMBHREEDE1555 -

Fe&yzWasE)
$%IZI§¥F@%®%%%%&%
HELHET A (DEEXES )R
1%%5@&%%&@%% (iv) & &
TR B B E R -
BIREEEEHREBESAR - ~F
BT T BN B B IS I 2RI 15
SRS AR R 2 B SR IR R B IS AR R EE
EBERTE o R - BN HRELER
F15 2V REERETREAIEEE
FTERIZE 185 E AFMA - 2R TEHIR
THCEME ERE (L - B RIBIEMA
SEGEMBMRAFRES - HHH
BREEAFISRNTEREREESSE
R WEAEEB B EERTE
IREBBIEFTEKN - LHRZ - ARMR
SEBMNASRERNEERAMTS
HEANEENB L EEMELRRERR
ERMBARABEITRE - MAKEE
HAAR & B RS TR MR 3G 00 o bSOl » 1R
REBMBHREENEISHRZIEE + A
%IHAD?»JW R PHERR Y W 2
NEAERHIKERESRENEE - &
B BEETREEENAZEEREY
ZNHHE o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M T

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(e) HKFRS 16 - Leases

2.3 EEMERERZEEBHHER
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The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose
to apply the standard using either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 July 2019. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
16 upon adoption and is considering whether it
will choose to take advantage of the practical
expedients available and which fransition approach
and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements, at 30 June
2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately HK$14,701,000. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may
need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will
be needed to determine the amount of new rights
of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating
to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered info before the date of adoption.
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2.3 I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)
® HK(FRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency

Transaction and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides
guidance on how to determine the date of
the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as
a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as
deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the inferpretation
on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis,
either from the beginning of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the consolidated financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity
first applies the interpretation. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1 July
2018. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EffifEREN2Z2EEBUHKEEH
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEH )
STANDARDS (Continued)

(9) HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income (9) BB ERIBREZREEES)

Tax Treatment

HK(FRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred)
when fax freatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12,
nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an
entity makes about the examination of tax freatments
by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or refrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment fo the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 July 2019.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-
ferm inferest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stafted in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group'’s investments
in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group's investments in associafes.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.4 TEEFTHRHBE

Hyr“/A\E_H: =

BiE N AR IEARE R — T D R20%AX 17
RERE 2 REERI B AREBEHEA{THEEAN
%%ﬁﬁ’] BH - Ej( ZE"?JZ%/ /\&é{ﬁ%ﬂ]

AEERBZARNKRE D RAEG S AR
REESEHEEFEREMRERIER @ £
FaMBHRRRFIIE -

ERAREFEZ AT — RS BERELA
B DAMEHE B o ANEEEIGEE A RIRIEE
BEEREMEEEKETID BT ALZAEZE
REAMERE ZERER © 1IN - EBEARR
EmNEEERA-BEE  AIAEETEES
AT B E RSB RIERE B/ (&
B - AEEHEEBE N AR HHASEBEE
N BRI A AR AR - HRER
BIEREEEZEERBENREARIN - Y8
B &8N R FTEE AE VP B Y A AR R BB & A R
W&z —&5 -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration fransferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group fo the former
owners of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value
or af the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designatfion in accordance with the
confractual terms, economic circumstances and perfinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separafion of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any confingent consideration payable to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration payable classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration payable that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent setflement is accounted for
within equity.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity inferests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
ofher assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
unifs or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

When goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operatfion when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the disposed operatfion and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly tfransaction between
market parficipants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
info account a market participant’s ability o generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for idenfical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assefs and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether tfransfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash generating unit’s value in use
and ifs fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unif fo which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assef. An
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statfement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used fo determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited fo the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related fo the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary or the other entity);

(iiy  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or fo the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at infervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
fo its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33'/,%
Motor vehicles 20% o 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, af least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intfangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value atf the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intfangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the infangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assetfs with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
fo finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Concession rights on intellectual properties

The concession rights on infellectual properties represented
the concession rights to use certain intellectual properties
in the Greater China Region, which were granted by the
owners of the intellectual properties for a period ranging
from 3 to 5 years. Concession rights on intellectual
properties granted separately are measured on initial
recognifion at cost. The cost of concession rights on
infellectual properties acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the acquisition date.

The useful lives of concession rights on intellectual
properties are assessed to be finite. The concession rights
on intellectual properties with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the concession rights on intellectual properties may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for concession rights on intellectual properties with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus fransaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except for the case of financial assets recorded aft fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets aft fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as af fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
frading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets aft fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy
set out for “revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 and
satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
fo those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated as fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking info account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intenfion and
ability fo hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sales financial investments

Available-for-sales investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available-for-sales
are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intfended
fo be held for an indefinite period of fime and which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sales financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sales investment
revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is defermined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Dividends earned are reported
as dividend income, and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as other income.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sales financial investments
(Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sales financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
fo inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets, if management has the ability and
infention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sales category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

0 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
0 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset; or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights fo receive cash
flows from an asset or has entfered into pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor fransferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In the case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The fransferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assetfs is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues o be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
fransferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted af
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses af the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. "Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss - is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not reversed through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Increases in their fair value affer impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgment. In making this judgment the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the
amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on debt
instruments are reversed through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, if the subsequent increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring affer the impairment loss was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable tfransaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, deposits received and accruals,
convertible bonds and contingent consideration payable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as af fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they
are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
ferm. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for tfrading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss and designated af the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 and
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial guarantee conftracts

Financial guarantee confracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability af its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable fo the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
the best estimate of the expenditure required fo settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilifies

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
ferms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of tfransaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion opfion is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apporfioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

Offsefting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis in
finished goods. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

2.4 FEEFBERBME 2

EAN=V ¢ )

A] 2 % (& 55

A BB THRRES DI RIBHRRE
HRABME  LMBRRBHA - NBEITAHRR
s - BEDH 2 ATENESETTHRRE
HrTSFIRET - TSR Ak AR
A ARPAE  EEERKEEAL - %
THS BRI X SR A4 5 B SR ATHE -
T S S 7 B B A 2 PO SR ST AL AR o R
ErEEEFEREREEETIE - XK
AR B RERZET AR ERENRES
EEiER D 2 LI ARk ES > B (g
wmEb D Z R R e

EE TR

HIREAG] ETEE ] AR ITHSE 2 1R - B
BN FREEL G R RABERAEREN
Bt AeMAERSMEA & EAL LI
FEEIARBRRRE -

FE

FEERANEENGRRESR T ER 2T &
BREZBIRE AR o B M2 A BRI
FENEFTE o ATERFEDRE G EERE
H o EHGTH R ETE 2 E ARt

Jee
(=
Eaal

2018 4 | FHFERERAERAT

109



110

No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

n\/T\

& PR

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including ferm deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in
advance. Revenue is recognised and deferred revenue
is released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the corresponding services are rendered.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
fo be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted fo their present values as appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred ftax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all faxable
tfemporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of faxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be confrolled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assetfs are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that faxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
tfo the extent that it is probable that the tfemporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available fo allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the fax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
fo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates o an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is infended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary
assets, the grants are recorded at the fair value of the
non-monetary assets and released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful lives of
the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with
no or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction
of a qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the
government loans is determined using the effective interest
rate method, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Financial liabilities” above. The benefit of the
government loans granted with no or at a below-market
rate of inferest, which is the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loans and the proceeds received,
is freated as a government grant and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) trading of goods via e-commerce and distribution
of sports goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) provision of on-line sales platforms, property
management and property agency services,
development of international IP, media consulting
and integrated marketing income from media
business, when the services are rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument tfo the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

(d) franchise income arising from IP rights licensing, on a
time proportion basis over the franchise period; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements fo sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer confributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The confributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the cenfral
pension scheme.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute fo the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-setftled fransactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a "Binomial Model”.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of the reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group'’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a year represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken info account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other condifions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been
met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include
a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are
tfreated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original ferms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial fo the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-seftled award is cancelled, it is tfreafed
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the conftrol of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are freated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding opftions is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presenfted
in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$"), which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates atf the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entfities are translated info Hong Kong dollars af
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulfing exchange differences are recognised in ofther
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
franslated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Income faxes

Significant judgements on the future tax freatment of
certain fransactions are required in defermining income tax
provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
fransactions and tax provisions are recorded accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in fax
legislation.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgments (Continued)

Classification between available-for-sales
investments and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

The Group defermines whether an equity investment is an
available-for-sales investment or equity investment through
profit or loss, based on the infention of time to be held.
Judgement is made on the classification of newly acquired
equity investments in accordance with HKAS 39.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Confingent consideration payable

The fair value of the Group’s contingent consideration
payable has been determined taking info account the
forecasted profits of the acquired entities for the future
periods. The valuation requires the Group to make estimates
about future period’s profits of the acquired entities with
reference to their business plan to be implemented and
future market conditions, and hence they are subject to
uncertainty.

Provision for impairment of frade receivables
and loan and interest receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of trade
receivables and loan and interest receivables of the
Group is based on the assessment of collectability, ageing
analysis and management’s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group are deteriorated, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. During the year, the Group provided
an impairment loss on loan and interest receivables of
HK$20,000,000. Details of which are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred fax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely fiming and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Further details are contained in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result
of technical innovation. Management will change the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different from
the previously estimated lives. It will also write-off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Conftingent liabilifies in respect of lifigation and
claim

The Group has been engaged in a litigation and
claim since 2012. Contingent liabilities arising from this
litigation and claim has been assessed by management
with reference to legal advices. Provisions on the
possible obligation, if appropriate, is made based on
management’s best estimates and judgements. Further
details are stated in note 40 fo the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The management of the Group determines whether
goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. During the year ended 30 June 2018, an impairment
of goodwill of HK$8,251,000 on property management and
property agency services business (2017: Nil) was provided.
Further details are stated in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of non-current assets (other than
goodwill)

The management of the Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are test for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales fransactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries

The policy for the provision for impairment of amounts
due from subsidiaries is based on the evaluation of
recoverables of accounts and on the management’s
judgment. A considerable amount of judgment is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of the amount.

Provision for impairment of interests in
subsidiaries and a sfructured entity

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries and a
structured entity are required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiaries and a structured
entity in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Provision for impairment of available-for-sales
investments

The determination of whether available-for-sales
investments are impaired requires significant judgement.
For listed available-for-sales investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. In assessing
whether it is prolonged, the decline is evaluated against
the period in which the fair value of the asset has been
below its original cost. In assessing whether it is significant,
the decline in fair value is evaluated against the original
cost of the asset at inifial recognition. The Group also takes
info account other factors, such as the historical data on
market volatility and the price of the specific investment,
significant changes in technology, markets, economies
or the law, as well as industry and sector performance
and the financial information regarding the investee that
provide evidence that the cost of the equity securifies
may not be recoverable. This requires a significant level of
management judgement which would affect the amount
of impairment losses in profit or loss. Further details are
stated in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group was principally engaged in e-commerce
and provision of on-line sales platform, money-lending
business; and provision of property management and
property agency services in Hong Kong. During the year,
the Group extended ifs business into the operation of IP
rights licensing and international IP development, media
integrated marketing and distribution agency of sports
goods business.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their nature and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) e-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform;
(b) money-lending business;

(c) provision of property management and property
agency services; and

(d) [P rights licensing and international IP development,
media infegrated marketing and distribution agency
of sporfs goods business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment (loss)/profit, which is a measure of adjusted
loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except that
intferest income, finance costs, gain/(loss) from equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sales investments, as well as head office and
corporatfe expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assetfs exclude available-for-sales investments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and
unallocated head office and corporate assefs as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude convertible bonds and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RE9#&R#
(Continued) _ L
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-F-\FAASTALEE
IP rights
licensing and
infernational IP
development,
media
Provision of infegrated
property  marketing and
E-commerce management distribution
and provision Money- and property agency
of onine lending agency  of sports goods
sales platform business services business
segment segment segment segment Total
HARERRER
ERAREERY
EFEBR Rt BRGAEH
Ritat EBRNERE HRAERE
HETASD BEERS B BEsE EDRREBLH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR T
Segment revenue O
Segment other income AHEMUA
Segment results AREE
Unallocated other income and gains AOBEMRARRE
Unallocated expenses RARER
Loss from operations LiEER
Finance costs HEANA
Loss before fax L]
Income fax expenses FEHER
Loss for the year rEEEE
Segment assets AHEE
Unallocated assefs AOEBE
Total assefs #EE
Segment liabilities A98E
Unallocated liobilties RO EE
Total liabilties &8tk
Capitol expenditure BRRR
Unallocated capital expenditure AAREARR
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation ARz fERE
Impairment loss of goodwil HERERE
Impairment loss of loan receivable FREHREEE
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

RBEDEBBER =)

BE-_Z—+FR A=THIEE

Year ended 30 June 2017

Provision of

property

E-commerce management

and provision Money- and property

of onine lending agency

sales platform business services
segment segment segment Total

EFEBR e

REEE ‘  EERDERE \

HETEHH EEEBAH RiEH e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T it T TEL
Segment revenue pix:1/ON 316,294 2973 3,887 323,154
Segment other income DEREABA 3,826 2 30 3,858
Segment results e (33.394) 2833 839 (29.722)
Unallocated other income and gains RABEMUBA R 590
Unallocated expenses KAnfizBR (21,327)
Loss from operations 2ERE (50,459)
Finance costs BEARKA (349)
Loss before tax BRAIER (50,808)
Income fax expenses HEHER (182)
Loss for the year FEEEE (50,990)
Segment assets IHEE 123,234 95,813 18,494 237,541
Unallocated assets KRB BE 88,703
Total assets BEE 326,244
Segment liabilities AHEE 82,570 - 806 83,376
Unallocated liabilities Aol af 1,761
Total liabilities 2eE 85,137
Capital expenditure BARRY 658 - 190 848
Unallocated capital expenditure RARZBERFAX -
848
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 1,062 - 65 1,127
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation &5 L 2 37 K 8 i -
1.127
Impairment loss of other infangible asset £t &R BEREBE 1,715 - - 1,715
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

The revenue information is based on the location of
the customers:

Year ended 30 June 2018

4, BEFETER =

i1 &R}
(o) REIEBEPZHUA
W NERHEE P 0 -

BE-Z-\FXA=Z+HLFE

North South
America America Africa Europe Asia* Oceania  Consolidated
EM RV M il o KM aff
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TR Tén TR TR Tén
Segment revenue: ARMYA
Ecommerce ond provison  EFEKR
of on-ine sales platform Ft}ﬁ?é 22,163 31,527 2,593 133,172 42,653 6411 238,519
Money-lending business & - - - - 8,985 - 8,985
Provision of property
monagement and property
agency services = = = = 6,768 - 6,768
IP rights licensing and GilEs Fﬂé X’E &
infernational IP development,  Elf
media integraed markefing % «%’%EZ
and distibution agency of BHERHHERE
sports goods business EORRER = = - - 53,967 - 53,967
22,163 31,521 2,593 133,172 112,373 641 308,239
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

(a) Revenue from external customers
(Continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

4, BEFETER =

1t B B B (4)
(@) FREINBESZKA (&)
BE-T—tFAA=tELFE

North South
America America* Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated
JEN EEIlN 3 Bl il REN aff
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T i Thr Tén Thr T Tén
Segment revenue: ARMYA
Ecommerceond provison  EFEHREL
of onvine salles platform BLEEYa 32,851 57,692 3528 168,920 43,226 10,077 316,294
Money-lending business FEEK - - - - 29713 - 29713
Provision of property REMEEERD
management and property  ERXERT
agency services - - - - 3,887 - 3,887
32,851 57,692 3528 168,920 50,086 10,077 323154

Further geographical information on sales which

. BRAE M A L E B 10% 2 HER

accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue are — R ERAT -
as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$"000
FHET FAT
PRC A 82,023 23,480
Brazil i) 25,884 48,967
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(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
(b) Segment assets

Year ended 30 June 2018

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

RBEDEBBER =)

tEER )
(b) FEEE
BE—8—\EAASHELEE

North South

America America Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated

EEMH HEN M B £y KEM af

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tin T Tin Tin TEn TEn T

Segment assets 2HEE - - - - 457,036 - 457,036

Capital expenditure BREX - - - - 14,980 - 14,980

Year ended 30 June 2017 HE—T—tFA=1THIFE

North South

America America Africa Europe Asia Oceania  Consolidated

IEN EE3 Eal el ol FEM aff

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn T TEn TEn TER TEn Thn

Segment assets PHEE - - - 326,244 - 326,44

Capital expendifure EERx - - - 848 - 848

Information about a major customer EHEFrEREFZER

There was no sales to any single external customer that
contributed over 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the
years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents (i) the transaction price arising from
e-commerce and provision of on-line sales platforms; (ii)
interest income arising from money-lending business;
(iii) service income arising from the provision of property
management and property agency services; (iv) franchise
income arising from IP rights licensing; (v) service income
arising from international IP development and media
integrated marketing business; and (vi) the net invoiced
value of distribution of sports goods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and
gains is as follows:

WA~ EAURA R W zs2)

REBZWA ~ EARA RS DT -

2018 2017
—E2-N\F 25
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Revenue: LONE
E-commerce and provision of on-line EFABREHBLHETS
sales platform 238,519 316,294
Interest income arising from BEXEBEENFEHA
money-lending business 8,985 2,973
Provision of property management R EEE RMERIBRS
and property agency services 6,768 3,887
Franchise income arising from IPrights A1 EE R EE £ EE
licensing, service income arising ZWN - BIRR A E R B
from international IP development RIS & S TR AR TS
and media integrated marketing A
business* 49,310 -
Distribution agency of sports goods DERIBES AR 4,657 -
308,239 323,154
Other income and gains: EH AU A R s
Bank interest income HRITHLSUA 21 157
Dividend income from equity BATFEFABRZZBARE
investments at fair value through FTiSR S A
profit or loss 12 12
Gain on disposal of a domain name HE AR - 2,028
Gain on disposal of property, plant and — EEYZE - BE K& #EH T
equipment - 83
Reversal of the provision of litigation B EIFFaA K AR E A EE
and legal fee 9.452 -
Reversal of the provision of Boa T RERE
labour claim 307 -
Government grants received BT B 102 368
Ancillary service income HBRAS WA 541 791
Reversal of the provision of long service BB REIRE B E
payment 192 494
Others HAth 955 515
11,582 4,448
Total revenue, other income and gains AU « AU U 319,821 327,602

- Included in the amount of approximately HK$49,310,000,
of which, as to approximately HK$14,233,000 represented
the franchise income arising from its IP rights licensing
and remaining balance of approximately HK$35,077,000
represented service income arising from international IP
development and media infegrated marketing business.

M # 49310000 T R IEEH » 4
14,233,00078 7T 5 KL A B A 1B A A2 AR 55
FHRE 2 - R R T 45 824935,077,00078
TR BB MR E R B MR AR A B ETS
EERRBTKA -
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No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

n\/T\

Year ended 30 June 2018 &#E—=%

6.

& PR

—N\FERA=ZTHLEFE

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

6. BRBAIER

AREE 2 BB RTEER TR, (GEA) o1&

(crediting): TRIERTHE
2018 2017
=8N i
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Cost of sales and services THE R BRIEH AR
Cost of sales HEKAR 180,266 215,598
Cost of services AR 27,290 77
207,556 216,369
Technical expenses included in BREEGRABRERY
"Cost of sales” in the consolidated [SHER A BT E
statement of profit or loss 7,031 7,402
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ?%% G P 2,058 1.127
Amortisation of other infangible assets HimEESH 604 -
Minimum lease payments under operating leases in -~ 1RIE L RiEF 2 FL L2
respect of land and building HERLFIE 6,173 2,938
Fair value loss on equity investments BRATEF AB R RARE
at fair value through profit or loss NTEEE 4,284 9,487
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales investments, HETNHEEREBSE 5
net (note 17) (H=E17) 20,079 384
Auditors’ remuneration RS 1,219 757
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 14) Pﬁ%?ﬂ EEBME14) 8,251 -
Impairment loss on loan receivable (nofe 18) PR E TR ERE (FiEE18) 20,000 -
Impairment loss on trade receivable (note 20) MU 5 SR ERE (5:20) 99 -
Impairment loss on other intangible assets Him B ERERE - 1.715
Impairment loss on available-for-sales investments B ERERESE - 88
Written off of property, plant and equipment WE - BE R 2
(note 13) (FfEE13) 346 -
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration B TR (B8t
in note 8) EEHS)
Wages and salaries TER¥® 28,150 20,658
Housing allowances (B2 314 -
Equity-settled share option expenses Hxl&%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁfi 1,986 710
Net pension scheme contribution* RIREEEIHFUFE" 2,421 1,196
32,871 22,564
Equity-settled share option expenses PR &5 B R PR R 52 3,705 -
Foreign exchange loss, net SNE BB 2,911 2,057
Bank inferest income FATRISBA (21) (157)
Dividend income received from equity investment B?QT—@‘H\TE 5 RAIE
at fair value through profit or loss BHREKA (12) (12)
Gain on disposal of a domain name ﬁ’ﬁﬁ% Wiz - (2,028)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% « HiE k& fE s W = (83)
Government grants received BB (102) (368)
Ancillary service income BEERBIKA (541) (797)
Reversal of the provision of long service payment BORBRESRE (192) (494)
Reversal of the provision of labour claim REOSTRERE (307) -
Reversal of the provision of litigation and legal fee BREFARLEBRRE (9.452) -
= At 30 June 2018, the Group did not have forfeited " RZZE—NFARA=TH  AEEWRER

contributions available to reduce its confribution to the

pension scheme in future years (2017: Nil).
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. BMBERAE

2018 2017
e —E—+
HK$’'000 HK$’000
TET FHT
Interest expenses on bank borrowing  $RITIERFI S = 221
Interest expenses on other borrowing — EAb{EFF S5 = 128

Imputed inferest expenses on AR ES 2 AT B
convertible bonds (note 27) (HM5E27) 10,024 -
10,024 349

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, Sections 383(1)(a),
(). (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERIETHAEHE

RAEE - BELETHRE - BBERTHUEAIE
383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) R () I&IA KA R (T
EEMRERD AN E2MERENEST R ERT
A BRFHMAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F 2 —+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FiET

Fees we 411 151

Other emoluments: Hinpi< -

Salaries, allowances and o R REYAE

benefits in kind 2,941 886

Equity-settled share option expenses A% A 45 & BE A AE RS2 764 71

Pension scheme confributions RIS ETEIHER 38 16

3,743 973

4,154 1,124

During the years, certain directors were granted share
options in respect of their services to the Group under the
share optfion scheme of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the consolidated
financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

NEFEAN > ETESEARRBREEZ
T RIBEEASE 2 RGER THEARE - &
—HHBRRRE M BHRAM S - EREH
RNERGFRIBERRERAZZEBEREZAFE
REEHAHBEE - MESRAFELRES MR
RZHBFBRIHN A LEEMS WL LA -
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. ZEERFETHAEME »
REMUNERATION (continued)

(0) Executive directors (o) BITES
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses  contributions  remuneration
E2ic
BER B Bife
ne BWRE BRERX ST aMe
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FHT Fitr TiEx Fi#Ex TFign
2018 —E-N\E
Mr.POON Man Sam B34 (@) - 1,567 382 18 1,967
Mr. Al Kuiyu NEFEE ©] - 1,154 382 18 1,554
Mr. HUNG Kenneth  HEHEE (e) - 40 - 2 42
- 2,761 764 38 3,563
2017 —TtF
Mr.POON Man Sam &3R4 (@) - 131 - - 131
Mr. Al Kuiyu VEFRE ©] - 62 - 2 64
Mr. TAIMon Hin Tony — E3C&F %4 (c) - 86 71 4 161
Mr. HUANG Shaokang  ED RS E (d) - - - - -
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong Bk 54 (d) - 459 - 4 463
Mr. HUNG Kenneth HERLLE (e) - 120 - 6 126
- 858 Il 16 945
Noftes: B
(a)  appointed on 18 May 2017 (@ RZE—tFRA+NBEZE
(b)  appointed on 27 March 2017 (b) RIZ—tF=A-TLREZRE
(c) appointed on 13 September 2016 and resigned on 1 ©) RZZE—FR"FNA+T=BEZELR
June 2017 —T—LFERA—ARHE
(d) resigned on 23 September 2016 d) RZZE—"FAAZT=B#E
(e) resigned on 1 November 2017 (&) R-ZT—+tF+—A—HBE
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Non-executive director

8. EERIETHAEME®

(b) FEHITES

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
bz FExT FAT
Mr. CHANG Eric Jackson SRR E (a) 180 28
Mr. MENG Hu =R E ) - -
180 28
Notes: BieE
(a) appointed on 5 May 2017 and resigned subsequent to (@ RZZE—t+tFRARBREZRERRZ
the end of the reporting period on 19 July 2018 T—N\FtA+hBREHRERT
(b) RZZB—RE+ZAT+NHEHE
() resigned on 19 December 2016
(c) Independent non-executive directors (c) BYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors AERBENBIFRTEST2HEN
during the year were as follows: T
2018 2017
—g-Nf —F—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FHET FET
Mr. FONG Fuk Wai HEEEE 137 50
Mr. ZHU Zhi KESLE (@) - 11
Mr. LIN Xiaofeng PRI 5 A& (b) = 8
Mr. ZHOU Jing Sl==p e © 6 40
Dr. FUNG Kam Man RSB (@ 17 42
Mr. CHAN Ngai Fan PRI E ST (e) 131 -
Mr. HUANG Zhiying EEBLE 0) 120 -
411 151
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERIETBAEME =

REMUNERATION (continued)

(¢) Independent non-executive directors
(Continued)
Notes:

(a) resigned on 23 September 2016
() resigned on 1 August 2016

(c) appointed on 13 September 2016 and resigned on 10
August 2017

(d) appointed on 1 August 2016 and resigned on 2
November 2017

(e) appointed on 10 August 2017 and resigned
subsequent fo the end of the reporting period on 5
September 2018

® appointed on 2 November 2017

There was no other emolument payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2017: Nil).

No further emolument was paid by the Group to
the executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors either as an
inducement upon joining or to join the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2017:
Nil).

The number of directors, whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

(©) BUHHTESH)

i
@
®)
©

(C))

©)

®

R-ZE—XREALA-+=HET
R-ZT—NF/\A—HEHIE
RZZE—RNFENA+=BEZFELR
—E—tFNATHEHTE

RZF—RFENA-BEZEYTR =
T—+Ft+—H_REHE

REB—EFN\ATBEZERR
Z— ) \FNA L BREHRKEHE

N-T—tF+—A_BERE

FRW BT EAM BB IENTES
ZHe(—F—t5F : \)-

AEEMERALENTES  SFRTEENE
MIEITERXMEAEMME - AEREN
AR DA S B B 2 28 3 1F 7 BE B 2 B

18 e

FRWEE R ERNLHFEEERELRBHRE
EME (=5 : &) -

HeNTFTIBENZESEAZNAT

Number of Directors

ESAR
2018 2017
—g2-N\F —T—t%
Ni o HK$1,000,000 ZZ1,000,000/% 7% 7 13
HK$1,000,001 o HK$2,000,000 1,000,001% 72 22,000,000/ 72 2 -
9 13
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
2 directors (2017: included 1 former director, Mr. Chow Siu
Kwong ("Mr. Chow") whom resigned as a director on 23
September 2016. The Group paid staff salary in the amount
of HK$1,786,000 to him after his resignation as a director of
the Company. The aggregate of his director’'s remuneration
and staff salary with an aggregate amount of HK$2,249,000
constituted one of the 5 highest paid employees for the year
ended 30 June 2017), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining 3 (2017: Mr. Chow and the remaining 4) highest
paid employees who are non-directors are as follows:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

hEEEHET
FALAGSHEERBE2ZES(ZT—+
F:RRIBAEESTARLEE(TAE
) ERZZE-—R"ENA-T=AHEE
F o AEBRKBHERARREFRAB SN E
T#%1,786,000/87T - BHE—F—LF/XA
=THIEFE  EESHFHREIHSEER
2,249,000 T - KA EHERHELL—)
BEZ M FBEHN LS - A TF3R (=
T ARERBRTAR) R FMEES
REZMEFBNT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET

Salaries, allowances and e EBEREYNZE
benefits in kind 4,196 4,978
Equity-settled share option expenses &A% & BERE R =7 76 -
Pension scheme confributions RIKEFTEIER 145 90
4,417 5,068

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees (2017:
including Mr. Chow) whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HeEnFTIIRERAzZ&=HIEESRE (=
T4 BRAKE) ZHBBFNTX :

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\F Sl
Nil fo HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t = 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7t £2,000,0007% 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T % 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
S 5

2018 4 | FHFERERAERAT
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Taxes on profits in respect of Group's companies operating
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the respective tax countries/jurisdictions
in which they operate based on existing legislation,
inferpretations and practices in respect thereof.

10. FiiSHER

ERNEHRERE—T— \FRA=1H
IFEFEAERBES 2 BFHERTUENIR16.5%
Z IR R

AEBREMBELZE 2 AR 2BATE B
REBFREM 2 IREED - RERIES - REE
WMBBR,AEER 2 RITHEFE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Current tax - Hong Kong BIEREL % — &8
Charge for the year REEREZ 585 151
Over-provision in previous year BT FERRERE (20) -
Current tax - Elsewhere BNVEARR 765 — H it
Charge for the year REFERZ 3,223 31
Under-provision in previous year BEFERETR 5 -
Deferred tax RIERIR
Credit for the year (note 28) ANFEHAR(M7E28) (3.011) -
Total tax charged for the year RELRIAT MR 782 182

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss
before tax using the statutory rate for the countries in which

ERARRRATEIRAAR R REKB AR AT
MERZEEREAE 2 HIRM X EFRNER

the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax MEAEEZHBRNAT :
expenses at the effective tax rate is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\f —TtE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER % TR %
Loss before tax BRBAIE R (89.678) (50,808)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong fax rates % ZE B &t EMFHIE (14,797) 16.5 (8,383) 16.5
Effect of different taxation TREIME 2 52
rate in overseas 1,281 (1.4) 4 ©.1
Income not subject to fax SR (1.150) 13 (1,205) 2.3
Expenses not deductible for tax R iiwd 53 7,421 (8.2) 3,005 5.9)
Recognition of previously unrecognised 2B K HER
tax losses ZBIBEE (42) - - -
Unrecognised deferred tax assefs AERELFIAE E 8,084 (9.0) 6,724 13.2)
Over-provision in previous year, net BEFERERE
HE (15) - - -
Tax charge at effective tox rate RERHREFEL
RERH 782 (0.8) 182 (0.4)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and dilufed loss per share are
based on:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

11.

12.

iz 2
SERTRBRERE -2 —/\FXA=TH
IR (Z B — L4 ) -

ARTFEERESBAEAERR
BIREE
SRENEES TN AT EAL SRR

AR EEER | D RENEETY
B2 BT -

BREAR R E R R A T EEGTH ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss attributable to ordinary equity RESTE SREALREEBNEBENA
holders of the Company, used NRIEBERER A ARGEE
in the basic loss per share
calculations (77,975) (50,892)
Numbers of shares
87k 4=
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—tF

B3
AN EER

Shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during
the year used in the basic loss per
share calculation

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2018
and 2017 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options and convertible bonds outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.

HEREABRZERN
BEITE BBINET IR

2,776,215,424 2,108,900,514

BE T \FR_ZT—tFRNA=THIF
B - WEBEEAI RN SREAE RS EE
HFBE - REDEARTTE 2B R AR E
FEDHNBRERNERSEEL T RETX

2018 £ | FEFEBZERARAA
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE—F— \FA=1TAILLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % - BERRE
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold  fixturesand  equipment Motor
improvements  equipment and software vehicles Total
S BB
HEH#E HERRE REH RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax THET FART FHT TAT
30 June 2018 “E-\EXA=1H
At 1 July 2017 RZT—tFtA—R:
Cost A
Accumulated Zithe
depreciation
Net carying amount REFE
At 1 July 2017, net of RZE—tF+[—H"
accumulated BB ZEE
depreciation
Additions NE

Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt BAF)

(notes 32(a) and 32(0))  (Hf3E32(0) 32(b))
Depreciation provided FRTERE

during the year
Disposal during the year ~ RAFEHE
Written off during the year ~ IRAFE i35

(note 6) (Wizxe)
Exchanges realignment [ # %

At 30 June 2018, net of RZE-\E A=+H"

accumulated BB REE
depreciation
At 30 June 2018: RZE-N\FRXA=1H:
Cost A
Accumulated Zithe
depreciation
Net carrying amount REFE
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

13. 1% - RERRE®

(Continued)
Furniture, Computer
Leasehold  fixtures and equipment Motor
improvements equipment  and software vehicles Total
M BHRE
HEEE EES PG e st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT TET FET THET FiEr
30 June 2017 “E-tFXRAZTH
At 1 July 2016: RZE—"FtA—A:
Cost A 3,395 1,831 2,567 643 8,436
Accumulated Z5HE
depreciation (2.850) (1,651) (2,154) 497) (7.152)
Net carrying amount FRmFE 545 180 K 146 1,284
At 1 July 2016, net of RZET—"FtA—H"
accumulated Bk REHE
depreciation 545 180 413 146 1,284
Additions NE 377 146 135 - 658
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WEERTE 2 =) (F13532(d))
(note 32(c)) - 190 - - 190
Depreciation provided ERTERE
during the year (481) (212) (309) (125) (1.127)
Disposal during the year ~ RAFFIHE - ) - - )
Exchanges realignment  EXFHE ) 2 ®) ©) (20)
At 30 June 2017, net of RZE—+FA=1H "
accumulated BB EsITE
depreciation 434 300 231 18 983
At 30 June 2017: RZE—FRA=+A:
Cost AR 3,728 1,554 2,562 633 8,477
Accumulated ZiHE
depreciation (3,294) (1,254) (2.331) (615) (7.494)
Net carrying amount FREFE 434 300 231 18 983
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140

14. GOODWILL 14. BE
HK$’000
FHERT
At 1 July 2016 RZE—RFEA—H

Cost BRAR 10,436

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (10,436)

Net carrying amount R HE -
Cost at 1 July 2016, net of RZT—R"FLtA—BZKAR -

accumulated impairment 2 0Bk 25HRE -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WBE I8 A R (I 5E32(c) & (d))

(notes 32(c)&(d)) 17,409
Impairment during the year RAREERE -
Cost at 30 June 2017, net of RZZT—tEFRNA=ZTHZERA -

accumulated impairment B0 2EHRE 17,409
At 30 June 2017 RZT—tFA=+H

Cost BN 27,845

Accumulated impairment ZEhRE (10,436)

Net carrying amount fRmEHE 17,409
Cost at 1 July 2017, net of RZE—tFEA—BZHAE -

accumulated impairment E 0Bk 2FHRE 17,409
Acquisition of subsidiaries W RE M B8 A 8] (3E32(0) & (b))

(notes 32(a)&(b)) 130,917
Impairment during the year RAFERE (8.251)
Cost at 30 June 2018, net of RZZ—NFARA=ZTHZHEA -

accumulated impairment 2Bk 25HRE 140,075
At 30 June 2018 RZZE—N\FRA=+H

Cost KR 158,762

Accumulated impairment REHRE (18,687)

Net carrying amount IREDFE 140,075
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14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units
("CGU") that are expected to benefit from that business. A
summary of goodwill by each reporting operating CGU is
presented below:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

14. B5E»)

REeEt BN (EERE)RERH

HEDEEAREBERHAIEZFEFEDHIRE
EEBM(REELBM]) - REBELER
TEABEMEDNBBMESIILT

As at 30 June
RAAB=+H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHET
Provision of online sales platforms REHB EHET A = -
Property management and property Y13 EE LR IR RS
agency services 8,158 16,409
Money-lending business E-Ei 1,000 1,000
IP rights licensing and international GHEE RE AR N BB N EE AR A
IP development, media infegrated B R e i R IR
marketing and distribution agency BE)PMEL
of sports goods business
- arising from the Sense Acquisition — =B EIEmEE 72,729 -
- arising from the Strong Network — B Strong Network i 518
Acquisition MmE% 58,188 -
140,075 17,409

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the Group’s cash generating units ("CGUs")
that are expected to benefit from that business. The net
carrying amount of goodwill represented HKS$O (after
deducting an impairment of HK$10,436,000), HK$8,158,000
(after deducting an impairment of HK$8,251,000),
HK$1,000,000, HK$72,729,000 and HK$58,188,000
respectively, arose from acquisition of subsidiaries in
(i) the provision of on-line sales platforms CGU; (ii) the
property management and property agency services
CGU; (iii) the money-lending business CGU; (iv) the Sense
Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU regarding
IP rights licensing and international IP development,
media integrated marketing and distribution agency
of sport goods business.

EBAES 2B e RERS i E B
R EmRZEBZARENR S EEBA (R
SEABNM]) BmEZE@FEEREGOR
HEELHETABRSELSBMN : (NWEEE
EMERERBRESEESEN : (iEEZEK
e EEBN  (v)E B HEREREERBEER
MHERRE - HEGEEHERD HREED
AmEBz = BEER & EE B KStrong
NetworkIR & E£ BB AR D RIEEZ
T3 7T (#2415 10,436,000 7T 2 K fEIE)
8,158,000 7T ( 4% $1Bx 8,251,000 JT 2 /R
{E1&) ~ 1,000,000/ T ~ 72,729,000% 7t &
58,188,000/ 7T °
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14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(a) Provision of property management and
property agency services CGU and money-
lending business CGU

The recoverable amounts of the provision of property
management and property agency services CGU
and money-lending business CGU have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method.

The Directors engaged an independent valuer,
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited (“*Ascent
Partners”) to determine the recoverable amount
of the provision of the property management
and property agency services CGU. In addition,
the Directors prepared the cash flow forecast
to defermine the recoverable amount of the
money-lending business CGU.

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on
the most recent financial budgets approved by the
senior management of the Group for the next five
years from 2019 to 2023 (the "Budget Period”) with
the residual period.

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and furnover during the Budget Period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
terminal growth rate is based on historical growth
rate of the geographical area in which the businesses
of the CGUs operate. These rates do not exceed
the average long-term growth rates for the relevant
markets. Budgeted revenue (i.e. average commission
income of 1% on each property transaction and the
loan interest income for the range from 8% to 12% on
loan portfolio, respectively) and expenses are based
on historical performance of the CGUs projected with
growth rate not exceed the inflation rate.
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BHeELXENREEZFEE L
EEE T
REYEEERMERERERSES
B I BRI S A A B Y A
SHEOHAMRBERSREEBEEFER
BEET -

§$ = HEYE N L B R L RHEE A R
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RERIZRGIR €= E B 2 r] e
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ErREXSHeELBML KBS
o

RenBRANEREASERRER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(a) Provision of property management and
property agency services CGU and money-
lending business CGU (Continued)

Pursuant to their valuation report dated 14 September
2018 (the "Property Management Business
Valuation”), the recoverable amount of the provision
of the property management and property agency
services CGU as at 30 June 2018 was assessed to
be HKS$13,400,000. The decrease in the recoverable
amount of the provision of the property management
and property agency services CGU mainly due
to decline in budgeted revenue. Accordingly, an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$8,251,000 arising
from the provision of property management and
property agency services CGU was provided during
the year.

In addition, based on the cash flow forecast arising
from the money lending business (the *“Money
Lending Business Forecast”) prepared by the
Directors, they were of the opinion that no provision
for impairment loss on goodwill arising from the
money-lending business CGU was considered
necessary during the year as the recoverable amount
of the money-lending business CGU was higher than
its carrying amount.

(b) Sense Media CGU and Strong Network
cGeu

The Sense Media CGU is a comprehensive operation
platform for IP rights and also specialising in media
infegrated marketing business, including provision
of integrated marketing, planning and design
service for brands. The Sense Media CGU is also a
pioneer of the “Intellectual Property + Augmented
Reality + Food & Beverage” business concept
in the PRC. Its concession rights on intellectual
properties, namely “Le Petit Chef” and ""Dinner Time
Story”: Marco Polo”, has generated new business
opportunities and revenue to the Group. The Sense
Media CGU contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$24,742,000 to the Group since its acquisition.

The Strong Network CGU provides key distribution
channels to the Sense Media CGU and the Group
for their downstream businesses and provision of
steady expansion of commercialised IPs within the
PRC, through engagement with various cooperation
partners which covers different provinces in the PRC.
In addition, the Strong Network CGU commenced
its business of distribution agency of sports goods.
The Strong Network CGU contributed a revenue of
approximately HK$29,225,000 to the Group since its
acquisition.
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14. B5E»)
BeELEEN(BEHE)RENF
()

(o) EERYEEZERYFEAERE
ReELEVRERERFHAL
ELEN(®)
REXEMA-—T—\FAATHAZ
fEERE(MEERERHHE]) - R
MESERNERERBRSELEN
R \EXA=+BZAKESHE
HeRT A 4313,400,0008 T - SRt E
B R ER BRGNS EE B2 AU
B e THEEBNEERRD o
Eit - REMEHRREMETE RN E
RERBRSEEBEE Y HERE
#5188,251,0005 7T °

BN RBEEMREEEERBELEZ
RenBRA([EEXRBIEA]) - KE
B NEANBAREEEBRSES
BUEAZHEEHREBERE R
REREEBREEAE M ZIRE S
RN EKEE

b)) =R EREEFEMR
Strong Network# & 2 4+ &7
= REERECEASBNANAERLIS
BEFTE  HEFfINSHERA EHE
% BREARBIRELREEHE  HE
EEetR  c ZBEEBRSEEEN
T R B[ A0 G8L EE M + 1 0R IR B R i+ B
RIGCEB LR o HAMERE 2R
Fris st Bl Le Petit Chef] &[T %2
=] : Marco Polo | » B A& &S
RETTEERIA - BREBE=REERS
ELEUE  EEAXNSEERMEAL
24,742,000 7T °

Strong Network 35 & 4 B iz & = 2
BERSEEBMNRAEERN T ES
RHUEFEEHHRE - WHERBREPH
TRAA GBS RAERHEBRISER
R B SR L AR EERE o BN © Strong
Networki & 2 & B 10 5 H IR E
R mER - BUESTrong Network
SEEBME  HEAXEEFERRA
#929,225,0007% 7T ©
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14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(b) Sense Media CGU and Sftrong Network
CGU (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the Sense Media CGU
and the Strong Network CGU have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted
cash flow method.

The Directors also engaged Ascent Partners to
determine the recoverable amounts of the Sense
Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU.

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on the
most recent financial budgets approved by the senior
management of the Group for the next five years
from 2019 to 2023 (the "Sense and Strong Network
Budget Period”) with the residual period.

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
turnover during the Sense and Strong Network Budget
Period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The terminal growth rafe is based on historical
growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGUs operate. These rates do not
exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
relevant markets. Budgeted revenue based on past
performance and expectations regarding market
development and expenses are based on historical
performance of the CGUs projected with growth rate
not exceed the inflation ratfe.

Pursuant to their valuation reports dated 14
September 2018 (the "Sense Media and Strong
Network Business Valuations”), the recoverable
amounts of the Sense Media CGU and the Strong
Network CGU as at 30 June 2018 were higher than
their carrying amounts. Accordingly, no provision
for impairment loss on goodwill arising from the
Sense Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU are
considered necessary.
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14. GOODWILL (continued) 14. €@
Impairment tests for cash-generating units REELEV(BREHE)HMENR
containing goodwill (Continued) (&)
(b) Sense Media CGU and Strong Network b) =BEREELEMR
CGU (Continued) Strong Network3E & & 4 & fir
(&)
B &SN - BRI EMEBT R X
B - BEEKEA - =2 &% &kStrong
Network (75 (A E & £ ZRZ (BIFE
IR R iE R R R AR IR

Apart from the above, the key assumptions used in
the calculation of the Property Management Business
Valuation, the Money-Lending Business Forecast, the
Sense Media and Strong Network Business Valuations

(i.e. average growth rates, terminal growth rates and E)IATFIR
pre-tax discount rates calculations) are as follows:
Average Terminal
growth rate growth rate
in the beyond the Pre-tax
CGUs budget period budget period discount rate
AEHRH REREN BAl
REeELEN FIgERE HImER=E B =
Provision of property management and @M% 3.08% 15.71%
property agency services (2017:15.5%) (2017: 3.11%) (2017:14.56%)
R YEE IR R ERIE RS —T—tF: —T—tF: —T—tF:
15.5%) 3.11%) 14.56%)
Money-lending business 3% 3.11% 19.82%
BEES (2017: 3%) (2017: 3.11%) (2017:19.82%)
—T—tF: —T—tF: —T—tF:
3%) 3.11%) 19.82%)
IP rights licensing and international IP
development, media infegrated marketing
and distribution agency of sports goods
business:
MBERTERBERMBERME  HRGa2H
RAHERIBESDAMER -
- Sense Acquisition 18.5% 2.61% 19.82%
—=BUiE=E (2017: N/A) (2017: N/A) (2017: N/A)
—T—tF: —T—tF: —T—tF:
TER) TNER) TNER)
- Strong Network Acquisition 12% 2.61% 25.52%
—Strong Network % =18 (2017: N/A) (2017: N/A) (2017: N/A)
(Z2—+%F: (Z2—+%F: (Z2—+%F:
TER) TNEA) TNER)
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. Hitt B & &

Concession
rights on
On-line sales intellectual
platforms properties Total
MEEEZ
WLEEFA TSR A%
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FEx
Af 1 July 2016 RZE—R"FtHA—A

Cost B 24,875 - 24,875

Accumulated impairment RETRE (19,260) - (19.260)

Net carrying amount FREDFE 5,615 - 5615
At 1 July 2016, net of RZZE—RFEA—H -

accumulated impairment 2R 25HRE 5,615 - 5,615
Impairment during the year RAFERE (1,715) - (1,715)
At 30 June 2017, net of RZZE—EFRA=1TH"

accumulated impairment Bk RZERE 3,900 - 3,900
At 30 June 2017 RZE—+tFA=+H

Cost PR 24,875 - 24,875

Accumulated impairment ZETRE (20,975) - (20,975)

Net carrying amount BRIENFHE 3,900 - 3,900
At 30June 2017 and 1 July 2017 RZZ—+tFA=Z+HEK

—E—tFtA—H

Cost D#N 24,875 - 24,875

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (20,975) - (20,975)

Net carrying amount BRIENFHE 3,900 - 3,900
Af 1 July 2017, net of RZT—+tFtHA—R"

accumulated impairment B0k REHRE 3,900 - 3,900
Acquisition of subsidiaries g0 =YNE]

(notes 32(a) and (b)) (Mi5E32(a) (b)) - 3,018 3,018
Additions NE - 2,555 2,555
Amortisation provided FNEEHR

during the year = (604) (604)
Exchange realignment (RS - 18 18
Impairment during the year RANFEERE - - -
At 30 June 2018, net of RZZE—NFRA=1TH"

accumulated impairment BB 25HR1E 3,900 4,987 8.887
At 30 June 2018 RZE—NFAA=+H

Cost PR 24,875 5,591 30,466

Accumulated impairment EEAEYSE 5ic]

and amortisation (20,975) (604) (21,579)

Net carrying amount BREFE 3,900 4,987 8,887
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The cost of other infangible assets mainly represents (i)
three online sales platforms for tfrading of merchandises
through internet acquired by the Group during the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2012 respectively; (ii) several
concession rights on infellectual properties leased during
the year ended 30 June 2018.

On-line sales platforms
Platform 1

The Group made a full impairment of HK$19,260,000 in
previous years on the carrying amount of one of its on-
line sales platforms relevant to a subsidiary to facilitate
the trading of merchandises between sellers and buyers
through the internet platform, which had been closed
down in previous year.

Platfform 2

The Group closed down one of its on-line sales platforms
relevant to a subsidiary to facilitate the trading of luxury
goods through internet platform in the previous year due
to (i) the unsatisfactory performance of the luxury goods
platform; and (ii) keen competition in the e-commerce
business. As a result of the closure of the luxury goods
platform, a full impairment of HK$1,715,000 on the carrying
amount of the luxury goods platform had been provided in
previous year.

Platform 3

The Directors engaged Ascent Partners to determine the
recoverable amount of this on-line sales platform relevant
fo business of e-commerce segment.

The fair value measurement is using Level 2 inputs which
are not using significant unobservable inputs and there
is no change in the fair value hierarchy as compared to
previous years.

The key assumptions for the relief-from-royalty method are
those regarding the discount rate, growth rate, royalty rate
and budgeted turnover during the budget period. The
Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the e-commerce segment. The
growth rate used in the budget do not exceed the long-
tferm average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the e-commerce segment
operate. The royalty rate is based on market information
specific fo the e-commerce segment. Budgeted gross
margin and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

15.

HtBEEE »
B AR A B AEES IRES
SR AER-FE-—FAA=TAIEER
EBHBEBEERSH=EBLHETS : i)
REE—B—N\EXA=TRILFEREHE
TR A -

A LHEFA

FAT
ARERERFEECRERMBERRMEFR—
ERREHE L Fa(EREAFERA) RE
BRI REHT —EARERS a2 REEED
2HA#919,260,000/8 TTRE R

Fh2
AREBEREFRAME A TR —EREREHE
EFmEBNRLFENBLHEEYS  RA
EMZEZmPEaNEERIER  R)E
FRBEBHHFIR - ARZEERTAE
ME - REAFECHZESCHR TR ZREE
#H421,715,000/8 7L 2 2 ZURE R

F53
EEERGHHENBERETRB RS S H
BLHETAZTRESH -

REEAENERE - RBARE - WEEA
EANAEEB AR - AEBEFEZAF
BEERALED R

RNFNEE A T RRREBEHA 2 BE
BE . ERE  FREXLAHTRAGRH - K
SBRA RRINE T LG 2 B REER
BFRB0 B ERR 2 HATRER R AR
R o FHERPIE A 2B ERIY NEBEFREK
DEMEBLEELEREZ FHLEER
R BRIBRRETABIBIBENSE
FHSH o BEERNRRRATHZBEMERE
MR FHREH -
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Platform 3 (Conftinued)

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
is 21.09% (2017: 19.82%). the royalty rate applied to the
royalty savings from owing the platform was 4.7% (2017:
4.7%) based on turnover, and cash flow beyond the five
years period is extrapolated using a zero growth rate (2017:
zero growth rate).

Pursuant fo their valuation report dated 14 September 2018
(the "IA Valuation”), the recoverable amount of this on-line
sales platform as at 30 June 2018 was higher than its
carrying amount. Accordingly, no provision for impairment
loss on this on-line sales platform is considered necessary.

Concession rights on intellectual properties

Le Petit Chef Series and Dinner Time Story:
Marco Polo

The concession rights on intellectual properties (*IPs”),
namely Le Petit Chef Series ("Le Petit Chef”) and Dinner
Time Story: Marco Polo (*"Marco Polo”) (notes 32(a) and
32(b)). were granted by the original IPs’ owner to £ /8 &
EH R X EE AR AR, asubsidiary of the Group, for a
period ranging from 3 to 5 years. Pursuant to copyright
agreements dated 28 April 2017 and 23 June 2017
(collectively, the "Copyright Agreements”), respectively, the
Group were granted concession rights to use Le Petit Chef
and Marco Polo in the Greater China Region, including but
noft limited fo the drawings, written works, story boards and
layouts, videos characters, videos games, video games
printfed books, on-line publications and videos.

With reference to the Sense Media and Strong Network
Business Valuations, details of which are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment loss
on concession rights regarding Le Petit Chef and Marco
Polo are considered necessary during the year as the
recoverable amount of concession rights regarding Le Petit
Chef and Marco Polo were higher than its carrying amount.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

15. H BT EE »)

FE3 (&)
BenRAIMRAZERER21.09% (=&
—t5F 1 19.82%) - WRARET - EAEZET
AEENENEMRABZENERSAT7% (=
T—tF:47%) AFHRZBERBIIR
THEEREH(—T—+F - THEEX) -

BEERHR-Z - N\FNAA TR ZHER
S(XFAHERED  ZBEHEFER-F
—NFARA=TRZAKESESNERE
B - Bt - BERZELHE T A ELRES
B

R ERE 25 e
Le Petit Chef Series Jé i £ 37 F -
Marco Polo

MBMERE([THMHZER ) (B Le Petit Chef
Series([Le Petit Chef]) &EEZ M =E : Marco
Polo( [Marco Polo |)) (FifF32(a) % 32(b))
s i‘“ﬁa*’fZE*EEJ?%DE%&E%%EFJ/\#%ZKEI
ZWE Al EEmENEULEEARA
HR A3E54F - 1RIEH ﬁﬁ%%‘]?ﬁ%:%—ti
MAZ+N\BER=ZZ—tFA=-+=HZR
B (GBI RERZ )  AEBREEST
4L 0 A A K AR EE M [ {F F Le Petit Chef
KMarco Polo * BiEETRNEE « XFIE
m o WARGRE - RIETE - RIENER - $RE
PERAENRIEFE - TER DR AR A

K2 E = BB K Strong Nefwork%i‘%ﬁﬁ
(FBHNREMBHRERNT14)  EERA
R & A B 78 5 Le Petit Chef &2 Marco Polo
IS RRERRERBERE RERLe
Petit CheffMarco Poloz ##F 4% & 2 ] Ut
ElefEm N HREE -
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. HihEHEE =)

Concession rights on intellectual properties
(Continued)

Cocktail Factory and Picxel

During the year, the Group was further granted rights
to use another 2 IPs namely Cocktail Factory and Picxel
(together with Le Petit Chef and Marco Polo, collectively
the "IP Concession Rights”) from the original IPs" owner
at a consideration of HK$2,555,000. Pursuant to license
agreements dated 1 May 2018 and 10 April 2018, the
Group was granted concession rights to use Cocktail
Factory and Picxel in the People’s Republic of China.

Based on the cash flow forecast of Cocktail Factory and
Picxel, no provision for impairment loss on concession rights
regarding Cocktail Factory and Picxel was considered
necessary during the year as the recoverable amount of
the concession rights regarding Cocktail Factory and Picxel
were higher than its carrying amount.

The Directors were of the opinion that the IP Concession
Rights are considered to have a useful life, which are
reference to their corresponding concession period in
according with the Copyright Agreements or with reference
to similar IPs. The IP Concession Rights are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. The Directors have assessed
the IP Concession Rights at each of the reporting period
and no impairment was provided during the year as they
are of the opinion that the recoverable amount of the IP
Concession Rights is higher than its carrying amount.

16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

ABERZBIEER @

Cocktail Factory X Picxel

RERA -« AEEE—TSERABERER AE
A A 5 MR 18 A3 E #E Cocktail Factory &
Picxel (ZE[FlLe Petit Chef&Marco Polo#ifi
[ MR ERE 2 FFariscEr#]) - {E/2,555,000
BT REBERHAZE - N\FEA-—AR=-Z
—\FWA+ B2 EERZE  NEEERET
KEERE - IR AR EE AR AN B A Cocktail
Factory KzPicxel °

1R # Cocktail Factory & Picxel 2 38 & i =8
Al - A R 7B 3 Cocktail Factory K Picxel
ZRETREEELREBERE  RER
Cocktail Factory } Picxel 2 5 #F 4% & 2 7]
el &R EREE ©

RIFRE R ZSE LRSS SRR
HBEWE BEERR  ABERZSIIRERE
RARREEBEY - MBEREZ SR SRR
PRASR R AT SR - ERE NSRS MREET
HABERE 2 FRHEEE - ARERRAKRE
MBEEZ I ER . SERNEREE
BN LB SRR BB

16. REBHE QT 2

2018 2017

—2-N\% —T—t7

HK$°000 HKS$'000

FExT FiET

Unlisted shares, at cost* BT ERFE ETRMD * 1,085 -
Due from an associate FEUE & A R FRIE 2,306 -
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16. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The investment cost represented 40% equity interest in a
private company (the “Associate”) established in the PRC,
which is principally engaged in the provision of advertising,
exhibition, designing, and IP development. The Associate is
newly acquired by the Group on 25 January 2018 through
the acquisition a subsidiary, Strong Network International
Limited (“Strong Network”) (note 32(b)). Upon the acquisition,
the Group did not take up its result during the period from
25 January 2018 to 30 June 2018 as it was immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest
free and has no fixed terms of repayment, which is included
in the deposits and other receivable (note 21(c)).

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associate that are not
individually material:

léﬁrﬁﬂjz*

&é{ﬁZMEEAEPIEXiE’J Fﬁﬁ}\ A ([ B

M’“"JJ)E’MO%J&%’E BERAEENE
REES  RE Rt KAZNBERE -

AN ER B B W T % A 7] Strong Network
International Limited ([ Strong Network |)
(FFEE32(0) ) R=E—NF—A =+ HHB
E%Hﬁﬁ%’/}ﬁ o RULEEIR - FPOBEE R EIRA

EHMBMRMEALTEKX - WAEER

:T NF—AZ+HBE=ZZ—N\F~A
=+ A EARNE RET AR A -
FENEE = A B KIE AEER - R R REEEE

R o ZFBECRIEEES REMERE
(MiEE21(c)) °

THRIITAEEER T EE
ARES

BB 2 N ] 2 B 7

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Share of the associate’s profit FEAGE &R RIARE [E s A
for the year - -
Share of the associate’s other FEARES & A B E A 2 e
comprehensive income - -
Share of the associate’s fotal R E AR R EINGERE
comprehensive income - -
Aggregate carrying amount of the REEFRERE AR 2 EREE
Group's investments in the associate 1,085 -

Apart from the above, the Group acquired 25% equity
interests in Strong Network (note 32(b)) at a consideration
of HK$15,000,000 and treated as an associate of the
Company since 22 December 2017. Subsequently, the
Group further acquired 75% equity interests in Strong
Network on 25 January 2018 and which became a
subsidiary of the Company since then (note 32(b)). During
the period from 22 December 2017 to 25 January 2018, the
Group has taken up its result of approximately HK$176,000
fo the consolidated statfement of profit or loss.
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Br bt & Hh - 2 £ B 4 Strong Network
25% 54 (Pt 5£32() ) - {£{8%15,000,000%
T WAZE A FT At HEB AR
SEZBENT - iR - ARER =T —\F
— A=+ H H#E—F U HEStrong Network
75%P%# » T Strong Network 5 1t X & 728 2
A B AR (MiEE32(b)) - R=T—t&F+=
A+ —RE_Z-N\F-A-+HAHMK -
ANEEE G K 24 A)176,0008 T A bR e B
=
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17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALES INVESTMENTS

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

17. AR HERE

2018 2017
—2-NF —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Listed investments, BRATESENH LEMREA
at fair value
Equity securities listed in REE_ETRIRAE 5
Hong Kong - 29,700
Unlisted investments, RKAFTENIELTIRE
at cost 13,000 -
13,000 29,700

The fair values of the listed investments were determined
based on the quoted market prices. During the year, the
Group disposed of all listed investments of the available-
for-sales investment through the Stock Exchange. The
decrease in the fair value of available-for-sales investments
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately HK$7,050,000 (2017: approximately
HK$979,000), of which none (2017: approximately
HK$88,000) was determined to be impaired, and therefore,
it was reclassified from the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income fo the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year. The listed investments were
fully disposed of during the year and a loss on disposal
of available for sales investments of approximately
HK$20,079,000 (note 6) was recognised.

As at 30 June 2018, certain unlisted investments with
carrying amount of approximately HK$13,000,000 (2017:
Nil) were stated at cost less impairment because the
Directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

EREZ A HETHETISREETE - RAF
B - AREEEMIHEMAAHEERE
ZETRE - REMEE R ETER < FIHHE
BREZ A FERD 47,050,000 L (—F—+
1 #)979,000 L) + HPZTET(ZT—+
F 1 #4988,000/8 L) EEE ARE - FUEER
AREFHFEEMEMRERENDOBESTS
BHER - FA - ETREEZHFHERMHE
AT 5 1% 8 T 7R 5 451 49 20,079,000 7t (Y
it6) °

R-F—\FERA=1H ETHLHREZ
BREI{E4713,000,0008 7T( =T —+5F : £&)J)
BEAERRES IR - ERESRR TR
FEHFTEREAFE-
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18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

18. BIRERKFIRERM

2018 2017
—E-N\F i
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Loan receivables FEUE FRAR K 108,062 93,050
Interest receivables FEUF B AR 1,028 1111
Impairment R (20,000) -
Net carrying amounts BRHEFE 89,090 94,161
Less: Current portion of loan and B ERE R RF SRR
interest receivables mENER S (89.090) (74.161)
Non-current portion of loan and FEREFRF BB 2 IERBIH D
interest receivables - 20,000

Loan and interest receivables represent outstanding
principal and interest arising from the money-lending
business of the Group. All of the loan receivables are
entered with contractual maturity within 6 months to 24
months. The Group seeks to maintfain strict control over its
loan and interest receivables in order to minimise credit risk
by reviewing the borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually
agreed between the confracting parties, ranging from 8%
fo 12% per annum. As af 30 June 2018, all loan receivables
of the Group were unsecured.

The movement for impairment of loan and interest
receivables is as follows:

R E R R A SR FIE AR BE B R B HE
EZHARBEIARE RFE - FBE%FREE
FERFPTR] & K2 H BN FR6ME A =241 A
o ZRER B ) SRAEHS AR P ) EL FE W B R e A
BRAR BRBEEERAZMBANR - ARFE
;EJ—LKW ?

FEWE R BRRIRET 8977 < EHEE B E 2§ =
NFEHF8HEI12%TE - RZE—/\F~NA
=108 ' ANEEFARRERRRAERE -

R E R A SRR HEZEBIAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EtF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of year REA] = -
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) & #ERMIERE (Ki76) 20,000 -
At end of year RER 20,000 -
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18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 18.

(Continued)

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

The loan and interest receivables at the end of the
reporting period are analysed by the remaining period to

contractual maturity date as follows:

BRERRFBERR @

RNREHR - RIS RBPABKTHRRAEZ
R E SRR A SRR Z AT

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Receivable: FEUGRIA
Within 3 months =@AA 1,002 2,330
3 months to 1 year “@AzE—%F 88,088 71,831
Over 1 year Bl —F - 20,000
89,090 94,161
Less: Current portion of loan and o B EREFBERRZ
interest receivables mENER D (89.090) (74.161)
Non-current portion of loan and EREF KT ERK 2 IERB D
interest receivables - 20,000

19. INVENTORIES

19. #&

At 30 June 2018, the Group’s inventories with carrying
amount of HK$1,656,000 (2017: HK$2,807,000) represented
merchandises for sales which were stated at the lower of

cost or net realisable value.

R-ZZE-N\FRA=1TH AEERHER
1,656,000/ 7C( —F —+4F : 2,807,000 7T)
ZEFEREERm - A AT IR ERE
HEIEEIIE

2018 £ | FEFEBZERARAA

153



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. B E 5 IRFX
2018 2017
—2-N\= 2
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Trade receivables JEWE 5 R 25,335 4,197
Impairment (note 6) R E (fEE6) 99 -
25,236 4,197
The Group’s terms on credit sales primarily range from 30 to AREE 7 BREEHRE —RAIOKEI80ARTE
180 days (2017: 30 to 180 days). —ZT—+F : 30KE180XK) °
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior BREEET R RER c SR KR
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact RALE BB E SRR ESMEFERA -
that the Group's trade receivables relate to diversified W EEREERREFZER - BIE SR
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit RARTETE -

risk. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of REMEHR - REZEMHE 2 EWE FERHR
provision) as at the end of the reporting period, based on (HIBRBHE) 2 BRile DAT AN T -

the invoice date, is as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Current RNER 14,245 2,150
31 - 60 days 31 - 60k 6,987 2,047
61 - 90 days 61 - 90k 3,881 -
91 - 180 days 91 - 180K 123 -
Over 180 days HBiB180K - -
25,236 4,197
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EIE SR =

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
(neither individually nor collectively) considered to be
impaired is as follows:

I IEAR AR E (T (E Bl SR BRI E) 2 FE W &
PR BRI DITIAT

2018 2017

—Z-N\F = —+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired g R RE 14,245 2,150
Less than 1 month past due AR —EA 6,987 2,047
1 to 3 months past due mif—==M@A 3,881 -
3 to 6 months past due mEf=="AA 123 -
Over 6 months BB~ EA = -
25,236 4,197

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of
the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

3 45760 H 7 SR 2 B W 58 5 R o A A HA 3
HoRFERZ DB P 2R

BHERREEKESRERERAEEAFR
s BPAR - REBERR  ANEE
BRY|EARE) - MULFERDERSATE
Zem - MESRASHAU FERIELRE
B - AREY BRI F AR AEMER R
SEMBREES -
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21.
RECEIVABLES

ANRIE - RERE MBI
|

2018 2017

—E-N\F R —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHT

Prepayments SEANE/ O 801 534

Trade deposits Bo5%e 16,384 20,835
Deposits and other receivables Ze REAEUFIA (MR (C))

(note (c)) 27,251 12,575
Frozen amounts (note (a)) R &ERIR (5T (a)) 39,156 39,156
Tax recoverable AR EIR IR 874 -
Deposits for the acquisition of WE=BEEEE

the Sense Media Group (note (b)) Z® (o)) - 5,000

84,466 78,100

Noftes:

(@) As detailed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, the balances of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,000,000) and US$20,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$156,000) (collectively the “Frozen
Amounts”) had been frozen by Silicon Valley Bank and
PayPal, since August 2014 and October 2012, respectively.
The Directors consider that the Frozen Amounts have been
frozen and were temporarily restrained for the Group’s free
usage and therefore, such balances were classified as “other
receivables”. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period
on 12 September 2018, the district court has made an order
that the plaintiff may obtain disbursement in the sum of
approximately US$2,681,000 from the Frozen Amounts.

(b) As detailed in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group acquired (i) 100% equity interest in
Sense Media Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the "Sense Media Group”); and (ii) the
outstanding loan owing by the Sense Media Group to the
vendor at a consideration of HK$80,000,000 (subject to
adjustments). As at 30 June 2017, a deposit of HK$5,000,000
has been paid by the Group to the vendor. The acquisition
was completed on 7 August 2017.

(¢) Included in the deposits and other receivables was
an amount due from an associate of approximately
HK$2,306,000, details of which are stated in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
fo receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.
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22. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 22. #2EFF ABRZRAIRE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017

—E-N\F R —F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Listed equity investments, ETRAIRE - mmERE

at market value 40,995 219
The fair values of the equity investments were determined ARG E 2 AT ETRETISERETE - R=
based on the quoted market prices. The above equity Z—N\EFEF_ZT—tFXA=FH  EEAR
investments as at 30 June 2018 and 2017 were classified BEWDIERIFEE S - FEVIRIERE - A&

as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition, BEIREAZ AT EFABRZEMEE -

designated by the Group as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 23. R&RREZEHEH R BIKH

PLEDGED DEPOSITS LEEN

2018 2017
—g—Nn= —T %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Cash and bank balances & RIRITHE 43,046 94,458
Time deposits TE BT 310 310
43,356 94,768

Less: Pledged time deposits B RERRRITREMEE

for securing banking AMEmMERZ

and other credit facilities EBER (310) 310)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEEER 43,046 94,458
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted fo approximately HK$5,535,000 (2017:
approximately HK$959,000) in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible intfo other currencies. However, under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The banking and other credit facilities of the Group
were secured by the Group’s time deposits amounting
to approximately HK$310,000 (2017: approximately
HK$310,000).

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of tfrade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on payment due date, is as
follows:

23.

24,

HeRELESEEAREIKH
E e

RIBEEF - AEERPEUARE (AR
o ) SHE 2 B4 R IRIT B4 55,535,0005%
TL(ZZE—+F : 49959,000/87T) ° AR
ATLA B E MR A AN - AT - RIEER BN
BB IR R - EERAEEEEE - A
2 I B B (TONE X 5 2 BAT A
BN 3 1 E AN o

AEBZRITEEMBEERE DAL EEDN
EMFERA310,000 8 T(—F—£F : 4
310,000/& 7T ) fE A3 -

FEfS 8 5 IR

FEN B S BRI E BR D BIRNREI B B 5
ZIREEDHTENT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHBT

Current BNHR 10,293 8,043
31 - 60 days 31 - 60K 1,163 -
61 - 90 days 61 - 90K 107 -
91 - 180 days 91 - 180Kk = 589
Over 180 days @180k 10,521 11,026
22,084 19,658
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25. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 25. H{tt B FKIE - EWIRERE

26.

AND ACCRUALS STER
2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —EF—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Other payables E b BT 3IE 1,840 4,678
Deposits received BliES 785 -
Accruals EFTEA 10,004 9,101
Provision for litigation and legal fee FAREEEABE(ME))
(note (a)) 40,000 49,452
52,629 63,231
Note: Bf3E

(@) The Group is a defendant of a litigation in the U.S. in
respect of its e-commerce business through on-line sales
platforms since August 2012. The balance of approximately
HK$40,000,000 (2017: approximately HK$49,952,000)
represented the provision for litigation and legal fee, details
of which are stated in note 40 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

Ofher payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and
normally seftled within one year.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Normally, a full payment in advance is required from
e-commerce customers (the "e-Customers”) upon
placing orders. As at 30 June 2018, the deposits received
in advance of approximately HK$2,258,000 (2017:
approximately HK$1,487,000) represented deposits
received from the e-Customers for merchandises delivered
by the Group subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.

(@) AEBE-T-——&/\AL5LH-E5H
BBRB I BETARAETEEEE Y F
W7 HE A o AB#40,000,0005 78 (= F
— 4 : #949,952,00008 7T ) 7 &84 B IEAR
ERBRZEE  HREERRGAMBERE
W40 ©

HibENFBREAERARE  BEN—F
AT o

26. TEWES
EFRBZEP([EFEF ) —RAEEEN
EHAENT - RZT-NAFRA=TH  &Z
BRI} #2,258,000/8 T(—F—+ 5 :
#11,487,000/870) RIAMIZ S - AEED N
SRREBEFEREXGETES °
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year, the Group issued 2 convertible bonds in
August 2017 (the "August 2017 CB”) and December 2017
(the "December 2017 CB"), respectively, with details as
follows:

The August 2017 CB

On 7 August 2017, the Company issued a zero coupon
redeemable convertible bond with nominal value
of HK$70,000,000 due in August 2020, comprising of
HK$40,000,000 (the “1st Tranche Lockup CB") and
HK$30,000,000 (the “2nd Tranche Lockup CB") as part of
the consideration for the Sense Acquisition (as defined
in note 32(a)). The 1st Tranche Lockup CB and the 2nd
Tranche Lockup CB are conditionally convertible into
ordinary shares of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.138 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments in accordance with the terms of the August
2017 CB).

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.138 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
507,246,376 conversion shares will be allotted and issued,
representing 18.27% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company and approximately 15.45% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the conversion shares.

The 1st Tranche Lockup CB shall be convertible when (i)
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Sense
Media Group for the First Guarantee Period (as defined
in note 32(a)) is issued and the First Year Target Profit
(as defined in note 32(a)) is achieved; and (ii) if the First
Year Target Profit is not achieved, full payment of cash
compensation has been made to the Company.

The 2nd Tranche Lockup CB shall be convertible when (i)
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Sense
Media Group for the Second Guarantee Period (as defined
in note 32(a)) is issued and the Second Year Target Profit
(as defined in note 32(a)) is achieved; and (ii) if the
Second Year Target Profit is not achieved, full payment of
the cash compensation has been made to the Company.
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 27. AR ER e

The August 2017 CB (Continued)

Pursuant to the convertible bond instrument, the Company
has been granted a redemption right (the "Redemption
Right”) to redeem the 1st Tranche Lockup CB and the
2nd Tranche Lockup CB at any time before their maturity.
Based on a valuation performed by Ascent Partners, an
independent valuer, the Directors were of the opinion that
the fair value of the Redemption Right was not material to
the consolidated financial statements as at the date of
inception and at the end of the reporting period and no
recognition of the fair value of the Redemption Right was
made in the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of the liability component of the August
2017 CB was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The liability component
of the August 2017 CB is subsequently stated at amortised
cost until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the
bonds. The residual amount represented the conversion
option and was included in shareholders’ equity.

Imputed interest expense on the August 2017 CB is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of 9.90% per annum.

The December 2017 CB

On 1 December 2017, the Company further issued a
convertible bond with nominal value of HK$100,000,000
carrying a coupon rate of 2.5% due in November 2020. The
December 2017 CB is convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.181 per
conversion share (subject fo adjustments in accordance
with the tferms of the December 2017 CB).

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.181 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
552,486,187 conversion shares will be allotted and issued,
representing approximately 19.90% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company and approximately 16.60%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the conversion shares.

—E-tFENABKRES(E)

RIFABBRESFXE  AARERTERE
(MEERE]) - ATREIEI AT (AR B O 5 — 4t
SDEARREFRE - HEEABRES -
BB AEM T HEETZME - EFR
A RS ARG BB R A RE - BEEZ
NP EEGEMBERRMELAEX - B E
WiFa UMK HEREQ#E 2 A TE -

—tFNARBREESFZBERDAFE
Ef&‘iﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ?‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂaﬁzwﬁﬂ & - —
T—tF AR ES 2 8 B0 H &R
HRATIREENMEF BB E SR E RS
1 - RIS RERBREEILE - THFI AR AR -

Tt FN\ABRRESZEER S %EJEZTJ
RAEBRFNEE - REBRFENE.90%HE

:ﬁ—tiJr:H Eﬁﬁ}‘wﬁ%

R-B—LF+-A—B  ARRE—SHET
EEZ%]O0,000 OOO/%TEE!‘JT?%HX{Z%? —T—@
BER25% W-B-TF+—AZH =
T— L+ ATRBRESTRNSRERES
BHRARAR130.181 BT (AR =B — 5+ = A
AR ES O RRTURE) WAL AR E

AR

RIARE F AR AR 90.181 8 7T (7] T8 %)
FTH - 5x%552,486,187 BRI AR AN # T LARC
BERET  HERARRRAEHTRALY
19.90% & 4&& B 2 e B ATHAR R DB R 2 AR
A ETARAAI16.60%
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27. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The December 2017 CB (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the December
2017 CB was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The liability component of
the December 2017 CB is subsequently stated at amortised
cost until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the
bonds. The residual amount represented the conversion
option and was included in shareholders’ equity.

Imputed interest expense on the December 2017 CB is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rate of 11.90% per annum.

27.

No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

A AR &S )
—E—tFt-AAEkRES(E
—t¢+:ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ%zaﬁ%wﬂ
EBE%%WTT%%E%Z%%W?*
—EF+ - ATBRES 2 AEHHEE
&%ﬁﬁ$ﬂ%ﬁi%%%ﬁﬁﬁjﬂ%%ﬁ
KAL - MBS ERRERE - 7 AREE

Ny
Zs o
Im

T—tF+ - ArBRESZEERN SR}
B%ﬁﬁ,\ﬁﬂﬂ R - BEBREFNEI.90%A

s
(=)
Eaa

The August 2017 CB and the December 2017 CB have been T—+F N\ BRREFR T —+F+=
split into the liability and equity components as follows: A REFE D RBERERISWT :
August December
2017 CB 2017 CB Total
bl of 3 —Z—tf
NA +=A
AR ES RRES @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THET FET
Nominal value of convertible bonds AT F# TR AR EHEE
issued during the year 70,000 100,000 170,000
Equity component EmED (17,259) (21,164) (38,423)
Direct fransaction costs affributoble & &2 EGEZER HHRA*
to the liability component* - (1.971) (1.971)
Liability component af the issuance  7A%17 B EiK & &35
date 52,741 76,865 129,606
Imputed interest expense (note 7) BRI B % (H:E7) 4,690 5,334 10,024
Interest paid BRFE - (1,451) (1.451)
Liobility component at 30 June - N\FRA=THEK
2018 ﬁ%%ﬁn 57,431 80,748 138,179
Less: Classified as current portion  Jil : i ARETH - - -
Classified as non-current portion FERERDDY 57,431 80,748 138,179
N The direct transaction costs arising from the issuance of the * BT FE+ A ERESELAERE

December 2017 CB amounted to HK$2,500,000, of which,
HK$529,000 was attributed to the equity component and the
remaining balances of HK$1,971,000 was afttributed to the
liability component.
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28. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At 30 June 2018, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2017: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group's subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as
follows:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

28. EIEHIA

EEBEAR

R-FB—N\FAAZ+E  AEELWRET
8 2 2 KB BRI 2 BB AR E
ABBZ RERETHERE(—T—£F
®) -

EEREEE
FEREERESE BT -

Tox losses

TiIEE 18

HK$"000

FHET

Af 1 July 2017 RZZE—tF+A—H -
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFT AR B Bmi 2 RIEHIE

statement of profit or loss during the year (Mf5E10)
(note 10) 3,011
At 30 June 2018 RZZE—-NFRA=1H 3,011

The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax
assets not recognised calculated at deferred tax rates
in Hong Kong and the PRC at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%), and
25% (2017: 25%), respectively, on cumulative temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period, are as
follows:

BRBERRZBFAHRRER  REFER
HEZREHRER DR B16.5%( —F—+F -
16.5%) }:25%( —Z—+ 5 : 25%) » fHEASK
BARMER ZREENIBEE EBEMIAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’'000 HK$’000

FTHET FAT

Tax losses HIEkEE 37.433 29,408
Accelerated depreciation MR ERBE

allowances 160 101

37,593 29,509

2018 £ | FEFEBZERARAA
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Conftinued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$225,419,000
(2017: approximately HK$174,855,000), which are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has
tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately HK$1,220,000
(2017: approximately HK$2,228,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some fime and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be ufilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding fax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enferprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings affer 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
faxes on dividends disfributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremiffed earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the subsidiaries in the PRC (the "PRC subsidiaries”). In
the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that the PRC
Subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of unremitted earnings from
the PRC Subsidiaries was amounting to approximately
HK$15,109,000 (2017: Nil).
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BgA
2018 2017
ZE-0\F k- S 2
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RAEE Af REE AE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TER TEL
Authorised : EE !
At beginning of year, ordinary — AE4] - SREB0ELL
shares of HK$0.01 each LER 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Atend of year, ordinary shares  AER - SREBE00ELL
of HK$0.01 each LER 10,000,000,000 100,000 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER:
At beginning of year, ordinary — REA] - SREE0.0ETLZ
shares of HK$0.01 each LR 2,776,215,424 27,762 1,398,553,424 13,986
Share placing: LR -
- July 2016 GM Placing — "B AELA-REE ,
REEE @0 - - 295832000 2,958
- Ocfober 2016 SM Placing —ZE-RETABERE :
£ @) - = 468750000 4,688
- April 2017 GM Placing —ZE-LENA-REE
] @ - = 355000000 3550
Exercise of share opfions TiRRRE (o) - - 258,080,000 2,580
Atend of year, ordinary shares  IAE R+ SHEE(E0.01
of HK$0.01 each B LBk 2,776,215,424 27,762 2,776,215,424 21,162
(@ () On 7 July 2016, the Company entered into a @ (@ RZZE—RFLtALH AQH

placing agreement under general mandate
with a placing agent (the “July 2016 GM
Placing”), pursuant to which, the Company
placed a total of 295,832,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company to not less
than six placees who and whose ultimate
beneficial owner are independent third parties
at the placing price of HK$0.11 per share. The
July 2016 GM Placing was completed on 26
July 2016 with net proceeds of approximately
HK$31,215,000 for general working capital,
business development and investment
opportunities of the Group.

B—REEELEREIEE
ek - Bt - ARAIERES H
295,832,0008 & 2~ ] & AR E{E
0.01BTTZH M F ALK %
AR (RF R E 2 xR B
BEANEORBUE=T)  BREE
RO EEONTETL(I —F—R%F
tHA-REEFR]) - —F—R
FEA-REESER-F—RX
FLHA-TNARK IR
#731,215,000/8 T AR A& H
Z—REEES  EBERIE
EREMENRAE
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Conftinued)
(Continued)

(@

®)

)

(iii)

On 17 October 2016, the Company entered
into a placing agreement under specific
mandate with a placing agent (the "October
2016 SM Placing”), pursuant to which, the
Company placed a fotal of 468,750,000 new
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company fo not
less than six placees who and whose ulfimate
beneficial owner are independent third parties
at the placing price of HK$0.128 per share.
The October 2016 SM Placing was completed
on 8 December 2016 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$57,455,000 for development
of the money-lending business, general
working capital of the Group and funding the
payment of the remaining consideration of the
acquisition of money-lending business.

On 6 April 2017, the Company entered info a
placing agreement under general mandate
with a placing agent (the "April 2017 GM
Placing”), pursuant to which, the Company
placed a fotal of 355,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company to not less than
six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial
owner are independent third parties at the
placing price of HK$0.122 per share. The April
2017 GM Placing was completed on 27 April
2017 with net proceeds of approximately
HK$41,426,000 for general working capital,
business development and investment
opportunities of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, all share option
holders exercised their option rights under the new

share option scheme and the old share option
scheme to subscribe for an aggregate of 177,440,000
and 80,640,000 ordinary shares, respectively, of the
Company of HK$0.01 each at an exercise price of

HK$0.145 and HKS$0.1294 per share respectively. The

fotal proceeds from exercise of share optfions under
the new share opfion scheme and the old share
option scheme were approximately HK$25,729,000
and HK$10,435,000 respectively.
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)y R-FT—AE+ATEE  £A
BRI B R T T B
BB Bl AAFERES
468,750,000 B A8 A 7 & B ™
{H0.01 87T 2 B FRARA
BABA(BEREE 2 RKE %
HEASELABTE=S) &
B £ IR 13 1E (B 012838 7 ([ =
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ﬁé@i%%lﬁﬁ_ —R"E+=A

NBZEK - FITRIEBEEROS
57,455,000 T ARNEREE
X% AKE-REEES RN
S‘Zﬁ%zﬁﬁ fEEEH 2 RERHE
Z A&

(iy R-T—tFMAAEB  ARF
ERfiRE RIRIRIE —MRIRAERT L IE
Bz - Bt ARAENE
H&O]22/%EZEEEF@E%D/\
355,000,000 % A~ 7~ 7] & i &
0.01 BT Z#RHD T AL RAR

BEREAN(BRERKREZRRE
HEBEAERBIE=7)=
%*timﬂZ*M%%M%$
) e —t+FHAz R
%E%%Eﬁmffftiﬂﬁ
Tt H5EK - FISRIEFEL
41,426,000 7T 1§ A{EAR S B —
BREEED  EBERERER
1 o

REE-_T—tEA=ZTAHLFE
FrERRERE ADIRBINERES
ZIREEREBITHEEBERER
AR 5 510.1457% 7T 501294 7T 2
1T1EE D B R A ££177,440,000 i
1%2.80,640,000/% & ik E1E0.01 & T 2
ARRABE BB - REBEIERES
Z K B8 M i 1 297 F B AR AE A &9 B
B A £ 5 549 A25,729,0007% T K&
10,435,000/ 7T °



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 69
and 70 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Company includes
premium arising from the new issue of shares in the current
and prior years netted of share issue expenses.

Under Section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the special reserve and share premium
account is available for disfribution to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Artficles of Association of
the Company which was in effect before the Change of
Domicile (defined as below) becoming effective on 20
August 2015 (Bermuda time) and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the special reserve and share
premium account unless, immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company shall be able fo pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the change of domicile of the Company from the Cayman
Islands to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders.
The change of domicile of the Company was subsequently
completed on 21 August 2015 (the "Change of Domicile”).
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds
in the share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

The convertible bond equity reserve comprises the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus/Capital reserve

The capital reserve account of the Company includes
the difference between the consolidated net assetfs of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the group reorganisation
upon listing in July 2000 and the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the amount of approximately HK$44,756,000 standing fo
the credit of the share premium account of the Group was
cancelled and transferred to an account designated as
capital reserve account. Upon the Change of Domicile
of the Company, such account was to be rename as
“Contributed surplus accounts”.
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30. RESERVES (continued)

Contributed surplus/Capital reserve (Continued)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the capital reserve account of the Company is distributable
tfo the equity shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the distribution or payment of
dividend, the Company is able fo pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

After the Change of Domicile of the Company, under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus
account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Treasury share reserve/capital redemption
reserve

Balance represented an amount equivalent to the par
value of the shares cancelled of HK$3,526,000 which
was transferred from the retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve during the years ended 30 June 2012
and 2013, pursuant to Section 37 of the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Upon the Change of Domicile, such
account was to be renamed as “Treasury share reserve”
account.

Share options reserve

Share options reserve comprises the portion of grant
date fair value of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments.

Available-for-sales investments revaluation
reserve

The available-for-sales investments revaluatfion reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of
available-for-sales investments held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

30. RESERVES (continued)

31.

Other reserve

The other reserve account of the Company includes the
difference between the proceeds from the subscription
for 245 new shares of EPRO E-commerce Group Limited
("EPRO") by subscriber and the 49% carrying value of
EPRO and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EPRO Group”)
of approximately HK$8,344,000 recognised upon the
completion of the subscription. The Group’s equity inferest
in EPRO was diluted from 100% to 51% and it is considered as
a deemed partial disposal of EPRO by the Group which did
not result in any loss of control and was accounted for as
an equity transaction (note 34).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s shares option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are as follows:

(a) Old Share Option Scheme

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on
12 February 2007, adopted a share option scheme
(the "Old Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants
for their contribution tfo the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and atftract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”). Eligible participants of the Old Share Option
Scheme include the directors and employees of
the Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity,
suppliers and customers of the Group or any Invested
Entity, any person or entity that provides research,
development or fechnological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity, any adviser or consultant to
any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, any joint
venture partner or business alliance that co-operates
with any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
in any area of business operatfion or development
and any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity. The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated
on 1 November 2016 after the adoption of a new
share option scheme.
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at 12 February 2007,
being the date of adoption of the Old Share Option
Scheme, (i.e. not exceeding 24,012,000 shares, which
were subsequently refreshed to 134,479,342 shares
during the year ended 30 June 2016). The Company
may seek approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Old
Share Option Scheme save that the fotal number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company under the limit as “refreshed” shall not
exceed 10% of the fotal number of shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes) will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Old Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of grant. Each grant of options to any
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
must be approved by independent non-executive
directors.
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31. IBIRERE 8l
(o) ERERES S

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates would result in the shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already and to be granted in excess 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be
accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HKST1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, save
that such period shall not be more than ten years
from the date of the offer of the share options subject
to the provisions for early tfermination set out in the
Old Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum
period for which an optfion must be held before the
exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto
except otherwise imposed by the board of directors.
The exercise price is defermined by the Directors but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(a) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, 80,640,000
share options have been exercised and resulted
in the issue of 80,640,000 additional new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, with aggregate proceeds
before related issue expenses of approximately
HK$10,435,000. The movement of number of share
options under the Old Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 30 June 2017 was as follows:

31. B8l =)
(o) %Eﬁﬂﬁﬁéyr%ﬂ (4)

WBE-Z—t+tFRA=THILFE
80,640, 0001 7 s I P 2 1T T R 0 8 B
780,640,000k & i EI{E0.01 7 7T Z
RN E R - FTSFURRE CIKRAR
BAZE1T R < Al) 23#910,435,000 T °
UTABEE—ZE—tFA=THLF
ERREBRETE 2 BRESRE 2 &
&) :

Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as af Exercised as af Date of Exercisable Exercise price
1.July during the 30 June grant of period of of share
Name or category of participant 2016 year 2017 share options share options options
RZB-AF RZB-tF
tA-8 RA=1A i R g
SRELBIFRER HATTE REEFE HATE ERERS B2k 2iRE
HKS per share
v
Directors
g2
Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong 13,440,000 (13,440,000) - 2TMay 2016 27 Moy 201610 0.1294
FEktiE “E1E 26 May 2017
(Resigned as on executive director of RAZTtA “IRF
the Company with effect from RAZTtRE
23 Sepfember 2016) “R-tE
(BZE-ENA-TZRRBIALT TA-tAA
ZHE%)
Mr. HUNG Kenneth 13,440,000 (13,440,000) - 27May 2016 27 May 201610 0.1294
HERTE ZERE 26 May 2017
(Resigned as an executive director of RAZTtA IB5F
the Company with effect from RAZTtRE
1 November 2017) 31F
(B3 tET-A-BREEARA RAZTRA
LHEE)
Employees and other participants 53,760,000 (53,760,000) - 27 May 2016 27 May 2016 10 01294
BIRHfSEE BN 2 Moy 2017
RAZt++A “5F
EA-TtRZE
“RtE
il it
80,640,000 (80.640,000) -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@

®)

Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the date on which
these share options were exercised was HKS0.123 per
share.

New Share Option Scheme

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on
1 November 2016, adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) for the
substitution of the Old Share Option Scheme to
issue up to 10% of the shares in issue on the grant of
options under the New Share Option Scheme. There
is no material difference between the terms of the
New Share Option Scheme and the Old Share Option
Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme should,
unless otherwise terminated or amended, remain in
force for ten years from 1 November 2016.

In order to give the Company the flexibility to grant
share options to eligible participants under the New
Share Option Scheme as incentives and/or rewards
for their contribution to the Group, the Company
refresh the scheme mandate limit (the “Refreshed
Mandate”) pursuant to a resolution passed on 1
November 2017 which allowed the Company to grant
up to 277,621,542 share options pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme, representing 10% of the issued
shares as at 1 November 2017.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the year, 277,000,000 share options have
been granted under the New Share Option Scheme,
the movement of number of share options under the

31. Biz#EstEl e
(b) #FiEMEE(E)
4R+ 277,000,00015 8 B B 247

BREERL - ATABRE-Z—N\
FRA=T B L FERBEHNBERESE

New Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 ZIEIRESE 2 #E)
June 2018 is as follows:
Number of share options
EREHE
Outstanding Gronted  Oufstanding Date of Exercisable  Exercise price
as af during as af grant of period of of share
Name or category of participant 1 July 2017 theyear ~ 30June 2018  share options share options options*
RZB-t# “E-N\E
thA-H YR
SHRELRAMBER AT REERY HATE  REERERS BREZOES  BREZGRE
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
£
Mr. POON Man Sum - 25,000,000 25,000,000 12February 12 August 2018 to 027
EXARLE 2018 11 February 2020
N “5-\f
ZATZA /‘\H RE
:ﬂ+fa
Mr. Al Kuiyu - 25,000,000 25,000,000 12February 2018 12 August 2018 fo 027
EFRE ZZ-\§ 11 February 2020
“At=H —E-N\E
NAtZRZ
“30%%
ZAt+-A
Employees and other participants - 227,000,000 207,000,000 12 February2018 12 August 2018 fo 027
BIRHEMSEE ZZ-\F 11 February 2020
“At=H —E-N\E
NATZBE
“30%%
ZAt+-A
- 277,000,000 277,000,000
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to g PEARAE 2 1T R B AT AR T AR sl 31T AL

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

B’ - SRR TBAZ AR RBT
AT -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dafte on which these share
options were granted was HK$0.26 per share.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair value of share options granted on 12 February
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31. IBIRERE 8l
(b) Bk EGE)
AR AR IR I I X S M IR
712 M (B ASIRO0.26ETT °

AHERFERE BN - \F A
ToARBZEREZ ATEREES

2018 under the New Share Option Scheme: LA R -
Directors and employees Others
EE=RES Hith
Exercise price HKS$0.277% 7T HKS$0.277% 7T
I8
Expected volatility 68.712% 68.712%
& AR I8
Vesting date 12 August 2018 12 August 2018
=R —ET-N\FNA+ZH —ZE-N\FNA+ZH
Expected life 2 years 24 2 years 24
TE HA<F B
Risk-free rate 1.287% 1.287%
gl
Expected dividend yield Nil & Nil &
TE HA B 3 %
Exercise multiple Directors: 1.068 1.095
IR IEE E% :1.068
Employee: 1.084
5 :1.084

The fair value of the 277,000,000 share options
granted fo the directors and employees, and other
participants on 12 February 2018 under the New
Share Option Scheme were estimated at HK$0.02 and
HK$0.033 per share respectively using the Binomial
Model. The expected volatility used the historical
volatility of the stock price of the Company. Risk-free
rate represents the yields to maturity of respective
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at the valuation
date.

RIEREFER =T - N\F_A+=
ERTEEREEURAEMSEE Y
277,000,000 #& Bt 2 R FAE TR =
BARA 7 B E A ER0.0278 T
FZ0.033/8 T - FEHRE IR B AL
BB E LR IR o AR RN FE
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately HK$5,691,000 during the year ended
30 June 2018 in relation to share options granted
by the Company in which, as to approximately
(i) HK$764,000 was included in the directors’
remuneration; (i) approximately HK$1,222,000 was
included in staff costs; (i) approximately HK$731,000
was included in marketing expenses; and (iv)
approximately HK$2,974,000 was included in legal
and professional expenses.

As at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the New
Share Option Scheme was 621,542, representing
approximately 0.02% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

No options were exercised/lapsed/cancelled under
the New Share Option Scheme during the Year.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
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31. B8l =)

(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) FriBRIRET S
During the year ended 30 June 2017, 177,440,000 REZE_T—+tFA=THILEFE
share options have been granted under the New 177.440,00017 f& i 1 B 42 ¥ g AR =t
Share Option Scheme. The movement of number EEL - UTABE-T—tF A
of the share options under the New Share Option = B IEFEREE SRR 8 2 BB AR
Scheme for the year ended 30 June 2017 is as follows: HEE &
Number of share options
ERERA
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding Date of Exercisable Exercise
as af during during as af grant of period of price of
Name or category of participant 1 July 2016 the year theyear ~ 30June 2017  share options share options  share options*
RZE-A% RZB-tf
tA-A ~A=TH
SRELRIFRER HARTE AEERY FEETE HAME  REBRERE  BREGRE BREORE
HKS per share
§lEn
Directors
gz
Mr. TAIMan Hin Tony - 17,744,000 (17,744,000) - 23December 23 December 0145
B Gyt 216 201610
(Appointed as on executive “TNE 22 December
director of the Company with +ZA=1=H 218
effect from 13 September 2016 5N
and resigned on 1June 2017) TZA=1=H
(BZB-R"ENATZRREER E25-)\f
BRARZRTESIR 315 R ey
AA-BER)
Employees and other participants - 159,696,000 (159,696,000) - 23 December 23 December 0145
BIREMSEE 216 201610
ZE-5F  22December
+f=t28 2018
“TRE
TZAZt=H%
e iy s
- 177,440,000 (177,440,000) -
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to * M ARAE 2 1T (R (B AT AR T AR s 31T AL

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

B - AR AR Z R ARG BT

T -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(b) New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair value of share options granted on 23 December
2016 under the New Share Option Scheme:

31. IBIRERE 8l
(b) Bk EGE)
HERFBRET AR =T A=
B=+= R BRE2 ATFERE
EANTER :

Director Others
B Hity
Exercise price HK$0.145% 7T HK$0.145% 7T
111818
Expected volatility 110.084% 110.084%
L]
Expected life 2 years 24 2 years 24
TE B4R ER
Risk-free rate 1.243% 1.243%
R
Expected dividend yield Nil & Nil &
SELHIEIRE
The fair value of the 177,440,000 share options EHERESER=_F—X"F+=_A

granted on 23 December 2016 under the New Share
Option Scheme was estimated at HK0.004 per share
using the Binomial Model. The expected volatility
used the historical volatility of the stock price of the
Company. Risk-free rate represents the yields to
maturity of respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund
Note as at the valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expense of
approximately HK$710,000 during the year ended 30
June 2017 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

All share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme had been exercised by the grantees
during the year ended 30 June 2017 and resulted
in the issue of 177,440,000 additional new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at an exercise price of
HK$0.145, with aggregate proceeds before related
issue expenses of approximately HK$25,729,000.
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_+ H#% 5 2 177,440,000 17 & ik 4%
RNFEDR-ZBAEXFERETR
0.00A;%TE o TR ERIR & To A A AR 12 Bk
BEVE LIRS - EERXERTEE S
HABERZMES B2 e -

RBE-Z—tFRA=THILFE
AEB AR AR H 2 BB AT RS 4 5
52 #7710,000/8 7T °

BRI SR M 2 B E &
ERARBE_Z—EFARA=TAL
FETIAITE - BBIRTEE0.145%
TC#17177,440,000/% iR E {50.01 %
TTZEINTEBR - S FRIRAECN
FrABRE 1T RISIAT) £4925,729,0007%
T o
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. BB  E]
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-Z-\FRA=THLEFE
(a) Sense Acquisition (o) =BKBEFR

On 5 June 2017, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Sense Media Group
Holdings Limited (*Vendor A"), an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Company acquired
(the "Sense Acquisition”) (i) 100% equity interest
in Sense Media Group Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the “Sense Media Group”); and (ii) the
outstanding loan (the “Sale Loan”) owing by the
Sense Media Group fo Vendor A at a consideration
of HK$80,000,000, in which, (i) as to HK$10,000,000
was safisfied by cash; and (ii) the remaining balance
of HK$70,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of zero
coupon redeemable convertible bond (the "August
2017 CB") to Vendor A, details of the terms and
conditions are stated in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Sense Media Group is principally engaged in the
operation of IP rights licensing and international IP
development, media integrated marketing business.
Vendor A had granted a profit guarantee, (the
“Sense Profit Guarantee”) to the Company pursuant
to which, the consolidated net profit after tax of the
Sense Media Group are not less than HK$8,000,000
(the “First Year Target Profit”) for the financial year
ended on 30 June 2018 (the “First Guarantee Period”)
and HK$10,000,000 (the “Second Year Target Profit”)
for the financial year ending on 30 June 2019 (the
"Second Guarantee Period”), respectively.

Vendor A shall compensate the Company if there
is shortfall of the First Year Target Profit and the
Second Year Target Profit respectively by way of
cash compensation which represents (i) 5 times of
the shortfall of the First Year Target Profit (subject
to a cap of HK$40,000,000); and (ii) 3 times of the
shortfall of the Second Year Target Profit (subject to
a cap of HK$30,000,000). The Sense Profit Guarantee
should be initially recognised as a derivative and
should be stated at its fair value at the end of each
reporting period. However, based on a valuation
performed by Ascent Partners, an independent
valuer, the fair value of the Profit Guarantee was not
material to the consolidated financial statements
and no recognition of the amount was made in the
consolidated financial statements. As af the date of
these consolidated financial statements, the First Year
Target Profit has been achieved.

The Sense Acquisition was completed on 7 August
2017.

RZEBE—+FAEHB ARAFHE
Sense Media Group Holdings
Limited([EFA] - REILE=7):IL
BE i - BUEARAE (=B UEE
=18 ) () =B EHEBR A R CGE[R EHH
BAT - S =B EEEE )r9100%
e R(N=BEEEEERZEFTA
ZAEBEER(THEER]) KER
80,000,000 7t * H H (i)10,000,000
BLTUREIMN : RGBT &S
70,000,000 T @ E T ER S A B
MRESR ([ =T —+F N\ AT RRE
FDRBEFAN - B BRI R R
B A PSR IFT27

ARSI N TR ENBERE
ERIBERAMZBERMAE  REBSSE
EIHER - EHARRTARRGENE
ROT=BEMER]D - Bt - =B EE
SENGRABRHRAEMNDINBE=F
—NFERA=TALMRFEE (& EE
fREAR ) 7~ 2> 78,000,000 7T ([ 25 —
FEBREMN D ERBE-—Z-NFRA
=+ HIEMBRFERE(F _EERERE D
510,000,000 T ([ E=F B iRH
M) e

ME—FEZRMNREZFBZ&FT
ERREE  BHAES BIABERG)
F—FEHERFT RSB Z5E(LRA
40,000,000/ 7T) : K (i) =4 B2
FI7R 2 % %82 3% (LR 530,000,0007%
) 2B emERARRHE - =B&
FERNSRERREN S ERBITE
TAREREAFEER - A @ BRI
BN HER AR E#ET 2 (EHE - mF
ERZ ATFELEREMBEREMS LT
BEX - W ER RS M SRR P RER
Ao RZFHLRAUBHRERAE B
ENRE—FBEEAH -

= B FEEN =T —F )\ AL
SR o
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (confinuea)  32. u&%m%’l}ﬁl(ﬁ)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)  E_E-N\EXB=1tHLEE
(&)
(a) Sense Acquisition (Continued) (o) =B EFE )

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the Sense Media Group as at 7 August 2017, being
the completion date of the Sense Acquisition were as
follows:

BEEEER_—"ZT—tF\ALH
(_EEHSZ§§$IE P B H) 2 AT A E
RBEZRAFENT

Carrying
amount of Fair value
identifiable recognised on
assets and the Sense
liabilities Acquisition

WHEAEE H=RWBEEE
REEZREE BRZAVE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B/E k& 1,365 1,365
Other intangible assets Hh |z EE

(note 15) (H43E15) 1,056 1,786
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRR 865 865
Prepayments and other TE FRIR R H A FE U RIE

receivables 3,698 3.698
Cash and bank balances R e RIRITHR 7.825 7.825
Trade payables FEHE SRR (708) (708)
Accruals and other payables  fExTE A R H b B FUA 3.774) (3.774)
Due to a related party (note (i)) &R —&/EET FIE (M) (3.786) (3,786)
The Sale Loan HEER (8.511) (8,511)
Total identifiable net liabilities IR & & FELRE (1,240)
Assignment of the Sale Loan %uﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ 8,511
Total identifiable net assets at & ATEFIEE 2 /45

fair value (excluding the Sale  EEFERE

Loan) (TBEIEHEEH) 7.271
Goodwill (note 14) PR (fEE14) 72,729
Total consideration BRE 80,000
Consideration satisfied by: REAATHIRZH -

- Cash —He 10,000

- August 2017 CB (note 27) — 22—+ F )\ B ES

(F7E27) 70,000
80,000
Note: B3 -

0) The amount is due to Mr. Wang He, a director of Sense
Media Group Limited and certain of its subsidiaries,
which is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Confinued)

(a) Sense Acquisition (Continued)
The goodwill arising from the Sense Acquisition is
attributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Sense
Acquisition is as follows:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

32. IEBMIB B

BE

(##)
@

ZE-NFERAZTHLFE

= BWEFEE)
CRBEAMEL BB NEBNR
MR BB E £ 2 KRG R AT

ak
Be/J) °

FHE=RRBFEZRELSRES TN
T~

HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReRE 10,000
Cash and banks balances acquired Frushe 2 38 & MIRTT 48R (7.825)
Net outflow of cash and cash SAREES RS REY
equivalents included in cash flows RekReHEBEE RLFE
from investing activities 2,175

Following the completion of the Sense Acquisition,
the Sense Media Group contributed HK$24,742,000
of consolidated revenue and HKS$7,542,000 of
consolidated profit to the Group during the year.

Had the acquisition of the Sense Media Group been
taken place at the beginning of the financial year
ended 30 June 2018, the consolidated revenue
and consolidated loss of the Group would be
HK$309,086,000 and HK$90,515,000, respectively for
that financial year.

Details of the Sense Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 June 2017, 23
June 2017, 5 July 2017, 14 July 2017 and 7 August
2017 and the Company's circular dated 18 July 2017.

(b) Strong Network Acquisition

On 20 October 2017, the Company entered
into a share subscription agreement with Strong
Network International Limited ("Strong Network”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which,
the Company subscribed (the "Strong Network
Subscription”) for 50 new shares, representing
25% equity interests of Strong Network at a cash
consideration of HK$15,000,000. The Strong Network
Subscription was completed on 22 December 2017.
Upon the completion, Strong Network became an
associate of the Company.

®)

R=BKBERATREL  —BEREE
RERN RSB T EI24,742,0007% 7T .2
fRa YA RT7,542,000/8 T 2 fREEM ©

HRE =R ERERANEBE—Z— \F
NAZTALEMRERENEE - AKE
RZFBEFE 276 WA RGE EBRE
% 511 /%309,086,0007% 7t % 90,515,000
BT

=RYEERZAHBENART NS
—Z—+FANAEB  ZE—1tFAKA
—t=H - ZE—+tF+HARHRA - =F
—tFtATHER=Z—+tFNALt
HZAERARRBPR=-Z—tFt
B+ N\BZ@HK e

Strong Network & EE
RZZE—+tHF+A=-+H &R
7] 8 J& 37 % = 75 Strong Network
International Limited ([ Strong
Network 1) fT 2 IR D R E & @ &
It + AN 2 7 AR £ 1K {8 15,000,000
BITRBEBSORM KRG - HER
Strong Network 2 25% % # ([ Strong
Network @ 8 £ I8 ]) ° Strong
Network RiEEHE R T —+ F
+Z A= +t=-H=m=K - RTEKE
Strong Network iX & 2R A 7] 2 Bt & A
Ej °
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Confinued)

(b) Strong Network Acquisition (Continued)

On 22 January 2018, the Company further entered
info a sale and purchase agreement with Reach
Keys Limited ("Vendor B”), pursuant to which,
the Company acquired (the "Strong Network
Acquisition”) the remaining 75% of equity interest
of Strong Network and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Strong Network Group”) at a consideration of
HK$60,000,000, in which, (i) as to HK$30,000,000
was satisfied by cash upon the completion; and
(ii) the remaining of HK$30,000,000 is payable at
HK$15,000,000 each, upon the satisfactory of the
Strong Network Profit Guarantee (as defined below).

The Strong Network Group is principally engaged in
the operation of IP rights licensing and international
IP development, media integrated marketing and
distribution agency of sports goods business.

Vendor B had granted a profit guarantee (the
"Strong Network Profit Guarantee”) to the Company,
pursuant to which, the consolidated net profit after
tax of the Strong Network Group are not less than
HK$10,000,000 (the “Strong Network First Guarantee”)
for the financial year ending 31 December 2018
and HK$15,000,000 (the “Strong Network Second
Guarantee”) for the financial year ending on 31
December 2019, respectively. Upon the completion of
the Strong Network Acquisition on 25 January 2018,
Strong Network became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Prior fo the Strong Network Acquisition, the Company
held 25% equity interest in Strong Network which was
accounted for as interests in an associate. Upon the
completion of the Strong Network Acquisition the
previously held interest has been re-measured at
its fair value of HK$17,247,000 with a fair value gain
on previously held equity interest in an associate
of HK$2,070,000 recognised to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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32. BB AT @)
BZ-—Z-\F~A=1+HLEE
(&)

(b) Strong Network /g FE (4)
RZB-—NEFE—HA=+=H " AR7F
H2 Reach Keys Limited ([ & 7B |)
—FIINBEEHZE Bt AR R
& Strong Network }z E Fi{ & A & (4578
Strong Network £ ) 821 2 75% % 1
([Strong Network g £15 ) - REA
60,000,000/ 7t + £ # (i)30,000,000
BITERTERR ARSI M+ Rtk
T~ 30,000,000 7% 7t %8 R # X Strong
Network’i FI#ERE (E& R T35 5l
Y 15/15,000,0007 7T, ©

Strong Network & B 3= Z 4t = 4¢ & A58
EAERAE R R AR EE R - RS
BEERS ENIRESARER

EHBEH FALR almF#ELR ([ Strong
Networkz F ¥ 4R |) » #& 1t » Strong
Network 5 B fy 4R & Br 12 455 5 Bl
BE_Z—N\Ft+-_A=1+—HIFK
4 £ 1~ /> 110,000,000 7t ([ Strong
Network & {E#ER ) RRBZE =T — 11
F+_A=+—ALITBREETIRN
15,000,0007% 7t ([ Strong Network 5
—EER]D) RZE—NFE—A=+H
A 52 Ak Strong Network U i E187% -
Strong Networkpk A28 A 7 2 2 & 8

2T

A Strong Network IREE S TERT + ANA ]
5 Strong Network#)25% % - 57
ARAE A BR B MERA B & R B 2 28 © AT
Rk Strong Network i i# = 181% - SCATH:
BB IRENF(E]7,247,0007 T
B2 EBAMISHEARREZR
(g U 52,070,000 T E 4R & B
RIER -
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (coninuec) 32. Y BB B 28] =)

Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)  E_E-N\EXB=1tHLEE
(&)

(b) Strong Network Acquisition (Continued) (b) Strong Network#/g F15 (%)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities Strong Network&E B —ZZE— \F—A
of the Strong Network Group as at 25 January 2018, —+F B (Strong Network iz & £ 185
being the completion date of the Strong Network KBH)ZAI#IEERBEZATE
Acquisition, were as follows: I

Fair value
recognised on
Carrying the Strong
amount of Network
identifiable Acquisition
assets and ®Strong
liabilities Network
AR EE WEBE=EE
REEZREE BRZAFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FA&T FET
Property, plant and equipment  ¥13 - & M & 4E 2,168 2,168
Other intangible assets Hih M|z & E
(note 15) (MiEE15) - 1,232
Available-for-sale investments Al HEKRE 2,469 2,469
Interests in an associate REEE AR Z e 1,205 1,205
Inventory F& 98 98
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRI 2,486 2.486
Prepayments and other TE T FRIR R H A FE USSR IR
receivables 904 904
Tax recoverable AT el F IR 41 41
Cash and bank balances R e RIRITEERR 15,378 15,378
Trade payables FE B S IR 414) 414)
Deposits received in advance  FEUIES (11,524) (11,524)
Total identifiable net assets at & A F{EFIER 2 A% 5
fair value BEFEERE 14,043
Goodwill (note 14) EE(MIEE14) 58,188
Total consideration ARE 72,231
Consideration satisfied by REUATHIRZN
- Cash —B& 30,000
- Fair value of previously held —BIEFTHFStrong Network & B
interest in the Strong /NS -]
Network Group 17,247
- Fair value of contingent —#AStrong Network Y288 =18
consideration payable ek B IR R SRR (B
at the completion date AFE(IFE3S)
of the Strong Network
Acquisition (note 33) 24,984
72,231
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2018 (Continued)

(b) Strong Network Acquisition (Continued)

The goodwill arising from the Strong Network
Acquisition is aftributable to the future growth and
profitability expected to arise from the business
combination.

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Strong

32. IERKIE AR =)
 ZE-E-\EARA=1THLEE
(%)
(b) Strong Network !/ F1E (#)

Strong Network & S IEFTE £ 2 2
TR B TE B SE TS O BB T A 2 AR 3R
HRRAFIEET o

A fiStrong Network g =18 2 38 £ 7

Network Acquisition is as follows: EOMMAT
HK$’000
FET
Cash consideration ReERE 30,000
Cash and banks balances acquired P RE 2 & RARTTAE R (15,378)
Net outflow of cash and cash FAREEBRSRE

equivalents included in cash flows ZHRe MRSEEER RLFRE

from investing activities 14,622

Following the completion of the Strong Network
Acquisition, the Strong Network Group contributed
approximately HK$29,225,000 of consolidated
revenue and approximately HK$5,296,000 of
consolidated profit to the Group during the year.

Had the acquisition of the Strong Network Group
been taken place at the beginning of the financial
year ended 30 June 2018, the consolidated revenue
and consolidated loss of the Group would be
HK$317,247,000 and HK$89,310,000, respectively for
that financial year.

Details of the Strong Network Acquisition were set out

in the Company's announcements dated 20 October
2017 and 22 January 2018.
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7 Strong Network U B8 = B 52 ik %
Strong Network E BIR A FE AR EH
B 814929,225,000% 70 2 4R A WA KR £
5,296,000/ 7T 2 45 & Al ©

it s B Strong Network & B R & = —
E—NFERNA=ZTHLETREEE
i AREERZTRERE 2 FERAR

A BB D R &317,247,0007% 7T &
89,310,000/%71 C

A fiStrong Network i i =18 2 Z 155,
RARRBHA-—ZT—+F+A=-1+H
;=T N\F—A=Z+=ZAZRE-
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (confinued)

30 June 2017
(¢) Money-lending business

32. IEBMIB B

—ZE—tFRA=TH

On 7 October 2016, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Company acquired (the
“Success Beauty Acquisition”) 100% equity interest
in Success Beauty Limited and its subsidiary, Ever
Great Finance Limited (collectively referred as the
“Success Beauty Group”) at a final consideration of
approximately HK$59,515,000. The Success Beauty
Group is principally engaged in money-lending
business. The Success Beauty Acquisition was
completed on 7 October 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the Success Beauty Group as at 7 October 2016,
being the completion date of the Success Beauty
Acquisition, were as follows:

(©) HBELH%

RZZE—ARE+AtH ARFE—
EBYFE=FNEEHE B
7N 22 &) U BE Success Beauty Limited
EREMBAREENHBRAR (AR
[ Success Beauty & B | ) Z 100% fi&
RiE - BN (E A 59,515,000
7 ([ Success Beauty W& £ 18 | ) -
Success Beauty B Z F B2 XK A5
B ¥#7 - #%Success Beauty Jt i =18
ER=ZZT—A"FT+AEHFTK -

Success Beauty & B ZF — /N F +
A+ B (Success Beauty Y fs E 187K
Az AR EERBEZ AFERD
T~

Fair value
recognised on the
Success Beauty

Acquisition

FiSuccess Beauty

WE=EECRRZATE

HK$'000

FHET

Loan and interest receivables FEUE TR R F BBR K 48,468

Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER 10,047
Total identifiable net assets of the %N F{EFIER Z Success Beauty

Success Beauty Group at fair value ZAIEAIEEFERTE 58,515

Goodwill (note 14) AR (fF14) 1,000

Cash consideration RERE 59,515
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
30 June 2017 (Continued)

No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

& PR

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

32. IEBMIB B
—E—t+EXA=TA®

Following the completion of the Success Beauty
Acquisition, the Success Beauty Group confributed
HK$2,973,000 of consolidated revenue and
HK$2,833,000 of consolidated profit to the Group
during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Had the acquisition of the Success Beauty Group
been taken place at the beginning of the financial
year ended 30 June 2017, the consolidated revenue
and consolidated loss of the Group would be
HK$324,688,000 and HK$51,227,000, respectively for
that financial year.

Details of the Success Beauty Group were set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 7 October
2016 and 11 October 2016, respectively.
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(c) Money-lending business (Continued) (c) BEEK®E)
The goodwill arising from the Success Beauty Success Beauty i ig EIEFTE &£ 2 7
Acquisition is atftributable to the future growth B EBIEEGOIEEE 2 RRIER
and profitability expected to arise from business R&R g -
combination.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Success A #Success Beauty W iE =1 7 R &
Beauty Acquisition is as follows: MEDTET :
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration ReNRE 59,515
Cash and bank balances acquired FRUHE 2 & SR ERTTAE R (10,047)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEREREZRE NS
included in cash flows from investing activities ~ HEBH 2t F5 49,468

M Success Beauty B8 E 18 5Bk £ -
Success BeautyE B REZEZ =T —+
FRNA=ZTHLEFEEALAEBE AR
2,973,000 7T 2 #7 & WA 22,833,000
PEILZ AR AR A o

fit Y B Success Beauty S EREE —
T—+tFERNAZTHLEHREENZE
£ AEERZMREE ZEEBRAR
RA BB D R 324,688,000/ 7T &
51,227,000/ 7T °

Success Beoufy'?f B2 FEo RlER
AARIEBHAE-T—"F+AtAR=
T—RE+A+— BZ/“‘: o
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (confinuesy 32. YEBHMIEB 2Bl (#)
30 June 2017 (Continued) —E—tFXRA=1+H®@
(d) Business of provision of property

management and property agency
services

On 1 December 2016, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which, the Company
acquired (the "Central Pearl Acquisition”) 100% equity
interest in Central Pearl Investments Limited and
its subsidiary, Full Profit Property Services Company
Limited (collectively referred as the "Central Pearl
Group”) at a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000.
The Central Pearl Group is principally engaged in
provision of property management and property
agency services in Hong Kong. The Cenftral Pearl
Acquisition was completed on 1 December 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the Central Pearl Group as at 1 December 2016,
being the completion date of the Central Pearl
Acquisition, were as follows:

(C) 1RE%E BT W (R
[

RZB—RF+-A—H  KARAFE—
FBYE=FFILEE HZE - Bk
ARBYWBELREGR AR REHK
BRARAEZEAMERBERAR(SHE
[EHEE ) Z2100%KR A - KER
20,000,000 T([ £R KB EIE]) - =
FREBZERZEBRANBERIEYEE
BRYFERIERY - ERWBEHEER
“E-REt+-A—HZEK e

EEREBR_Z—A"F+=-_A—H(EF
ZUEEEEK AE) 2 A SR EER
BEZAFELDT :

Fair value
recognised on the
Central Pearl

Acquisition

MEBWBEEE

Rz ATE

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment (note 13)  #12 « B/E k& (MI5E13) 190

Trade receivables FEWE Z R 565

Prepayments and other receivables TETFRIE K oAt e U AR AR 208

Cash and bank balances He RIRTTAH 3,453

Accruals fEETE A 15)

Tax payables e ® (810)
Total identifiable net assets of the Central &2 AFEFYIERZ £ £ B 2 Al #7

Pearl Group at fair value BEFERTE 3,591

Goodwill (note 14) AR (fT14) 16,409

Cash consideration ReRE 20,000
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (confinued)
30 June 2017 (Continued)
(d) Business of provision of property

management and property agency
services (Continued)

The goodwill arising from the Central Pearl Acquisition
is aftributable to the future growth and profitability
expected to arise from the business combination.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Central
Pearl Acquisition is as follows:

No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

& PR

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

32. IEBMIB B
—E—+FE~A=+B®)
(d) EERYXEERYZERERE

BB

BRERREEEMEL ZHE TGS
WEZE T O i P EE A8 2 AR ORI 5= K i Ml e
7]

FRERWBEEEZREERESTMN
T~

FHET
HK$’000
Cash consideration ReRE 20,000
Cash and bank balances acquired P iE 2 & RIRTTAE#R (3,453)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREEREREZRE NS
included in cash flows from investing activities ~ HEBH 2 F5 16,547

Following the completion of the Central Pearl
Acquisition, the Central Pearl Group contributed
HK$3,887,000 of consolidated revenue and
HK$839,000 of consolidated profit to the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2017.

Had the acquisition of the Central Pearl Group been
taken place at the beginning of the financial year
ended 30 June 2017, the consolidated revenue
and consolidated loss of the Group would be
HK$324,101,000 and HK$51,471,000, respectively for
that financial year.

Details of the Central Pearl Acquisition were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 1 December
2016.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

33. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE

As detailed in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, as part of the Strong Network S&P, contingent
consideration is payable in two tranches of HK$15,000,000
each, which is dependent on the achievement of the
Strong Network First Guarantee and the Strong Network
Second Guarantee subsequent to the Strong Network
Acquisition. In the event that the Strong Network Group’s
consolidated profit after tax for the financial years ending
31 December 2018 and 2019 are less than HK$10,000,000,
and HK$15,000,000 respectively, the Company is relieved
from its obligation for payment of each tranche of the
contingent consideration payable.

The Directors engaged Ascent Partners to determine
the fair value of the contingent consideration payable
at the initial date and as at 30 June 2018. Pursuant
to their valuation reports dated 14 September 2018
(the "Contingent Consideration Payable Valuations”)
respectively, the fair value of the confingent consideration
payable as at the initial date and at 30 June 2018 was
approximately RMB20,242,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,984,000) and RMB20,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$25,870,000) respectively, which was

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

33. B EANE

WanER & MR KM E32(0) Tttt - fER
Strong Network B & i 2 — &5 + kAR
{E LA HA15,000,000%8 7T + 9288 F LA -

HY )R 1A Strong Network 45 i % 18 12 Strong
Network & {[ #& {R } Strong Network 55 = &
BRZERER - WREZE_ZT—\FR=
T NF+=ZA=+—BIHKFESrong
Network & B 7 47 & B % 18 )i F| 5 BIE 7
10,000,0007% 7t % 15,000,000/ 7t * Bl
A GHEN S AB 2 XN B G SRR

EXZRUIHENEE RN IARERT S
BEEMER T N\FRA=THZAFE-
BEEBHS AT —AFLA+THEAZ
ERS ([EAHAREGE]D - BAHHA
RERXVZEHENR-_ZE-NFA=1H
ZRAFED KR/ AR20,242,0005T (8%
F#924,984,0007% 7T ) & A #20,700,0007T
(15570 4)25,870,000% 7T) * ThfsE A AEEE
E o BNHARBAERERERERH 2 2F
BEEHE - At - FARKSEERERL

determined by using an income approach. The contingent T{EE51E47886,000/8 T ©
consideration payable is required to re-measure at its fair
value at each of the reporting period. Accordingly, fair
value loss of approximately HK$886,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Initial recognition (note 32(b)) MR (HI7E32(0)) 24,984 -
Fair value loss on contingent BN RARE 2 X TFERE
consideration payable 886 -
At the end of the reporting period RS ER 25,870 -
Less: current portion of contingent B BN SAREBZREE D
consideration payable (13,156) -
Non-current portion of contingent ENSARE 2 IEREF D
consideration payable 12,714 -

2018 4 | FHFERERAERAT
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 &#E—=%

33.

34.

& PR

—N\FERA=ZTHLEFE

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE (continued)

Significant unobservable valuation inputs used in the
Contingent Consideration Payable Valuations to determine
the fair value of contingent consideration payable are as
follows:

At initial date

Projected profit after tax of HK$10,782,000 to

Strong Network, under normal situation HK$15,500,000
Discount rate 3.95%
Discount for non-performance risk 19%

At 30 June 2018

HK$10,189,000 to
HK$15,188,000

Projected profit affer tax of
Strong Network, under normal situation

Discount rate 3.48%
Discount for non-performance risk 19%

DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTEREST
IN SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 March 2017, the Group entfered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Che
Xiaofei (the "Subscriber”) pursuant to which, the Subscriber
subscribed (the “Subscription”) for 245 new shares of EPRO
E-commerce Group Limited ("EPRO"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at a cash consideration of
HK$20,000,000.

Upon the completion of the Subscription on 1 August 2017,
the Group’s equity interest in EPRO was diluted from 100%
to 51%; and therefore, it was considered as a deemed
partial disposal of EPRO by the Group.

Since the deemed partial disposal of EPRO did not result in
any loss of control, such fransaction was accounted for as
an equity fransaction and the difference between (i) the
proceeds from the subscription and (i) the 49% carrying
value of EPRO and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EPRO
Group”), of approximately HK$8,344,000 is recognised in
other reserve of the Group.
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34.
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NGIEA=E:
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S

BRI R 3.95%

TEITRBRITE 19%

RZZE-NFRA=TH

RIEFER K Strong 10,189,000/t 5
Network 2 5B 15,188,000/ 7T
il

BRIR =X 3.48%

TEITRRYT = 19%
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

34. DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF INTEREST 34. R{ELEME QA BE0#E25 #)
IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At 1 August 2017, being the completion date of the RZZ—+4/\ A— R (AR £ S EPROKYEP
deemed partial disposal of EPRO, the net assets value gz TR BH) - EPROMEMB AT &
of EPRO and its subsidiaries and related loss on deemed EFE LR IEL EEPROK 5 1 %5 2 FE RS
partial disposal of EPRO were calculated as follows: BEZETENT :
HK$'000
FEx
Net assets value of EPRO and its subsidiaries EPROKEMIE AR 2 EEFE 57,846

Portion attributable to the non-controlling interests of ~ EPRO 2 JF475° i &5 & 1 26

EPRO 28,344
Less: Cash consideration received o BYERER(E (20,000)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of EPRO RAEH EEPROM B D 1 25 2 518 8,344

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 35. i EEXFERERS 25

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BEZMB AT

INTERESTS

As detailed in note 34 to the consolidated financial NG A BTSRRI ST 34AF skl - ANEENR T
statements, the Group has material non-controlling interests AR VESE 9 H & 18 FAEPRO%E A B K 4% i 42
in EPRO upon the completion of deemed partial disposal, % AEIEESIAE

details of which is as follows:

2018
—E-N\F
Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling — BFEE B 2 ET D 1
interests:
EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited and its subsidiaries  EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited
REME AR 49%
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

35. MEEAFZRER 20 ##

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BZzMB AR @
INTERESTS (Continued)
2018
—g-NF
HK$°000
FERx
Period from 1 August 2017 (date of deemed partial BZE—t+FN\A-BRIEHBHE
disposal) fo 30 June 2018 allocated to non- EHB)E-_Z—N\FRA=+H
controlling interests HESRE
FEFER R
EPRO Group EPRO%H (12.456)

The following tables illustrate summarised financial
information of the EPRO Group. The amounts disclosed are

before any infer-company eliminations:

TRIREPROSE 2B ERME - PR
SERARFTEEMARREH

Total
it
HK$’000
FEx
Period from 1 August 2017 (date of deemed partial BZZ—+FN\A—-BGRIEHHE
disposal) to 30 June 2018 EHR)E-_ZT—\FA=1H
HAfH
Revenue WA 216,239
Total expenses B (241,666)
Loss for the period NEFE R (25.427)
Total comprehensive income for the period NI 2 Ek S AE 7
(25.420)
At 30 June 2018 R_Z—\FA=1H
Current assefs R é}g 94,858
Non-current assets FEMENE E 4,41
Current liabilities mEBE (66.844)
Total net assets BEFEEE 32,425
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. freRERERMGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Ch(_:lr_\ges in liabilities arising from financing MEITHELEEBEH
activities
Convertible
bonds
AR &S
HK$'000
FEx
At 1 July 2017 RZZE—tF+HA—H -
Issue of the December 2017 CB BT Tt F T ZAABRES 100,000
Less: Direct transaction costs B BERZEA (2.500)
Changes from financing cash flows REREReRELE 97.500
Issue of the August 2017 CB as part of the BT —tF N\ AABRRERFER
consideration for acquisition of subsidiary WHEMT B AR 2 R E 70,000
Equity component eI (37.894)
Interest expense FlEmM= 10,024
Interest paid ERFLE (1.451)
At 30 June 2018 RZE—N\FARA=1+H 138,179
37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. BREWNZHE
The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff AEERBEERNLHARAR THAEME
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Such leases RBTEE - EHEZHFAERNNF =0
are negotiated for the terms ranging from one to five years. o
At 30 June 2018, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZT—N\FERA=1H ' BETAIHELE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling A NEBEZA T FBRT A 2 RRKIKE
due as follows: RS @EENT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Within one year —F A 6,685 1,668
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERLF(BREAEMF) 8,016 40
14,701 1,708
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. HARAR
Except for those detailed in note 40 to the consolidated BrémE BT IS ERaR M FH40FTLE SN - RZT— N
financial statements, the Group did not have any FERZT—EFANA=TH AEEEBEWN
significant contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2018 and BRAHIAELE -
2017.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. BAEA LR SR ERR

BALANCES
The Group had the following transactions with related REBRFEREFEATIIIATRS ¢
parties during the year:
Compensation of key management personnel of the REBIBEBAEZFE -
Group:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Total employee benefits paid to key MEEEERABXNM
management personnel ZBRERA 5,550 3,658
Further details of directors” emoluments are included in FREEME 2 F BRI E M ERKM =
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. & o
The number of key management personnel whose benefit BANF TSRz TZERAESHBNT :

fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 5
HKS$1,000,001 to HKS$1,500,000 1,000,001/%7c% 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/% 7t 22,000,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% £ 22,500,000/ 7T - 1
5 6
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

40. LITIGATION

On 16 August 2012, the plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”), Klipsch
Group, Inc., filed a suit in the federal district court (the
"Court”) in the United States (the "U.S.”) against certain
defendants, including one of the on-line sales platforms (the
“Subject Domain”) of the Group, in respect of (i) trademark
counterfeiting; (ii) frademark infringement; and (iii) false
designation of origin (the ‘“Litigation”). The Plaintiff claimed
that certain products (the “Klipsch-Branded Items”)
were registered by them in the U.S. and that infringing
Klipsch-Branded ltems had been sold to customers in the
U.S. via the Subject Domain. The Plaintiff sought damages,
attorneys’ fees and sanctions. Hence, the Plaintiff instructed
PayPal to freeze US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,600,000) (the “Frozen Amount”) from the Group’s
PayPal account on 27 August 2012,

On 21 September 2012, the Group filed sales documents
with the Court indicating that the sales amount (the
“Infringing Sales Amount”) of the infringing Klipsch-Branded
ltems intfo the U.S. amounted to less than US$700. The
Court considered that the Frozen Amount was excessive
and accordingly, the Court entered an order reducing the
Frozen Amount from US$2,000,000 to US$20,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$156,000) on 11 October 2012. The
Plaintiff asserted in December 2012 that the Subject
Domain continued to sell additional Klipsch-Branded Items.
The Group filed additional sales documents establishing
that the revenues derived from sales into the U.S. of the
additional Klipsch-Branded ltems were less than US$125.

On 3 December 2013 the Plaintiff filed an amended
complaint naming EPRO E-commerce Limited ("EPRO
EComm”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that
operates the Subject Domain as a defendant in place of
the Subject Domain, and naming as fictitious entities other
domains operated by EPRO EComm.

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as to the
United States laws on 12 August 2014 that the United States
District Court for the Southern District of New York (the
"District Court”) entered an order temporarily restraining
the use of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,000,000) (the “Restrained Sum”) in the bank
accounts and other financial accounts of EPRO EComm (in
addition to the Frozen Amount of US$20,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$156,000)). A hearing regarding the asset
restraining order was completed on 11 February 2015 (New
York time).

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

HiEN
RZZE—ZF/\A+ /XA - R SEKlipsch

Group, Inc([R& D) AERE  (i)Eix
=R K(i)EBEEREMEEFREREH
([ £ ) B FP I 15 kB (AR ) ) 35 Fas
(PREAEEEF AR EHEETFE(THEA
2R D IRBFA(TFALD - RERE - K%
EEEFMETER([KipschREEMR]) -
miEEKlipschAEEME B BWE A28
ETFEBZ2EP - Bilt - RESFIBEEE -
RS REIE - At - RERZT—ZFN
A =+t B35 RPayPal i 4 7~ & B PayPal Bk
/52,000,000 7T (48 E 7 #915,600,0005# 7T )
(DR#EERE]) -

RZZT——FAA=-+—8  AEEHEER
ERHENF - BEEAERZ F#EKlipsch
mEERZHER([RREEERE]) TR 7003k
T ARERIRGSEEBAS  FAit - R
—Z——F+A+—8 FERBSERESE
F12,000,0003E 7T J5 4> 2= 20,000 7t (FHE R
#9156,000% ) - RER=_T—=—F+=H
T B A 5 A 2 A8tk A8 4 8 5 B8 1 Klipsch 5 f&
Em o AEEBRERBINEEX M - BEHEG
E B 2 FB5MKlipschib fR &= f E £ 2 WA T 2
125357C ©

W=F—=F+=A=A - RERREETE
% RARRZ2ANBARNSRETEY
ERAR(FREFEH ) EEREAZ
BE)BAREA - UREREA 2B T
B HRBTFHHALEL K BB ABHEE

-

HZ

ARBRZFB-—MENA+ - HEEERE
BITEZEEBRREN  ZHAOMNERRE
xR ([REER ) ERfm<  BREAS
#20,0005< 7T (#3510 4)156,000/8 7T ) 2 5
TERRGIERZEEFEAERITES LA
fth B 75 448 A= B 795,000,0005% 7T (A E R4
39,000,000/&7T) M FA([ ZEEHIZFE ) - B
MEELHSZRAR - Z—AF_H+—H
(ABAIRFET) 2K
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40. LITIGATION (Continued)

The Company was informed by its legal adviser as to the
United States laws on 3 November 2015, the District Court
entered an order to reduce the Restrained Sum from
US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,000,000)
to US$25,000 (equivalent fo approximately HK$195,000). The
District Court has also made an order for EPRO EComm to
pay for reasonable costs and fees incurred by the Plaintiff
during certain legal process relating to the above matter.
However, the Company was subsequently informed by its
legal adviser as to the United States laws on 4 November
2015 that the District Court had granted an application to
delay the effectiveness of the reduction of the Restrained
Sum.

Another hearing was held on 10 November 2015 (New York
fime), on which the District Court decided to confinue to
femporarily restrain the use of the Restrained Sum. On 30
September 2016 (New York time) the District Court entered
an order assessing costs and fees against EPRO EComm in
the amount of US$2,681,406.45 and retaining the Restrained
Sum of US$5,000,000 (the "30 September 2016 order”). On
26 October 2016 (New York time), EPRO EComm filed a
Noftice of Appeal against the 30 September 2016 order. The
parties completed appellate submissions and the United
States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit held oral
argument concerning the appeal on 26 October 2017 (New
York time).

On 25 January 2018 (New York time), the United States
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit issued an opinion
affirming the 30 September 2016 Order. On 8 February 2018
(New York time), EPRO EComm filed a motion for rehearing
en banc with the United States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit to reconsider a decision and order of a
panel of the court affirming the 30 September 2016 Order.
On 20 March 2018 (New York time), the United Staftes Court
of Appeals issued the mandate and affirmed the district
court’s order imposing sanctions. On 12 September 2018
(New York time), the District Court has made an order
that the Plaintiff may obtain disbursement in the sum of
US$2,681,406.45 from the Restrained Sum at the bank and
the bank shall continue to restrain the remainder of the
Restrained Sum pending further order of the District Court.
The Company is currently seeking legal advice from its
United State legal adviser to the above matter and will
provide further announcement as and when appropriate
of any new development.
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40. LITIGATION (Continued)

41.

The Directors have exercised their due care in assessing the
financial impact in respect of the legal costs and claims, if
any, of the Litigation. Taking intfo account of the amount of
the Restrained Sum and the possible legal and professional
costs to be incurred, the Company has made a sufficient
provision for the Litigation as at 30 June 2018. Since the
Litigation is still on-going, the Directors would continue to
exercise their due care in monitoring the progress of the
Litigation and would assess the adequacy of provision for
the Litigation and the financial impact to the Group as and
when appropriate.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
has the following events:

As detailed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the First Year Target Profit has been achieved
and the 1st Tranche Lockup CB of HK$40,000,000 became
uncondifional. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on 14 September 2018, the 1st Tranche Lockup
CB of HK$40,000,000 was converted into 289,855,072
ordinary shares of the Company. Upon completion of the
conversion, the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the convertible bonds in related to the Sense Acquisition
was decreased to HK$30,000,000.
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40. :Fik#)

41.

EREEEMARFAMEEZ BHEME
RRENEHE) M BHE - KEBX
CRZBANAIREE OAENEXER -
RZZE-N\FRA=1H - XRREHZFR
TR FE R - ARZFRDEETED - E
EREEERETEZFAER - RN EE
FHRFT A AR A B D R AN A A S E 2
s -

WEMRESIHE

RIS EIR I - AEBIEET5IHE -

MR E F BRI 27 P - 5 —5F
BEREMNBEEXNE —HEEAHRRES
40,000,000 7L E K A MG - RZZE—N
FNA+TMBARERRR - E-HEEAHRRK
fE5740,000,0007%8 7T B B R AN 7 & B
289.855,072% - MEBsEHK & - BRA=BU
BRERZIHAKRES 2 HAEERNSBEER
4>2230,000,000/8 7T °
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. €T HE 2573
REEIR - SASMTAZEEENT *

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
Financial assets TRIEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BRATEFABE SRER
Designated as such upon Held-to-maturity Available-for-sale financial
inifial recognition Held for trading investments Loans and receivables assets Tofal
MISRARER FEE REIMRE BHRENH TthESHEE &t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
SBN\E CF-tF ZR-NE CF-tF ZB-NE -1 ZB-0\E _T-F ZB-\f —T+fF ZB-\F -3+
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000
Fn Fhn Tin FEr TEx Tin TiEr T Tx Fh Fn A
Trade receivables - - - - - - 25,236 4197 - - 25,236 4197
Loan and inferest
receivables - - - - - - 89,09 94,161 - - 89,090 94,161
Financial assets
included in
prepayments,
deposits and other
receivables - - - - - - 31,201 27909 - - 31,201 27909
Avallobleforsales  JEHERE
investments - - - - - - - - 13,000 29,700 13,000 29,700
Equity investments ot
fair value through
profif or loss - - 4099% 279 - - - - - - 40,995 219
Pledged deposits ~ EHEE - - - - - - 310 310 - - 310 310
Cash ond cash RERRESE
equivalents 138 = - - - - - 43,046 94,458 - - 43,048 94,458
- - 40,995 219 - - 188883 22103 13,000 20700 ~ 242818 250,954
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. £@T Az 5 =)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities THREE
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
RAVEFABEZERAR
Designated as such upon Financial liabilities at
inifial recognition Held for frading amortised cost Total
MISRRRER BFRE REERATIE SHER it
2018 2017 2018 217 2018 2017 2018 2017
SBN\F CR-1F  ZE-NE CT-E 2B\ CET-1F ZBN\F CTtF
HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK§'000  HKS'000 « HKS'000  HKS'000 - HK$'000  HKS'000
TER TEL TR TER TER Thn TR TEn
Trade payables - - - - 1211 9,685 121m 9,685

Financiol liabilfies included JERFE - ElRER
in other payables, deposits ~ EEFBEZ2BER

received and aceruals - - - - 13,629 9,741 13,629 9,741
Convertiole bonds ks - - - - 138179 - 138179 -
Contingent consideration ERFARE

payoble 25,870 - - - - - 25,810 -

2,870 - - S0 163919 19426 | 169789 1942

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 43. £t TE X ER A FEB R
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s rEEeRTAREEEATESERES
financial instruments, other than those with carrying BRIMNBBREERATFERAT
amounts that reasonably approximate fo fair values, are as
follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-—N\F T LF —E-N\F —T—+tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FERT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sales AHEERE
investments - 29,700 - 29,700
Equity investments at fair BATEAEBR
value through profit or loss 2RI E 40,995 219 40,995 219
Financial liability cRIEE
Contingent consideration FERTSARIE
payable (25,870) - (25,870) -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited

—N\FERA=ZTHLEFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, frade receivables,
loan and interest receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in trade payables, other payables and
accruals, are approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

43. R TAQXFERATFEER

(&)

EREDNEREMAESEFEERR CERE
K BEEZERR - BRKREREAMERA &
ABNFIE - REREMEEFENSHE
E - FEARNE SR - B ENRIBEREST
ERAMeRBEATEEKREERS - T2H
RzETAZEPREIE -

Fair value hierarchy NTEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIITAEB R T AN A TEFTERER
hierarchy of the Group'’s financial instruments:
Fair value measurement using
AYEHERR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3) Total
REETARE EXTERRARE EXTTERRANE
(E-]) (B=R) (=8) fat
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f RE | ZE-N\f Z+E | ZE-\f  Z4E | B\ T E
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR i TER T TEn TEn TER TEn
Assetsmeasured of  RATEHENEE
fair value
Available-forsales AHHERE
invesfments = 29,700 = - = - = 29,700
Equity investments ELTEHARR
atfair volue through LIRARE
profit orloss 40,995 219 - - - - 40,995 219
Licbilifies measured ot~ HAFEHEBHEE
fair value
Confingent ERARE
consideration payable - - - - 25,870 - 25,870 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowing
and other payables and accruals. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise funds for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities (e.g. frade receivables and trade payables),
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate as at 30
June 2018 and 2017. The Group'’s results and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures as the
sales and purchases of the Group were mainly fransacted
in United States dollars (*USD"), Renminbi (*RMB"),
Australian dollars ("AUD"), Canadian dollars ("*CAD"), EURO
("EUR"), Brazil Real ("BRL") and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD").
Approximately 92% (2017: 97%) of the Group's sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating units making the sale, and
almost 67% (2017: 93%) of costs are denominated in the
unifs’ other functional currency.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the exchange
rate of USD was rather stable. Approximately 70% of the
Group'’s sales are denominated in this currency (2017:
approximately 54%).

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

44. R EREEBFEREBER

BOTAET RSN AKE T ESR T AR
BRZRITEREEMENRIREAER - %%
ERMTAZEFRZENNAAEBZEBEEE
& AEEFZHEEMEHEERBE(NE
WE ZERRENE SRR THER B HE XK
EX -

AEBERTAMELZTERRARERE
MEE - ANERR - EERRERSESE
B BEERILABHERESZETRR 2K
R REEERMAAS o

AR E R

AEER-F—/\R-F—LFXA=TEY
BEIBHFIEH LI EXSBAEREM - &
EERABHEARGERSREHTE TS

HESBYE -

SN LB
HRASREZHERRBEEREUET(IX
) ARBE(TARE]) RIT(DRIT]) ~ A0
s(r)) ~ BT (TBT)) - ERERR(TE
PIEER D) MET(DET )ETRS - iAE
BAAXRZEERR - REEN2%(=F
—LF 7% ZHENETIHE 2 8 EEM
ZHBE R SINEREEE - MRIL67%(=F
— L £ 93%) 2 XA RIABE AL 2 T BE & K LA
SNERSTE(E

REZE=_Z-—N\FARA=THILFERN =1
ZERER/IRE  AEENT0% 2 $HEAZE
EREE(CZE—LF : £54%) -
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. £riEBREEEERBE 2

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period fo a reasonably possible change in
the exchange rates of AUD, CAD, RMB, EUR and BRL to HKD,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss

SNEERRR ()
TREREHEMEBEFTEZERT -
REEZ BB AERREREAREAT -
7T AR  BIREAESERLETERY
RARA BB Y QB -

202

before tax.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
exchange rate before tax in equity*
ExtH/ BRBLATE R ’EzmEm
(Ti) #in,/ (i) (RA) *
% HK$'000 HK$’000
% TER TET
30 June 2018 —E-N\EXB=1+H
If HKD weakens against AUD T 7T R T 55 %) 3 -
If HKD strengthens against AUD i 7r iR i858 5 @A) -
If HKD weakens against CAD TR 7T 3 T 55 %) 3 -
If HKD strengthens against CAD {87 i INc 5 5 @A) -
If HKD weakens against RMB BT AR5 %) 1,154 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB  {iiL H AR ##Eog 5 (1.154) =
If HKD weakens against EUR ST R BTEE53 (%) 77 -
If HKD strengthens against EUR TR 7T BT 58 5 (77) -
30 June 2017 —T—tFRA=TH
If HKD weakens against AUD BT H R SS ) 3 -
If HKD strengthens against AUD — fis78T i R r 808 5 ©) -
If HKD weakens against CAD BT AT S 5) m -
If HKD strengthens against CAD 78 7T i, INc88a8 5 1 -
If HKD weakens against RMB BT AREESS ) 270 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB {8 7c 7 AR E8E8 5 (270) -
If HKD weakens against EUR BT BT Ss ) 1,291 -
If HKD strengthens against EUR i T H BT e 5 (1,291) -
If HKD weakens against BRL WETHEAERRES (5) 321 -
If HKD strengthens against BRL WETHEAERRE® 5 (321) -
= Excluding refained profits " TEEREER
The Group has no forward foreign exchange contracts RZE—NFAA=TAR=ZZE—tFA

outstanding as at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. For fransactions that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
ferms without the specific approval of the management.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise trade receivables, loan and infterest
receivables, deposits and other receivables, available-
for-sales investments, equity investments of fair value
through profit or loss, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal fo the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Apart from e-commerce, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. There is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group.

The Group managed credit risk of loan and interest
receivables at every stage of the risk management system,
including pre-approval, review and credit approval and
post-transaction monitoring process. All fransactions
should be subject to the review and approval from credit
department.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance continuity
of funding and flexibility through various fund raising
exercises.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

44. eREMRERBEERBE )

FERR
AEBEEERRAREERFLEZTETR
5 ° NEEZBERBERARHIETRR S
ZERPYBEREERERRF - I AEEE
FrE R UG A B - B IEAMRRR & E
ZHREEREEZRSME @ AEELTER
BRISERER TR IR AR -

REEARZUFEOMEE 2 EthEMEE
(BERKEZER  BREREFBER
Re REMBUEER - AIEHERE - RATF
Bt ABam 2 RANRE - BT TARES
EEeHFEEB) Z2EEERRBSNZS
TEZERHEE -

BTEFER  AREERERRREERL
ZE=ZTETRG - HBAEERG - FERR
SRERZTS ~ 1R RITHEES - AEEY
BEAGERBEFRER -

ARG BB R B IR A e I R SR RS
R EEEBRNERRER - BERAZE &
& FRBHERZRENRF - IERX5Y
AR BEERPIEE R -

REBEE R

FEBERERTDASH YT AL
ERER - LTAZEASMTARS
(SMEE I S8R3K) 2 25 B A RFAHE %

==
ﬁmui ©

EJ
N m s
i

AEEZ BRABBEEEETNEETHR
B RBE M 2 RRFETE -
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (confinued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On demand

2018 2017 2018
I2-N\E 5 F ZB-NE
HK$'000  HK$'000 | HK$'000

44,

Less than 3 months
RERER PR=

A
2017
“T-tE
HK$'000

No’res fo Consolidated Financial Stfatements

cREREEBRSERBR®

REBE SRR E)
REIR - AREZ SRMAFRED TR
BRR SR Z B ERMT :

3o less
than 12 months 1105 years Total
ZBAEHMT=fAR it a3t

26 o7 W6 07| W w7
= DR SIS DR O
HKS000 ks | HKS00. ks 000 | HKS00. ks 000

Tén TEx | TEm TEr| TEm TEn| TRm TEr| FEm TiEr
Trade payables - - 11,563 9,685 548 - - - 12m 9,685
Other payables, deposits
received and accruals 9385 3875 4244 5866 - - - -0 1369 974
Convertiole bonds - - - - - - 170,000 - 170,000 -
Contingent consideration
payoble - - - - - - 25810 - 25810 -
9385 3875 15807 15551 548 - 195870 - 21610 1942

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level
of equity indices and the value of individual securifies.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
significant equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is fo safeguard the Group’s ability fo continue as a going
concern and fo maintain healthy capital ratios in order fo
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments fo if, in light of changes in economic
condifions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital fo shareholders of issue new shares.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BRREEER

IR ERE LR R BN IRRIEBOKT & @5
ERSBMEBEAFESQFERD ZER
RIERR - AEELEERREERER

EAREE

AEBEAER TRBBRAREARE 2FF
ﬁm%%ﬁ&%%%&2§$mf ASzFrE
EBLREERSBRER

AEBEEEBEARE  WHEEERESIE
HFEE o ALE AL FHERBIRRE S
FRRREETHRND ZESAERRFEE
AREERE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the fotal capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade payables and other payables, deposits
received and accruals, deposits received in advance,
convertible bonds and confingent consideration payable
less pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes equity attributable to the Company
(including non-controlling inferests). The gearing ratios as
at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

44. eREMRERBEERBE )

EXREEH)
AEBEFREAA G R (CAMEBFER AR
BARMEERFESE) EREARN - BRFFE
BREENEZERREMENTIR - iR
RIEETER - AliRE « AHakRES REMN K
AREREERER RS RESFEHEE -
BARBEARNT (B RS ) 5 -
WN|REHR - ERNBBELEENT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FiET

Trade payables B SRR 22,084 19,658

Other payables, deposits received — EALEFIE « BEWIEE &

and accruals EEEA 52,629 63,231
Deposits received in advance AR S 2,258 1,487
Convertible bonds AR ES 138,179 -
Contingent consideration payable — FEff s AR(E 25,870 -
Less: Pledged deposits B BERTER (310) (310)
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEFMEER (43,046) (94,458)
Net debt/(cash) &%,/ (R&)FE 197.664 (10,392)
Equity attributable to the Company VA &) fE(L xS 213,217 241,107
Total capital FER =N 213,217 241,107
Capital and net debt/(cash) ERRER, (Re)FE 410,881 230,715
Gearing ratio ARG FLE 48% N/ AT A

45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures and items and balances have
been adjusted and reclassified fo conform with the current
year's presentation.

45. LB EF
ETUBRBTEE (L BRRENOH - UF
AAFEZ2IINR -
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. AR #Ak R «
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the ARARRBERRZ M BARARER DT :

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F C— 4
HK$'000 HKS'\OO_O
FHERT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries and a LY EEYNCIS SR 7 N 1D
structured entity /& 294,333 83,206
Available-for-sales investments ARRERE 13,000 29,700
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE k& 1.963 -
Total non-current assets IERBNVE EARTE 309.296 112,906
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSEH B A RIZRIE 84,815 133,455
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIA - 11E RE A UK
receivables 1.396 5,503
Equity investments at fair value BATEABRZRTIRE
through profit or loss 40,995 219
Cash and cash equivalents RekFSEFEER 13,396 52,326
Total current assets BNV EELRTE 140,602 191,503
CURRENT LIABILITIES V=R
Due to subsidiaries B AR 71,083 61,733
Other payables and accruals E A R E R FERT B 1,549 1,569
Contingent consolidation payable — FEffsARE 13,156 -
Total current liabilities mENB B 85,788 63,302
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 54,814 128,201
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 364,110 241,107
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 138,179 -
Contingent consideration payable — Effsk AR (E 12,714
Total non-current liabilities SEmE B BB 150,893 -
Net assets EEFHE 213,217 241,107
EQUITY e
Issued capitall BEITHA 27,762 27,762
Reserves it 185,455 213,345
Total equity FER YA 213,217 241,107
POON MAN SUM Al KUIYU
BEXHR XEx
Director Director
EFE EE
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Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZ=Z— \FANA=THILFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. A AR RT =

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Bt e -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREERZWT ¢
Treasury
share Available-
Convertible - Contributed reserve/ forsales
Share bonds surplus/ Capital Share  Investments
premium equity Capital  redemption option revaluation  Retained
account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ERRH
TEREF BHER/ RBE/ER e
RiVEEE  BERE  4XRE  RERE BRERE REERRE  REE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thr TEx TR T T FERL FEL AL
(Note 30) (Nofe30)  (Nofe3))  (NofedT)  (NoiedD)
(Ff5£30) (Mse30)  (WRE30) (W) (WRR30)
TJuly 2016 106915 - 95,192 3,526 3,763 6,191 (97.554) 118,033
Issue of shares, nef of shares issued expenses
- July 2016 GM Placing (note 29(a)(i))
28,257 - - - - - - 28,267
- Ocfober 2016 SM Placing (nofe 29(a)(i))
52767 - - - - - - 52,761
- April 2017 GM Placing (nofe 29(a)(i))
31876 - - - - - - 37876
Exercise of share opfions (notes 29(b) and 31) 38,056 - - - (4473) - - 33,583
Loss for the yer and fotal comprehensive income
forthe year - - - - - - Bl (51.9%5)
Decrease in fair value of available-forsales
investments - - - - - 979) - 919
Reclassification adjustment fo profit or oss on l
impaiment loss on availableforsales investments S EE%ZEE - - - - - 88 - 88
Release of investment valuation reserve upon ROETRIEEREHRERE
disposal of available for soles investments FBmE - - - - - (5.69) - (56%)
Equityseffled share opfion amangements (note 31) gL E & RiEs s (1531) - - - - 70 - - 70
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 RZE-tEXBZTHR
“E-tFtA-B 263,871 - 95,192 3,526 - (395)  (148.849) 213,345
Loss for the year and fotal comprehensive income  A£EFER2ANELSE
for the year - - - - - - (71.870)  (71.870)
Decrease in fair value of availableor-sales AHHEREATFEZHYD
investments - - - - - (7.050) - (7.050)
Release of investment valuation reserve upon REETHEERENRERE
disposal of available for sales investments BEER o o - - - 7,445 - 7,445
Equity-settled shore option arrangements (note 31) &S NBRER S (HE31) = - - - 5,691 - - 5,691
Issue of converfible bonds (nofe 27) RTTRRES(HE) - 38.423 - - - - - 38423
Direct transaction costs attributable to the equity  EXBABEERRZAHA
component (note 27) (W&27) - (529) - - - - - (529)
At 30 June 2018 R=8-N§xE=1R 263,871 31,894 95,192 3,52 5,691 - (2209) 185,455

47. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 47. fZZEBiEzk2utE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21

September 2018.

SEMBHRRENR T \FAA-_+—HE
EEgHERRETIE -
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Five Year Financial Summary
AFMBEFRE

Year ended 30 June 2018 HE=Z— \FNA=THILFE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- X AAEESIAEASRFE 2 ZELEE A&
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, — RIEZFRERBEE - Ttk A B AMEEZERE I
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial — #®& @ WAGEE &5, EFHHHE

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out

below.
Year ended 30 June
BZAA=tHLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —T—+F —TNEF —E-RF —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET AR TAT FET
RESULTS £
REVENUE WA 308,239 323,154 399,736 749,660 1,166,050
Cost of sales and services HERBRIKA (207,556) (216,369) (253,031) (435,802) (678,639)
Gross profit E£7 100,683 106,785 146,705 313,858 487,411
Other income and gains Hip A Rz 11,582 4,448 4,508 4,023 707
Fair value gain on previously held AL FTHEE D FIRIEZ
equity interest in associate A ERR 2,070 - - - -
Selling and distribution costs HERAEAA (54,498)  (80135)  (123580)  (239.937)  (346,416)
Administrative and other expenses 1T RE M ER (138,781) (79,842) (135,248) (134,183) (178,660)
Fair value loss on contingent ERFAREZ ATEER
consideration payable (886) - - - -
Impairment of other intangible assets  E it & & E R E - (1.715) - - -
Finance costs BERA (10,024) (349) (7,084) (1,528) (19)
Share of profit or loss of associate AEBE AR B 176 - - - (12)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BHAER (89.678)  (50808)  (114699) (57,767) (36,989)
Income fax expense REHER (782) (182) (222) (409) (6.799)
Loss for the year from continuing AEEREBELELEB L
operations BB (90,460) (50,990) (114,921) (58,176) (43,788)
Profit/ (loss) for the year from TEERBLIEEEL
discontinued operation af,/ (EE) - - 2,006 7,658 (8,583)
Impairment of assets of a disposal I EEERESELEN
group classified as held for sale BERE - - - (36,394) (18,305)
- - 2,006 (28,736) (26,888)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEERE (90,460) (50990)  (112.915) (86912) (70,676)
Atfributable to: TS T7 el
Owners of the Company ARFAEEA (77.975) (50892 (112832 (87,003) (70.910)
Non-controlling inferests RS (12,485) (98) (83) 91 234
(90,460) (50990)  (112,915) (86912) (70,676)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- BE - SERFERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 457,036 326,244 234,817 350,599 347,003
TOTAL LIABILITIES Ak (243,819) (85137)  (102798)  (234,040)  (194,184)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Eali (15,842) 20 (78) (1,039) 947)

197,375 241,127 131,941 115,520 151,872
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